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regulations and accounting standards as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank;

ix) adequate provisions have been made for advance and other assets which are in our opinion, doubtful of recovery;
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X) the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory;
i) we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 4,300 person hours; and o
Xii) Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) as required by Bangladesh Bank has been maintained adequately. aiation aiforon

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hasan Mahmood.
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\ Particulars ” Notesll Amount in BDT I Amount in BDT
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements H L 2022 2021 1 particalars | Less than Tto3 3to 12 Tto5 Above Total
Opinion ' PROPERTY AND ASSETS ' 1 month months months years 5years
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. (MTB) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group”) as well as the separate financial statements of Mutual : Czsh h In Hand (ncluding F - , 3.00 13 ;gg gg? ;3; 1; g:g :g; gg; : % 10.059.583.498 9136100000 19,195,683.498
Trust Bank Ltd. (the “Bank’), which comprise the consolidated and separatebalance sheets as at 31 December2022 and the consolidated and separate profit and loss 1 Balance with Bangladoch Bank and its agont Bank(s ) (neiuding forsign currancy) 14032 992 210 11 197 635 96 ' Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions 4763727472 1980413868 640,250,880 68656747 63272621  7.525.330588
accounts, cash flow statements and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated : ' Money at Call & Short notice 310,000,000 ~ - _ N 310,000,000
and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. ) ) ) » ' Bf‘r:a;;: ‘l':t;'e‘s':““e' Banks & Financial Institutions 4.00 ; ggj 338 ggg ? ?,gg g;g 1:‘/2 H Investments 376201666  3497,015077  1309,176660 8655951247 36441619558  52,280,864209
In our opinion,the accompanying consolidated of the Group and separate financial statements of the bank give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the 1 Ou‘s'dg Bangladesh 5257 600,028 2169981973 1 Loans and Advances 26,900,816,126  57,945,639,609  68,561,147,851 67,181,067,521 33,247,023,279  253,835,694,386
Group and the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December2022 and of its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate : : Premises and Fixed Assets 66,237,818 132,475,636 596,140,363  3,179,415,268  1,291,093,804 5,265,362,889
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note # 2 and other applicable laws and regulations. i Money at Call on Short Notice 5.a 310,000,000 200,000,000 ' Other Assets 6,089,454,334 252,287,275  3,361,989427  5.277,014,554 249,996,502 15,230,742,091
Basis forOpinion ' ' Non-Banking Assets - - - - - -
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiing (ISAs). Our responsibilties under those standards are further described in the Auditors' ! e .00 I%%%"%%% b DotalAssets 48,566,020914 _63,817,731,466 _T4,468,714,182 _84,362,105,337 _B2,429,105,764__353,643,677,662
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with i Others 10,626,777.807 6.56! 3,459 i e
" ] § ) : A Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents  5,022,780,613  12,620,915,585  14,618,249,045  10,091,930,885  2,717457,854  44,971,333,982
'
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the uidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and 1 Loans and Advances/investments. 7.00 _ 253,835,694,386 __ 226,011,574.670 ' Deposit and Other Account 31324544217  46,469,442.730 50,388,650,794 66,953,507,826 37,521208,000 232,657,443,657
Exchange Commission (BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with IESBA Code the Institute of Chartered ' Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts, etc./Investments. WWWW ' Provision & Other Liabilties 11011.155,463 221727790 6.921077.013  8.443917.093 23.585.755.926  40.183634,186
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. ' Bills Purchased and Discounted 2,772,219,197 3,527.713,085 ' Subordinated Debts 160,000,000 1,580,000.000 260,000,000 6.580,000.000 _ 5.920.000,000 _14.500,000,000
if 1 1 —
Key Audit Matters v ’ _ ) ) . ' Fixed Asset including Premises, Furniture and Flxtures 8.00 5,265,362,880 5,304,493,735 ' Total Liabilities 37,518,480,203__ 60,892,086,106_72,087,977,752__ 92,069,445,804__69,744,421,871 _332,312,411,825
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the ' i
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 1 Other Assets 9.00 15,230,742,091 8,696,959,252 1 Net Liquidities 11,047,540,621 _ 2,925,645,360 _ 2,380,736,430 _ (7,707,340,468) 12,684,683,893  21,331,265,836
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. ! Non-Banking Assets - - - !
The key audit matfers T Fiow the matter was T our audit : Total Property and Assets —353,643,677,662  __306,500,925,149 ' The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
isi N LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL ' -
Measurement of Erov!s|on '°7 Iroans and Advances — - - - ' g from other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents 10.00 44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006 ' .
The process of estimating provision for loans and advances associated with credit risk | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing on the | 1 -
is judgmental and complex. While estimating such provisions certain judgmental | following: : Deposits and Other Accounts 11.00 657 211,782,425,769 :
i X Current Deposit & Other Accounts 29,303,987,611 26,914,905,893 ,t“n-ll-o\l
factors need to be considered including: ) ' Bills Payable 2/181.104.098 1.975,092.979 ' T —— Tt
. Credit monitoring and provisioning process; : Savings Deposit 44,731,165,855 42,589,740,210 : -
. Future business performance of the borrower; . Identification of loss events, including early warning and default warning | Fixed Deposits . 105,844,214,688 91,528,348,348 ' Dated, Dhaka
. Eey assumptions relating to further business performance of the iFr;dit?atorsf; andn \ Gassicaton o L @ : 3222-:( ';lr)sgsglls)epcsns ;3:223:?32:52; g:;?g:ggé:gsg : 30 April 2023
orrower; . eview of quarterly Classification of Loans ' |
o Marketvalue of the collateral; ' Other Liabilities 12.00 40,183,634,186 27,257,811,801 ' Balance Sheet
. /;bi\ilyto rep(ossess collateral; and Ou&fs‘ybs(anhv_e ﬁ:e?uﬁes_m relation to the provision for loans and advances : Bond 13.a 14,500,000,000 12,600,000,000 : As at 3 1 Decem be r 2022
ecovery rates. ortfolio comprised the followin Perpetual Bond 2,000,000,000 4.000,000,000
) Y P ” ¢ ! e e R IR B
Furthermore, these provisions are processed manually using the voluminous data | Reviewed the adequacy of the general and specific provisions in line with ' Total Liabilities 333312411835 255846018576 | | Particulars || Notes [ Amount In BDT |
exiracted from the IT system of the Bank and following the instructions of Bangladesh related Bangladesh Bank guidelines; ' ' | 2022 I 2021 |
Bank (the central bank of Bangladesh) issued time to time. ' Capital/Shareholders’ Equity '
. Assessed the methodologies on which the provision amounts based, : Z?;?u‘:;f;‘;gz'we 1;:: 2233;;‘35;333 2;;53;223;322 : PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Due to high level of judgment involved and using some manual process in estimating recalculated the provisions and tested the completeness and accuracy of the | 1 ghar? P:eml;m s . 11 s.oao 1 ‘ggi,gg;,gg 1 ‘gg_sl,gg;,gg 1 Cash 3.a 19,190,315,606 14,800,349,000
i i i ingi " ' n Reserve on in Securities 7. ,363, 1933, ' " ;
the provision for loans and advances, we considered this to be a key audit matter. underlying information; H Foraign Gurrency Transiational Gai 10,466 102 4,699 421 ' Cash In Hgnd (Including Foreign Cu_rrency) | 4,257,323,387 | | 3,602,713,035
1 General Reserve 18.a 786,777,324 786,777,324 1 Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s)(including foreign currency) 14,932,992,219 11,197,635,965
At year end the Group and the Bank reported total gross loans and advances of BDT | «  Tested a selection of loans and advances to examine the validity of the | ! Surplus in Profit and Loss Account/Retained Earnings 19.00 461.139 3,488.747.189 '
253.84 bilion (2021: BDT 226.01 bilion) and BOT 250.95 billon (2021: BDT 222.92 recorded amounts, loan documentation, examined the statement of | | Total Shareholders® Equity —21.331.133.467 ___19,654.773315 . | Balance with other Banks & Financial Institutions 4.a 7,258,831,080 3,713,667,620
billion) respectively andprovision for loans and advances of BDT 12.03 billion (2021: accounts, indicators of impairment, provision for non-performing loans and | 1 Non-Controlling Interest 20.00 132,370 133,258 ' In Bangladesh | 1,961,231,052 | | 1,543,685,647 |
BDT 8.89 billion) and BDT 11.26 billion (2021: BDT 8.17 billion) respectively compliance with relevant Bangladesh Bank guidelines; and ! ! i
) ( ) 4 v P 9 9 : Total Liabi ies and Shareholders’ Equity 353,643,677,662 306,500,925,149 : Outside Bang‘adeSh 5,297,600,028 2,169,981,973
See note#2.2.3,7, 7.a, 12.01, 12.a.1 and 12.a.2to the financial statements. o Finally, assessed the appropriateness of disclosures against relevant ! Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2021 Restated) 21.00 23.87 21.99 ' Money at Call on Short Notice 5.a 310,000,000 200,000,000
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines. H gff ?allnce Shee '92': ts & Li 22 H
ontra sets .a
- o ! ptances and 39,972,580,644 || 44,841,639.706 ! Investments 6.a 49,791,328,796 45,776,422,353
oans and advances Letter of guarantee 49,287,726,110 40,349,440,573
i 1 Government 41,654,086,402 40,852,130,399
Loans and advances are the main element of financial statements of the Bank. Income [ We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing on credit | 1 prevocable letters of credit 3 599 694 038 30005579130 ' Others | 8.137.242.394 | | 4.924.291.954 |
of the Bank is mainly dependent on the portfolio of loans and advances. Management | appraisal, loan disbursement procedures and monitoring process of loans and : Other contingent liabilities - - :
Eerfurm?nce is highly dependent En :he target ach\ever:e”nl ofd\oins and adv‘anfces. advances. H Total Off- Balance Sheet Items 149,390,829,346  132,011,351,831 ' Loans and Advances/Investments 7.a 250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
oan d requires - robust ollowed by approval from ) ' ~Documentary credits and short term trade related transactions B E H Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafts, etc./Investments 248,173,020,462 |[ 219,396,487,169
appropriate level of authority. We have performed procedure to check whether the Bank has ensured appropriate Forward asset purchased and forward deposit placed - - -
. 4 : : ] : . " - ' Bills Purchased and Discounted 2,772,219,197 3,527,713,085
documentation as per Bangladesh Bank regulations and the Bank's policy before | Bngrawn ?Dte -?suar\:s afnd_lr_e olvmgdunldewvrmrc\‘g f:c- ies - i
We have identified loans and advances as key audit matter because there is an | disbursement of loans and advances. In addition, we have performed procedure to | 1 I et th Sf” ot a "l'(es' i it piod Z"‘b("‘ er commitments - ' . . " . . "
inherent risk of fraud in disbursement of loans and advances by management to meet | check whether the loans and advances is recorded completely and accurately and : L..?;’;.iﬁa;';f,d.nz QZZ.nSf’BZ‘;k”W edged as del - - : Fixed Asset including Premises, Furniture and Fixtures 8a 5,051,674,499 5,203,874,445
specific targets or expectations. that are existed at the reporting date. i - - 1
H Other Memorandum ltems _ ' Other Assets 9.a 18,407,851,488 12,124,015,514
See note no 2.2.3, 7 and 7.a to the financial statements Furthermore, we have assessed the appropriateness of disclosure against | | Valie of Bangladesh Sanchoy Patra on Hand " N H Non-Banking Assets - -
Bangladesh Bank guidelines. i - - B0 il Total Property and Assets 350,955,241,128 304,742,529,186
' Total Off-Balance Sheet Items i ing Conti Li 149,390,829,346 __132,011,351,831 '
— - ' - '
Recognition of Interest income from loans and advances ' The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements. ' LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL ) . o
Recognition of interest income has_ significant and wide influence on financial | We tested the design and operafing effectiveness of key controls over recognition | | . . | H Borrowing from other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents 10.a 44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006
statements. Recognition and measurement of interest income has involvement of | and measurement of interest on loans and advances. 1 —-ﬁ‘r‘r—— - 1
complex IT environment. We performed test of operating effectiveness on automated control in place to : : Deposits and Other Accounts 11.a 233,611,278,510 212,956,942,491
measure and recognize interest income. ' . ' Current Deposit & Other Accounts 29,304,015,081 26,915,622,914
We identify recognition of interest income from loans and advances as a key audit | We have also performed substantive procedure to check whether interest income is | 1 1 Bills Payable 2,181,104,098 1,975,092,979
matter because this is one of the key performance indicators of the Bank and therefore | recognized completely and accurately. ' mﬁ 8. 2 AmEDE & oo ' Savings Deposit 44,731,165,855 42,589,740,210
there is an inherent risk of fraud and error in recognition of interest by management to | We assessed the appropriateness and presentation of disclosure against relevant | T T Mo A, 1 Fixed Deposits 105,844,214,688 91,528,348,348
meet specific targets or expectations. accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines. i . ' Special Noticed Deposits 26,996,403,337 26,332,451,468
: : Deposit Products 24,554,375,452 23,615,686,572
Valuation of Treasury Bill and Treasury Bond ' [P ———— '
The classification and measurement of treasury bonds require judgment and complex | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing on the : Erroleseot Mo : Other Liab 12.a 36,963,327,148 24,818,899,708
estimates. classification and measurement of treasury bills and treasury bonds. 1 L 1
In the absence of a quoted price in an active market, the fair value of treasury bills and | We tested a sample of the valuation models and the inputs used in those models, | ! - - : Bond 13.a 14,500,000,000 12,600,000,000
treas_ury bonds is determiqed using complex valuation techniques which may take into | using a variety of techniques applicable in the circumstances. : consol |dated Prof't an d Loss Accou nt H Perpetual Bond 4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
conslderal\pn direct or indirect unobservable market data and complex pricing models ) ) il 1 Subordinated Debts 10,500,000,000 8,600,000,000
which require an elevated level of judgment. Finally, we have assessed the and of : For the Year ended 31 December 2022 :
See note #2.2.2, 6.a.1.1and 6.a.1.2 to the financial statements. against relevant accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines. : : Total Liabilities 330,045,939,641 285,581,623,206
P PR To Leases ' Particutars |[reores] '
- - - ' ' Capital/Shareholders’ Equity
IFRS 16 Leasesvbecame effective for annual repomnvg pegmmng on or after 01 | In responding to the identified key audit matter, we completed the following audit : Interest Incomelprofit on investments 24.00 76,064 877957 4565487475 : Paid up Capital 14.a 8,937,452,240 8,124,956,590
January 2019 which replaced IAS 17 Leases. The application of the lease standard | procedures: H Interest paid/profit shared on deposits and borrowings etc. 25.00 12,197.740.371 8.815.395.643 ' Statutory R 15,

. - - N y Reserve .a 6,281,308,408 5,696,354,496
resulted in the recognition and subsequent measurement, a right-of-use (ROU) asset | o Assessed the design and implementation of key controls pertaining to the | , ~ Net Interest Income/profit on investments 3,867,131,580 5,747,085,772 ' Share Premium 16.a 1,095,304,778 1,095,304,778
at BPT 1,497.45 million (net‘present value) (2021: BD'_[ 1,330.13 million) and lease determination of the IFRS 16 Leases impact on the financial statements of : Investment income 26.00 3.647,313.838 3.669.761.378 : Revaluation Reserve on Investment in Securities 17.a 342,532,352 409,820,227
liabilities at BDT 1,729.63 million (2021: BDT 1,404.50 million). the bank; Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 27.00 7.555,972,530 2,487,897,409 - N i

) ) ) 1 Gommission. Exchange 27.00 7.508.972.8%0 aeTEoTa% | Foreign Currency Translational Gain/Loss 9,483,420 1,366,243
. Assessed the appropriateness of the incremental borrowing rate; 1 P 9 - - - 8 - A i General Reserve 18.a 786.777.324 786.777.324
The recognition and subsequent measurement of IFRS 16 Leases is considered a key Verified the f the underlying lease data by ing o original | ' xotal Other Income —12.235.052.682 ___7.057.024.313 R . . 5 UANE eSS
audit matter, s the balances recorded are maleril, management had (o apply several | - contrso and chocked the aoairac o s IFRS 16 camiaions trowen | | 1Ot OPerating income 16,102,184,262  12,804,110,085 | Surplus in Profit and Loss Account/Retained eamnings 19.a 3,456,442,965 3,046,326,323
g , contract and checked the accuracy of the calculations through | ' . i
judgments and estimates such as lease period, incremental borrowing rate, recalculation of the expected IFRS 16 adjustment and; 1 LEST OPEYEXITI'Q Expenses: - oL R ] Iota: fp::’r‘cle'hfsldersd ::ultyh 1d * Equi 3:3’:2:’:2: ’:g; 3;3’;22’:2:’?:;
measurgmetr\r: :Jas\s ‘a'mongf o\hersd gnal cu‘nsider ? ?\gtniﬁcantd L‘iala analysis to | o Assessed the disclosures given in the financial statements. ! gz:tr,yTaar;des, I?\‘;’S:‘::Cse Eleatricity otc gg:gg '732'2351202 3.326:52::423 ! otal Liabilities an areholders’ Equity ,955,241, ,742,529,
summarize the lease information used in their lease calculation model i indivi [ item’ i Legal Expenses 31.00 1,279,109 2,924,001
For identifying the individual lease contract as ‘low value item’ the Bank has applied : Potage. Stamps. Telecommumcatlon elc 3% 1 oha 090 23 00a 001 ! Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2021 Restated) 21.a 23.20 2144
. a threshold of Tk 20 million for each lease and also considered the probability of v, 33.00 143.165.699 116.627 488
See note #2.2.8, 8,8, 12.2.8, 36.a and 37.a to the financial statements. exercising non-renewal option of those lease contract. | Chiof Executive's salary and foes 29.a.1 26,162,875 26.380.057 | 1 Off-Balance Sheet Items
1 E"j‘ilolf SFFeeS g‘s‘-gg 2 gggvig? gvfggvggg 1 Contra & Contingent Assets & Liabilities: 22.a
uditor's Fees X .570, 158,
Legal and Regulatory Matters H Depreciation and repair of bank's assets 36.00 989,364,348 841,347,501 | 1 /Dcceplafnces and endorsements 222;3,?22,?‘1‘3 33,23; .3‘313,232
Wef n legal and regulatory matters he Bank and its subsidiaries (the | W he design and operating effectiveness of key controls over the legal | ' Sther Exper 37.00 1.947.650,178 1.418.201.275 | 1 etter of guarantee 287,726, ,349,440,
" e oc&lsedo legal and regulatory matter sbec_auset e Bank a d tssubsdg ies (the e tested the de_sg and operating effectiveness of key controls over the legal | | o Operating Expenses 250301 017 7143 506.570 H Irrevocable letters of credit 38/805.688 054 36.766.759.417
‘Group”) operate in a legal and regulatory environment that is exposed to significant | provision and contingencies process. i Profit Before Provision 7,802,793,245 5,660,803,506 1 Bills f lecti 11,324 834 538 10,053 512,136
litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings. Such | We inquired to those charged with governance to obtain their view on the status of | © B OII’\S or collec |on| biliti ’ ’ ’ " ’ ’
matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcome may be dificult to predict. | all significant itigation and regulatory matters. ' 38.00 5555535573 5755055] ther contingent liabilities - -
We inquired of the Bank's intemal legal counsel for all significant liigation and | 98,241,572 475.868.961 ' Total Off- Bal_ance Sheet items 149,390,829,346 132,011,351,831
These uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with | regulatory matters and inspected internal notes and reports. : 1 ,ﬁ;,g;gggg ;gg.ggg;;g : Other Commitments
respect to the provisions which have been established and other contingent liabilities. | We assessed the methodologies on which the provision amounts are based, | , 255.000.000 540.000.000 ' Documentary credits and short term trade related transactions - -
recalculated the provisions, and tested the completeness and accuracy of the | 1 Provision for Other Assets 60,000,000 24,000,000 1 Forward asset purchased and forward deposit placed - -
underlying information. : Total Provision —4,574,450,933 __ 2,122,031,391 : Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities - -
We also assessed the Group's provisions and contingent liabilities disclosure. ,  Profit Before Tax 3,228,342,312 3,538,772,115 | Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments - -
I Provision for Taxation 859,183,916 565,571,688 ' Claim against the bank not acknowledged as debt - -
eferred Tax Expenses/(Income X
Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems and controls due to the business | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Bank's IT access controls : Net Profit After Tax 2,369,158,395 2,973,200,427 : Other M q " - -
environment and changes to the IT environment, the large volume of transactions | over the information systems that are critical to financial reporting. We tested IT | | . i Other Memorandum ltems
processed in numerous locations daily and the reliance on automated and IT | general controls (logical access, changes management and aspects of IT | f,.’.‘:;?.:‘;’:ﬁ?;fe;‘ the Bank 2‘369'152‘2?‘1‘ 2'973“9?‘253 1 Value of Travelers' Cheque on Hand - | | -
dependent manual controls. operational controls). This included: ! 2,369,158,395 2,973,200,427 ' Value of Bangladesh Sanchoy Patra on Hand - -
o testing that request for access to systems were appropriately reviewed and | | Surplus R S 2 Ssaee - -
Our areas of audit focus included user access management, developer access to the authorized ! Appropriations: T e ! Total Off-Balance Sheet Items including Contingent Liabilities 149,390,829,346 132,011,351,831
production environment and changes to the IT environment. These are key to | o testing the Bank's periodic review of access rights H Bonus Shares Issued during the year '
ensuring IT dependent and application-based controls are operating effectively. . :sl;i‘zclir;%on'r‘equests of changes to systems for appropriate approval and : §:Z§ﬂ'};§z:§;:I;J;E_Lr%%t:;u:':gy;:year oaoor 200 : The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
uthorizati ividend for Perpetual Bondholders ,061,
: Transferred to Statutory Reserve 658,831,130 :
. Transferred to Start-Up Fund 29,178,340
Other Information ) » . . X H 2,032,441,134 1,650,703,236 H b - .
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the consolidated and separate H Retained Surplus, Carried Forward 3,825,461,139 3,488,747,189 ' -
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. i 1
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 1 Earnings Per Share (EPS) (2021 Restated) 40.00 2.65 3.33 . — kT
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider : The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements 1 .
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 1 1
be materially misstated. ! " . - . H Ebacd, Ebhalion o M, . AREDM 500,
If based on such work we perform, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged | _ﬁnﬂ;ﬂ_ ?‘l—""— | B0 April 2028 E—iwd
with governance. ' — N - ' T G Mo A
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated and separate Financial Statements and Internal Control. : g B :
is for the ion and fair ion of the financial statements of the Bank in accordance with IFRSs as explained in note #2, and for such oty T . '
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, : T R M NS :
whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1991 and the Bank ions require the to ensure effective internal audit, internal control ' . i ood
and risk management functions of the Group and the Bank. The Management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud internal controls 1 1 M% ﬁm
and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries. : : Errolasot ey
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, i 1
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank to cease 1 c I - d t d St t t f c h FI :
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. , onsoliaate atement o as ow i 1
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Bank's financial reporting process. : i PI'OfIt an d LOSS ACCOU I"It
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements ! For the Year e nded 31 Decem ber 2022 ! FOI' the Year en ded 31 Decem bel' 2022
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole are free from material whether ' i
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 1 Particulars ” Notes | [ In BDT | 1
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material mi when it exists. can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, ! L 2022 J[ 2021 ] ' Particulars Notes Amount In BDT |
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate | A) Cash Flows From Operating Activi ' 2022 2021 |
financial statements. i Interest receipts/investment income receipts in cash 18,700,818,762 18,817,259,927 1
it i i ional i intai ici i . I Interest payments/profit paid on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. (10,160,704.905)| [ (11.159.731.:807)| 1 L
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: H Dividand raceipts 521,085,592 434,224,337 ' Interest Income/profit on investments 24.a | 15,838,446,494 | | 14,329,716,118
I Fees&C issi ipts i h 7.555,972.530 2,487,897,409 ' i ’ i i
®  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform ' RZineri:smor:IIs:alzrs‘/ir:\?:‘s’::el:(cuarseviously written off 67,997,716 44.858.845 ' Interest paid/profit shared on d'eposns and borrowings etc. 25.a 12,197,762,448 8,821,458,698
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting ' Cash payments to employees (4,433,073,885) (4,008,797,532) , Net Interest Income/profit on investments 3,640,684,046 5,508,257,420
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, | ﬁii’,‘n‘;‘“{a";g:':a‘,g suppliers <1(;‘2‘2':133323'9/; (1(1;325'3232 '
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. ' Receipts from other operating activities 41.00 1,707,297,133 1,851,555,617 ! Investment income 26.a 3,482,338,332 3,392,199,216
! Payments for other cperatvng ac(lvmes 42.00 (2.878,200,278) 2,28 16,748 el
®  Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit that are in the ci but not for the ! Cash Flow from O vities before Ch Net Current Assets: 9.615,179,418 98,481 ' Commlssmn,vExchange and Brokerage 272 7,288,001,123 2,087,348,334
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the intemal controls of the Group. ] Loans and Advances,,nvestmen:':,s::z;:,de:?b s (27.824,119,716)| [ (22.268,069,098)| ' T Ottr:ecr)gperlatlng Income 28.a 11322§g;;gg G gil igggg
i Other Assets (5,396,184,677)| (3.467,677,996)] ' otal er Income i
®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. ' Deposits from other banks & NBFI (3,360,000,000)| 3,950,000,000 ! Total Operating Income 15,415,687,631 11,849,753,098
: Deposits from customers 22,159,870,813 21,437,384,419 : T U
®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material |, BorroVying frorm Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents A ;éfi:;ggg:’, ' Less: Operating E :
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we I Cash generated from operating assets and liabilities " 2.740.307.384 __6.655.000.280 : ess: Operating Expenses:
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate |  Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities T 12.355.486,802 __11,563.508.761_ | Salary and Allowances B 29.a 4,291,711,740 3,875,876,621
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our ) ©ash Flow from Investing Activities: ., wToTasTIoey Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity etc. 30.a 731,258,874 706,146,335
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. ! Investments in Shares & Bonds (4,061,524,348) (2,734,575,749)| | Legal Expenses 31.a 1,279,109 2,924,001
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) 679.820.309 1.198,552,120 ' Postage, Stamps, Telecommunication etc. 2. 41,307,396 22,290,894
®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the : ge'c‘:aih;'mﬂ;ff°mF!"Ves‘_'n9:'= —(5.602,749,245) _ (12,034,559,168) 1 Statioger Prin‘iin s. Advertisements etc. 33 : 140 476,755 113,860 499
consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 1O e o oy nancing Ac 500,000,000 750,000,000 ! Chief E ¥, Printing i ot . . 26162.8 26.380.0
. : Dividend Paid by MTB Subsidiaries 609,164,497 224,061,356 1 N e xecutive's sa lary and fees 29.a.1 ' ’ 75 ” ’ 57
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the | Net Cash Flow from Financing Activ 1,290,835,503 1,525,938,644 ' Director's Fees 34.a 2,160,000 2,217,600
i i il D) Net | in Cash d Cash E lent: 8,043,573,060 1,054,978,238 .
con§ol\@a§ed financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our : E)) E"eec‘“;'g::i;;‘s oafzx::ang::ate::'n"g;':_ :"d Cash Equivalents a6 ea1 jres : Auditor's Fees 35.a 1,897,700 1,495,000
audit opinion. . ‘ o ) ‘ o | F) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,984,169,345 17,928,429,557 ' Depreciation and repair of bank's assets 36.a 964,108,596 832,571,524
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any | Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) 27,033,509,086 18,984,169,345 1
s N y o N N . —=n===an S e Other Expenses 37.a 1,912,104,095 1,389,803,525
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit 1 The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include: il "
' galsh In HiEdB(IncIIuZlngthrelE" C;;;ency) ¢ Bank(s) (inoluding ) 13,52;.32;;/3 1?,?;;,222.322 1 Total Operating Expenses 8,112,467,141 6,973,566,055
alance wil anglades! ank and its agen! .ank(s) (including foreign currency; ! 8 - B . 3 1 . - Py
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical regarding i and to with | Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions. 7.525,330,588 3,965,379,148 \  Operating Profit Before Provision & Tax __7,303,220,490 __ 4,876,187,043
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. ' 'l‘:"c,’"eléa‘ ga" and Short Notice 3 '
' rize Bon | Less:F for Loans, & Other 38.a
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate ' ' Provision for Unclassified Loan and Advance 2,253,938,813 13,729,058
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public : Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2021 Restated) 44.00 13.82 12.94 : Special General Provision-COVID-19 98,241,572 475,868,961
disdosure about the mafte or when, in exdremely rare cicumstances, we determine that a mater should ot be commuricated in our report because the adverse The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements ' Provision for Classified Loan and Advance 1,761,216,565 732,840,719
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. i i . )
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements i : Prov!s!on for O_ff—BaIgncg Sheet items 146,053,983 335,592,653
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, the Bank Company Act, 1991 and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh ' ' Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments 59,000,000 N
Bank, we also report that: i 1 Provision for Other Assets 60,000,000 24,000,000
i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due ' | Total Provision 4,378,450,933 1,582,031,391
verification thereof, ' ! Profit Before Tax 2,924,769,557 3,294,155,652
'
. ' '
ii) to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the Auditor's Responslbmty sect\on in forming the above opinion on ' i Provision for Taxation 713.425.415 376,321,654
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank and the reports of the to 1 . i I t Tax E 39 1.323.097.632 7.259.525.860
Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud internal controls and instances of fraud and forgeries as stated under the Management's Responsibility for the financial : : urrent ax Expenses -a |
statements and internal control: . Hwwar Mahmood e, H Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 39.a.1 (609,672,217)| 883,204,205)
a.  internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Group as disclosed in the financial statements appeared to be materially 1 Ersrolnent Ho. i :
3 FRODERODEAANTT i
adequate; ! D oy | Net Profit After Tax 2,211,344,142 2,917,833,997
b hing 1 ) tent » s . it — ’ ' " ' ! Retained Surplus Brought Forward 3,046,326,323 1,779,195,562
. nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or iregularity or administrative error and exception or anything . . . ! 5,257,670,465 4,697,029,559
detrimental committed by employees of the Group and the Bank. ' CO nsol 1 dated statement Of c hanges Iin Eq u |ty I Appropriations:
1 ' .
fif) consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20220f Mutual Trust Bank Limited’s subsidiaries namely, MTB Securities Limited and MTB ' AS at 31 Decem bel’ 2022 : Bgnus Shares Issued during the year 812,495,650 738,632,410
Capital Limited have been audited by ShafiqBasaka Co., Chartered Accountants and MTB Exchange (UK) Limited has been audited by Jahan & Co. Chartered | Amount in BDT ' Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders 381,664,497 224,061,356
Management Accountants and have been properly reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The auditors have expressed an unqualified opinion for all 1 g Stattory Revalustion  Forelgn o Los - ' Transferred to Statutory Reserve 584,953,911 658,831,130
three companies. ! Parestars capita Shere Preml imesstmentin  Traraiaten  Rasseve e e T ' Transferred to Start-Up Fund 22,113,441 29,178,340
W) our opmon,proper books of accurts s eqited by a Have b kept by the Group an te Bark s far a it appecred fom our A Rw———— e PR A Ay p——————— 1.801227,500 1650,703,236
0058, - . . - D?v".aenfﬁ‘;.';’.f“&"%SL i e year freassese @arassion @0 @swmen 1 Retained Surplus, Carried Forward 3,456,442,965 3,046,326,323
v) the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and consolidated in the financial statements; H ital reserve by MTBSL during the yes . 1717.834) i —_—————————
Vi) the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books ' C‘L"‘;.J%J?Q“““" oo oreeee (22.113.441) (22.113.441) ' .
of account and returns; U Drdond tor Rorpeteal Bonanoiders T (ea870040 (01604497 aoveesson ' Earnings Per Share (EPS) (2021 Restated) 40.a 2.47 3.26
; . f y . . 1 et Profi for ne periodaftr Tax 2369155001 3311 2369158395 1
Vi) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Group's and the Bank’s business for the year; H Appropriatio ing the year (se: - - i
Baioncs se ot 31 Decomber 035 557550 Gvvson.avs 50550477 Soa3ESATs  ToA6e107 TeeTTTA Saseder s FiSSLisSAeT T3S TS . . . 5
' ; . ! The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
i) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules, ! o 31 Docombar 2031 '
' '
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars

Amount i

n BDT

2022 I

]
2021 ]

A) Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Interest receipts/investment income receipts in cash
Interest payments/profit paid on Deposits, Borrowings, etc.

Dividend receipts 457,299,873 382,670,434
Fees & Commission receipts in cash 7,288,001,123 2,087,348,334
Recoveries on loans/investment previously written off 67,997,716 44,858,845

Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers
Income taxes paid

18,474,393,304
(10,160,726,982)

(4,317,874,615),
(140,476,755)
(1,196,461,774),

18,584,494,630
(11,165,794,863)

(3,902,256,678)
(113,860,499)
(1,085,671,535)

Receipts from other operating activities 41.a 1,579,005,162 1,588,129,960
Payments for other operating activities 42.a (2,835,116,286
Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Changes in Net Current Assets: 9,216,040,766
ease in assets and liabilities
Loans and Advances/investment to customers (28,021,039,405) (22,076,095,420)
Other Assets (5,272,623,584) (3,689,642,457)
Deposits from other banks & NBFI (3,360,000,000) 3,950,000,000
Deposits from customers 24,014,336,019 19,786,166,118
Borrowing from Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents 9,765,552,976 4,358,472,567
Other Liabilities 4,880,404,469 4,677,649,367
Cash generated from operating assets and liabilities 2,006,630,475 7,006,550,175
Net Cash Flows from Operating Acti 11,222,671,242 11,189,033,239
B) Cash Flow from Investing Activiti
Investments in T. Bills, T. Bonds and other (870,404,588) (8,101,431,299)
Investments in Shares & Bonds (3,212,950,439) (2,368,362,978)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) 621,799,538 1.063,119,166
Net Cash Flow from Investing Acti 4,705,154,565) 11,532,913,443)
C) Cash Flow from Financing Acti
Issue of new share with premium [ — 11 ]
Subordinated debts 1,900,000,000 1,750,000,000
Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders 381,664,497 224,061,356
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,518,335,503 1,525,938,644
D) Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,035,852,179 1,182,058,441
E) Effect of Changes of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,117,177 1,487,371
F) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,717,672,330 17,534,126,517
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) 26,761,641,686 18,717,672,330
The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:
Cash In Hand (Including Foreign Currency) 4,257,323,387 3,602,713,035
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency) 14,932,992,219 11,197,635,965
Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions 7,258,831,080 3,713,667,620
Money at Call and Short Notice 310,000,000 200,000,000
Prize Bond 2,495,000 3,655,710
26,761,641,686 18,717,672,330
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2021 Restated) 44.a 12.56 12.52
The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
Dumtuecd, Dinslkm
20 AmE 3022
Hewmn Bshmocd FCA
Enrolavent No. 584
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Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2022
Amount in BDT
i Revaluation ~ Foreign Surplus in Profit
Particulars Pald.- e Statutory Share Premium _Reserve on Curren?y General and Loss Account/ Total
Capital Reserve Investmentin Translation ~ Reserve Retai N
o N etained earnings
Securities  Gain/(Loss)

Balance as at 01 January 2022 8,124,956,500 5,696,354,496  1,095,304,778 409,820,227 1,366,243 786,777,324 3,046,326,323  19,160,905,981
Bonus Share Issued during the year 812,495,650 (812,495,650) -
Currency Translation differences 817177 - 8,117,177
Transferred to Start-Up Fund (22,113,441) (22,113,441)
Revaluation Reserve transferred during the year (67,287,875) - (67,287,875)
Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders (381,664,497) (381,664,497)
Net Profit for the year after tax 2211344142 2,211,344,142
Appropriation made during the year 584,953,911 (584,953,911) -

Balance as at 31 December 2022 8,937,452,240 6,281,308,408 1,095304,778 342,532,352 9,483,420 786,777,324 3,456,442,065 _ 20,909,301,48:

Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2021
Amount in BDT
. Revaluation  Foreign Surplus in Profit Total
Particulars Pa'd.' P Statutory Share Premium _~cserve o’f Curren?y General and Loss Account/  Shareholders
Capital Reserve Investment in Translation ~ Reserve Retai N "
- N etained Earnings Equity
Securities  Gain/(Loss)

Balance as at 01 January 2021 7,386,324,180 5,037,523,366 1,005304,778 486928408  (121,129) 786,777,324 1,779,195,562  16,571,932,490
Revaluation Reserve transferred during the year (77,108,182) (77,108,182)
Currency Translation differences 1,487,371 1,487,371
Net Profit for the year after tax 2917,833,997  2,917,833,997
Appropriation made during the year 658,831,130 (658,831,130) -
Transferred to Start-Up Fund (29178340)  (29,178,340)
Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders (224,061,356)  (224,061,356)
Bonus Share Issued during the year 738632410 (738,632.410) -

Balance as at 31 December 2021 8,124,956,590 5,696,354,496 1,095,304,778 409,820,227 1,366,243 786,777,324 3,046,326,323  19,160,905,981

The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Pantnc, Pl o o v L J. ABETOL & CO.
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Liquidity Statement
As at 31 December 2022
Amount in BDT
N | Less than 1t03 3to12 1to5 Above
Particulars Total
1 month months months years 5 years
ASSETS :
Cash 10,054,215,606 - - - 9,136,100,000 19,190,315,606
Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions 4,687,423,116 1,862,239,942 577,238,654 68,656,746.98 63,272,621 7,258,831,080
Money at Call & Short notice 310,000,000 - - - - 310,000,000
Investments 2,771,354 2,626,577,683 313,362,495 8,406,997,706  38,441,619,558 49,791,328,796
Loans and Advances 26,753,301,349  57,871,882,221  68,842,260,831 65964,070,610 31,513,724,648 250,945,239,659
Premises and Fixed Assets 30,928,343 61,856,687 278,355,091 1,484,560,483 3,195,973,895 5,051,674,499
Other Assets 6,050,812,830 175,004,266 3,126,627,537 5,277,014,554 3,778,392,302 18,407,851,488
Non-Banking Assets - - - - - -
Total Assets 47,889,452,598  62,597,560,798  73,137,844,607  81,201,300,100  86,129,083,024  350,955,241,128
LIABILITIES :
Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents 5,022,780,613  12,620,915,585 14,518,249,045 10,091,930,885 2,717,457,854 44,971,333,982
Deposit and Other Account 31324571687 46969,442,730 51,842,458,178  65,953,597,826  37,521,208,090 233,611,278,510
Provision & Other Liabilities 703,871,443 56,768,657 4,870,461,131 8,361,038,030  22,971,187,886 36,963,327,148
Subordinated Debts 160,000,000 1,580,000,000 260,000,000 6,580,000,000 5,920.,000,000 14,500,000,000
Total Liabilities 37.211,223,743_ 61,227,126972 _ 71,491,168,354 _ 90,086,566,741 _ 69,129,853,831 _ 330,045,939,641
Net Liquidities 10,678,228,855 1,370,433,826 1,646,676,254  (9,785,266,642) 16,999,229,193 20,909,301,487

The annexed accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31December 2021
1.00 The Bank and its activities

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTBL) was incorporated in Bangladesh in the year 1999 as a Banking Company
under the Companies Act, 1994 as a Public Limited Company. All types of commercial banking services are
provided by the Bank within the stipulations laid down by the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and amendment
thereon) and directive as received from the Bangladesh Bank from time to time. Registered office of the Bank
is at MTB Centre, 26 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212. The Bank started its commercial business
from 24 October 1999. The Bank is listed with the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Limited.
Authorized capital of the Bank is BDT 10 billion. The Bank has 119 (One hundred nineteen) Branches
including 14 (Fourteen) SME/AgriBranches all over the Bangladesh, 198 (OneHundredNinety Eight) Agent
06(Six)Air Lounge and 02 (Two) Booth located at

ies and nature of operation of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

The principal activities of the bank are to provide all kinds of commercial banking and related services such
as accepting deposits, lending loans to customers, trade and services, issuing letter of Credit, treasury
lending, dealing in government securities, equity shares, cash
management, issuing debit and credit cards, SMSbanking, internet banking, call centre, securities and
custody services, remittance services, privilege banking services, etc.

The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit Permission vide Letter # BRPD (P-3)744(105)/2009-4470
dated 03 December 2009. The Bank commenced operation of this unit from 07 December 2009. This unit is
governed under the policy, rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank vide reference no.BRPD Circular no. 02,
dated 25 February 2019 and amendment thereon BRPD Circular no. 09 dated 27 May 2019& BRPD Circular
no. 31 dated 18 June 2020. The principal activities of the unit are to provide all kinds of commercial banking
services to its customers in foreign currencies. Separate Financial Statements of Off-shore Banking Unit has

The Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 07/01/2016 vide reference no. BRPD (P-3) 745
(51)/2016-142 to start the operation of Agent Banking and subsequently started its commercial operation on
06/06/2016. Till December 31, 2022 there are 198 agent outlets launched around the country. The services
that are currently being offered includes- Account Opening ( Savings), Cash deposit & withdrawal (Agent
Banking A/C),Cash Deposit in Branch A/C, Inward foreign remittance disbursement, Collections of bills/utility
bills, Payment of social benefits, Transfer of funds, Payment of salaries, Generation and issuance of bank
statements, SME Loan repayment collection, Balance inquiry, Internet Banking & SMS banking, Corporate
Bill/Distributor fee collection, Insurance Premium Collection etc

MTB Securities Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company on 01 March 2010 vide
its registration no. 82868/10 and converted into public limitedcompany in the year 2015 under the Companies
Act,1994. The company has started its commercial operation on 23 September 2010 after getting approval
from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) as a separate entity. The Brokerage
registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/427 and Dealer registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/428.

MTBSL is engaged in buying and selling of securities for its customers and margin loan is extended to the
customers against their margin for investment in the listed companies. The required margin level is monitored
daily and margin loan is provided as per established guidelines. Separate Financial Statements of MTB

Bangladesh Bank vide their letter # BRPD(M)204/25/2010-289dated 19 August 2010 has accorded approval
to the bank for opening a fully owned subsidiary company in the name of MTB Exchange (UK) Limited. The
Company was incorporated on 14 June 2010 under the Companies Acts 2006 of UK with the registration
number 7282261 as a private company limited by shares. The registered office is located at 25 White Chapel

The main activities of the exchange house are to carry on the remittance business and to undertake and
participate in transactions, activities and operations commonly carried on or undertaken by remittance and
exchange houses. Separate Financial Statements of MTB Exchange (UK) Limited has been drawn up in the

The Bank obtained permission to embark upon Merchant Banking from the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) vide its Certificate No.MB-55/2010 dated 06 December 2010 under the
Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993. The operation was started as on 17 April 2011. Separate
financial statements have been drawn up in the reports.
MTBCL offers the following services to the market:
a. Discretionary and Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management services to both the retail and institutional

b. Issue management services to medium and large corporate houses to manage their Initial Public Offering
(IPO), secondary offering, debt issuance and rights issuance.

c.  Underwriting services for both debt and equity issues.
Besides, MTBCL develops various investment schemes suiting varying objectives and constraints of

and basis of preparation of financial statements

The separate financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended 31December 2022 comprise
those of Domestic Banking Unit (Main operations) and Offshore Banking Unit (OBU), and the consolidated financial
statements of the group comprise those of 'the Bank' (Parent company) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as 'the
Group' and individually referred to as ‘Subsidiaries'). There was no significant change in the nature of principal business
activities of the Bank and the subsidiaries during the financial period.

1.01 Legal form of Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Banking Centre,37(Thirty Seven) Sub Branch,
HazratShahjalal International Airport, Dhaka.

1.02 Principal acti
functions, inter bank borrowing and

1.03 Off-Shore Banking Unit (OBU)
been drawn up in Annexure H.

1.04 Agent Banking

1.05 Subsidiaries

1.5.1 MTB Securities Limited (MTBSL)

Securities Limited has been drawn up in the reports.

1.5.2 MTB Exchange (UK) Limited (MTB UK)

Road, London.
reports.
1.5.3 MTB Capital Limited (MTBCL)
investors under different product lines.
different investor classes.
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2.1 Basis of preparation
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Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as at and for the year ended31December2022 have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with the “First Schedule” (section-38) of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and
amendment thereon), BRPD Circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003, other Bangladesh Bank circulars, International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the Financial
Reporting Council of Bangladesh (FRC). In addition to this, the Bank complied with the requirements of following
laws and regulations from various Government’s bodies:

i)The Bank Company Act, 1991 and amendment thereon;

ii) The Companies Act, 1994;

iii) Rules, regulations and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank from time to time;

iv) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange ordinance 1969, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987,
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Act 1993 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Public Issue) Rules 2015;

v) The Income Tax ordinance 1984 and amendment thereon;

vi) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act 2012;

vii) Financial Reporting Act 2015;

viii) Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE), Chattogram Stock Exchange (CSE) and Central Depository Bangladesh
Limited (CDBL) rules and regulations.

Departures from IAS/IFRS:

Where the requirement of provisions and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank differ with those of the
regulatory authorities and accounting standards, the provisions and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank
shall prevail. As such the Group and the Bank has departed from those contradictory requirements of IFRSs
in order to comply with the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank which are disclosed below:

i) Presentation of financial statements

IFRS: As per IAS 1, a complete set of financial statements comprises a statement of financial position, a
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of
cash flows, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
and comparative information. IAS 1 has also stated the entity to disclose assets and liabilities under current
and non-current classification separately in its statement of financial position.

Bangladesh Bank: A format of financial statements (i.e. balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flows
statement, changes in equity, liquidity statement) is prescribed in the “First Schedule” of section 38 of the
Bank Company Act 1991 (and amendment thereon) and BRPD Circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003 of
Bangladesh Bank. Assets and liabilities are not classified under current and non-current heading in the
prescribed format of financial statements.

ii) Investment in shares and securities

IFRS: As per requirements of “IFRS 9: classification and measurement of investment in shares and
securities will depend on how these are managed (the entity’s business model) and their contractual cash
flow characteristics. Based on these factors it would generally fall either under “at fair value through profit or
loss account” or under “at fair value through other comprehensive income”, where any change in the fair
value (as measured in accordance with IFRS 13) at the year-end is taken to profit and loss account or other
comprehensive income respectively.

Bangladesh Bank: As per Banking Regulation & Policy Department (BRPD) Circular no. 14 dated 25 June
2003 of Bangladesh Bank, Investments in quoted shares and unquoted shares are revalued at the year end
at market price and as per book value of last audited balance sheet respectively. Provision should be made for
any loss arising from diminution in value of investments; otherwise investments are recognized at cost. As such
Mutual Trust Bank Limited measures and recognizes Investment in Quoted and Unquoted shares at cost if the
year-end Market value (for Quoted shares) and book value (Unquoted shares) are higher than the cost.

iii) Revaluation gain/loss on Government securities

IFRS: As per requirement of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, where securities will fall under the category of fair
value through profit or loss account, any change in the fair value of assets is recognized through the profit
and loss account. Securities designated as amortized cost are measured at effective interest rate method and
interest income is recognized through the profit and loss account.

Bangladesh Bank: According to Department of Offsite Supervision (DOS) Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2008
and subsequent clarification in DOS Circular # 05, dated 28 January2009 of Bangladesh Bank, loss on
revaluation of Government securities (T-bill/T-bond) which are categorized as held for trading will be charged
through Income accounts, but any gain on such revaluation should be recorded under revaluation reserve
accounts. However, at the year-end if there is any revaluation gain for any particular held for trading T-bill/T-
bond, such gain can be used to the extent of any revaluation loss for that particular held for trading T-bill/T-
bond. T-bill/T-bond designated as held to maturity are measured at amortized cost method but interest
income/gain should be recognized through revaluation reserve.

iv) Provision on loans and advances

IFRS: As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, an entity shall recognize an impairment allowance on loans and
advances based on expected credit losses. At each reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment
allowance for loans and advances at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on these loans and advances has increased significantly since initial recognition whether assessed on an
individual or collective basis considering all reasonable information, including that which is forward-looking.
For those loans and advances for which the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
at each reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment allowance at an amount equal to 12 month
expected credit losses that may result from default events on such loans and advances that are possible
within 12 months after reporting date.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 51 dated 18 December 2022, BRPD Circular # 14 dated 22 June
2022, BRPD Circular # 63 dated 31 December 2020, BRPD Circular # 59 dated 30 December 2020, BRPD
Circular # 56 dated 10 December 2020, BRPD Circular # 52 dated 20 October 2020, BRPD Circular # 17
dated 28 September 2020,BRPD Circular # 16 dated 21 July 2020, BRPD Circular # 13 dated 15 June
2020,BRPD Circular # 03 dated 21 April 2019, BRPD Circular # 01 dated 20 February 2018, BRPD Circular #
15 dated 27 September 2017, BRPD Circular # 08 dated 02 August 2015, BRPD Circular # 16 dated 18
November 2014, BRPD Circular # 05 dated 29 May 2013, BRPD Circular # 19 dated 27 December 2012,
BRPD Circular # 14 dated 23 September 2012, and a general provision at 0.25% to 2% under different
categories of unclassified loans (standard and SMA loans) has to be maintained regardless of objective
evidence of impairment. Also, provision for sub-standard loans, doubtful loans and bad losses, should be
provided at 5%, 20%, 50% and 100% respectively for loans and advances depending on the duration of
overdue. Again as per BRPD Circular # 10 dated 18 September2007, BRPD Circular # 01 dated 03 January
2018, BRPD Circular # 07dated 21 June 2018, and BRPD Circular # 13 dated 18 October 2018a general
provision at 1% should be provided for all off-balance sheet exposures except general provision against the
LC for First Track Power Supply Projects, ‘bills for collection’ and ‘guarantees’ where the counter guarantees
have been issued by Multilateral Development Bank (MDB)/International Bank having BB rating grade ‘1’
equivalent outlined in the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital
Framework for banks in line with Basel Ill). Such provision policies are not specifically in line with those
prescribed by IFRS 9.

v) Recognition of interest in suspense

IFRS: Loans and advances to customers are generally classified at amortized cost as per IFRS 9: Financial
Instruments and interest income is recognized by using the effective interest rate method to thegross carrying
amount over the term of the loan. Once a loan subsequently become credit-impaired, the entity shall apply
the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of these loans and advances.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPDCircular # 14 dated 23 September 2012, once a loan is classified as
impaired, interest on such loan is not allowed to be recognized as income, rather the corresponding amount
needs to be credited to an interest in suspense account, which is presented as a liability in the balance sheet.

vi) Other comprehensive income
IFRS: As per IAS 1, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is a component of financial statements or the
elements of OCI are to be included in a single other comprehensive income statement.

Bangladesh Bank: Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements which will strictly be
followed by all banks. The templates of financial statements issued by Bangladesh Bank neither include Other
Comprehensive Income nor are the elements of Other Comprehensive Income allowed to be included in a
single Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Statement. However, elements of OCI, if any, are shown in the
statement of changes in equity.

vii) Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

In several cases Bangladesh Bank guidelines categorize, recognize, measure and present financial
instruments differently from those prescribed in IFRS 9: Financial Instruments. As such full disclosure and
presentation requirements of IFRS7: Financial Instrument- Disclosures and IAS32: Financial Instruments-
Presentation cannot be made in the accounts.

viii) Repo and reverse repo transactions

IFRS:As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, when an entity sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters
into an agreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (REPO), the
arrangement is treated as a loan and the underlying asset continues to be recognized at amortized cost in the
entity’s financial statements. The difference between selling price and repurchase price will be treated as
interest expense. The same rule applies to the opposite side of the transaction (reverse repo).

Bangladesh Bank: As per DOS Circular Letter # 06 dated 15 July 2010 & subsequent clarification in DOS
Circular # 02 dated 23 June 2013, when a bank sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an
agreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (REPO or stock
lending), the arrangement is accounted for as normal sales transactions and the financial assets are
derecognized in the seller's book and recognized in the buyer’s book.

ix) Financial guarantees

IFRS: As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value plus transaction cost that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial liabilities. The financial guarantee liability is subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount of loss allowance for expected credit losses as per impairment requirement and the amount
initially recognized less, income recognized in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15. Financial
guarantees are included within other liabilities.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003.financial guarantees such as L/C, L/G
will be treated as off balance sheet items. No liability is recognized for the guarantee except the cash margin
and 1% general provision for all contingent liabilities.

x) Cash and cash equivalents
IFRS: Cash and cash equivalents items should be reported as cash item as per IAS 7:Statement of Cash
Flows.

Bangladesh Bank:As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, Cash and Cash-equivalents consist of
cash with Bangladesh Bank, with its agent bank(s), government securities (prize bond) and deposits with
other banks. Some cash and cash equivalent items such as money at call and on short notice, treasury bills,
Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bond are not shown as cash and cash equivalents. Money at call and on
short notice presented on the face of the balance sheet, and treasury bills, prize bonds are shown in
investments.

xi) Non-banking assets
IFRS: No indication of non-banking assets is found in any IFRS.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 22 dated 20September2021, there is a separate balance sheet
item titled as non-banking assets that exists in the standard format prescribed by BRPD Circular # 14 dated
25 June 2003.

xii) Cash flow statement

IFRS: Cash flow statement, which educates stakeholders about fund movement, can be prepared using
either the direct method or the indirect method as per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. The presentation is
selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most appropriate for the business or industry. The
method selected is applied consistently.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, cash flow should be a mixture of direct
and indirect method.

Balance with Bangladesh Bank:
IFRS: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other assets as it is not available for use in day-to-
day operations as per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows.

Bangladesh Bank: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as cash and cash equivalents.

xiv) Presentation of intangible assets
IFRS: Intangible assets must be identified and recognized, and the disclosure must be given as per IAS 38:
Intangible Assets.

Bangladesh Bank: There is no regulation for intangible assets in BRPDCircular # 14 dated 25 June 2003.

xv) Off-balance sheet items
IFRS: There is no concept of off-balance sheet items in any IFRS; hence there is no requirement for
disclosure of off-balance sheet items on the face of the balance sheet.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, off balance sheet items must be
disclosed separately on the face of the balance sheet. Accordingly, the Bank has recognized the following off
balance sheet items:

- Acceptances and endorsements

- Letters of guarantee

- Irrevocable letters of credit

- Bills for collection

- Foreign exchange contracts
xvi) Disclosure of appropriation of profit
IFRS: There is no requirement to show appropriation of profit on the face of Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, an appropriation of profit should be
disclosed in the face of profit and loss account.

xvii) Loans and advance net of provision
IFRS: Loans and advances should be presented net of provisions.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June2003, provision on loans and advances should
be presented separately as liability and cannot be netted off against loans and advances.[Also refer to Note
2.16: Compliance of International Accounting Standards (IAS) and InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)]

X Provision on undrawn loan commitments

IFRS: As per IFRS 9 bank shall recognize credit losses on undrawn loan commitments such as Letter of
Credit(L/C), Letter of Guarantee (L/G) etc. as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flow that are due by the customer if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that bank
expects to receive.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 07 dated 21 June 2018 and BRPD Circular # 14 dated 23
September 2012, the Bank is required to maintain provision at 1% rate against off-balance sheet exposures
(which includes all types of undrawn loan commitments).

xix) Uniform Accounting Policy

In several case Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission guidelines
categorize,recognize, measure and present financial instruments differently from those prescribed in IFRS 10.
As such some disclosure, presentation and measurement requirements of IFRS 10 cannot be made in
financial statements. [Also refer to Note 2.16 Compliance of International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)].

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, as mentioned in note no.1.05 has been
consolidated in accordance with IFRS10: Consolidated Financial Statements. Intra-company transactions,
balances and intra-group gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

The total profit of the Company and its subsidiarieshas been shown in the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
with the proportion of profit after taxation. All assets and liabilities of the Company and of its subsidiariesare
shown in the consolidated Balance Sheet. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to a common
reportingyear(also called ‘accounting year’) ended 31December 2022.
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Conversion Policy:

The conversion policy of Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) and MTB Exchange (UK) Limited is given below:

Details Price Rate of GBP for MTB UK | Rate of USD for OBU | Rate of EURO for OBU
For assets & liabilities Closing price 124.3024 103.2970 109.7117
For income & expenses Average price 115.0052 93.9002 98.5313

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material

items:

a) Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as 'Held for Trading (HFT)' at present value using
marking to market concept with gain credited to revaluation reserve but loss charged to income
statement.

b) Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as 'Held to Maturity (HTM)' at present value using
amortization concept.

The accounting policies, unless otherwise stated have been consistently applied by the company and

consistent with those of the previous year.

Going concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates

the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The accompanying

financial statements do not include any adjustments should the Bank be unable to continue as a going
concern.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) currency, which is the Bank’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in BDT has been rounded to the nearest BDT.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Accounting Standards (IASs) and
InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. It also requires
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.

The most perilous estimates and judgments are applied to the Provision for impairment of loans &
investments and Employees benefits.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. However, the estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revision is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised.

Materiality, aggregation and off setting

Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the financial
statements. No amount has been set off unless the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends
to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant
accounting standards.

The values of any asset or liability as shown in the balance sheet are not off-set by way of deduction from
another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such incident existed during the period.
Comparative information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank and are consistent with those used in the
previous year. Comparative information is reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the
current presentation.

Foreign currency ti
a) Foreign currency
Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, i.e. the functional currency. The financial
statements of the group and the Bank are presented in BDT which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currencies translation

Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent BDT using the ruling exchange rates on the dates
of respective transactions as per IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. Foreign
currency balances held in US Dollar are converted into BDT at weighted average rate of inter-bank market as
determined by Bangladesh Bank on the closing date of every month. Balances held in foreign currencies
other than US Dollar are converted into equivalent US Dollar at buying rates of New York closing of the
previous day and converted into equivalent BDT. The resulting exchange transaction gains and losses are
included in the profit and loss account.

a) Commitments
Commitments /Contingent liabilities for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements and financialstatements of Bank have been translated at contracted rates.
Contingent liabilities/commitments for letter of credit, letter ofguarantee and acceptance denominated in
foreign currencies have been expressed in BDT at the rate of revaluation rate.

1and

b)

2.1.10 Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flowsand under the

guideline of Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June2003. The Statement shows the Structure of

Changes in cash and cash equivalents during the financial period.

2.1.11 Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity reflects information about the increase or decrease in net assets or

wealth. Statement of changes in equity has been prepared in accordance withlAS 1: Presentation of Financial

Statementsand relevant guidelines of Bangladesh Bank& BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003.

2.1.12 Liquidity statement

The liquidity statement has been prepared in accordance with remaining maturity grouping of Assets and

Liabilities as of the close of the period as per following basis.

a) Balance with other banks and financial institutions, money at call and short notice etc. are on the basis of
their maturity term.

b) Investments are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

c) Loans and advances/investments are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

d) Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful lives.

e) Other assets are on the basis of their realization/amortization.

f)  Borrowing from other banks, financial institutions and agents etc. are as per their maturity/repayment
terms.

g) Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and past trend of withdrawal by the
depositors.

h)  Provision and other liabilities are on the basis of their payments/adjustments schedule.

2113 Accounting for contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The bank recognized provisions only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation

and when a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. No provision is recognized for:

a) Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future event not wholly within the control of
the bank; or

b) Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because
« ltis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation; or
¢ Areliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.
2.1.14 Reporting period
These financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries cover the period from 01 January to 31December
2022.
22 Assets and basis of their valuation
221  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with Bangladesh

Bank and highly liquid financial assets which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and

are used by the Bank management for its short-term commitments.

222 Investments

All investment in securities is initially recognized at cost, being fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associated with the investment. Premiums are amortized and discounts accredited, using
the effective yield method and are taken to discount income. The valuation methods of investments used are:
a) Held to maturity (HTM)
Investments which have ‘fixed or determinable payments’ and are intended to be ‘held to maturity’ other
than those that meet the definition of ‘held at amortized cost, are classified as held to maturity (HTM).
These investments are subsequently measured at present value as per Bangladesh Bank guideline.
b) Held for trading (HFT)

Investments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in short trading or if designated as such by the management. After initial recognition, investments are
measured at fair value and any change in the fair value is recognized in the statement of income for the
period in which it arises.

a) Revaluation

As per the DOS Circular letter # 05 dated 26 May2008 & subsequent amendment DOS Circular #05
dated 28 January2009 and DOS Circular # 21 dated 27 October2009, HFT securities are revalued on
weekly basis and HTM securities are amortized on yearly basis. The HTM securities are also revalued if
they are reclassified to HFT category with the Board’s approval. Any gain or loss on revaluation of HTM
securities is recognized in the statement of changes in equity. Gain/loss on revaluation of HFT securities
is recognized in the profit and loss account on weekly basis and gain on revaluation is transferred to
statement of changes in equity on monthly basis.

Valuation of investments has been shown as under Government treasury bills and bonds (HTM) at
present value (using amortization concept), Government treasury bills and bonds (HFT) at present value
(using marking to market concept).

b) Investment in listed securities
These securities are bought and held primarily for the purpose of selling them in future or held for
dividend income which are reported at cost. Unrealized gains are not recognized in the profit and loss
statement. But provision was made for diminution in value of investment.

c) Investment in unquoted securities
Investment in unlisted securities is reported at cost under cost method. Adjustment is given for any
shortage of book value over cost for determining the carrying amount of investment in unlisted securities.

As per Bangladesh Bank DOS Circular # 04 dated 15 June 2010and DOS Circular # 04 dated 24
November 2011, provision for diminution in value of investment was made by netting of unrealized gain/
loss of shares from market price/ book value less cost price.

Besides, the Bank complied with BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003 as follows, “All investments in
shares and securities (both dealing and investment) should be revalued at the year end. The quoted
shares should be valued as per market price in the stock exchange(s) and unquoted shares as per book
value of last audited balance sheet. Provision should be made for any loss arising from diminution in
value of investments.”

d) Investment in subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is accounted for under the cost method of accounting in the Bank’s financial
statements in accordance with the IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements.

e) Value of investments has been shown as under:

Initial Measurement after .
Investment class = s Recording of change
recognition recognition
Government treasury Cost Marking to I;gzzunttran:riz"e%c;%e pr?rg;sg:sed lo?z
bills (HFT) market/fair value f
revaluation reserve.
Government treasu Loss transferred to profit and loss
. Y Cost Amortized cost account and gain transferred to
bills (HTM) ;
revaluation reserve.
B Loss transferred to profit and loss
Government treasury Marking to .
Cost h account and income transferred to
bonds (HFT) market/fair value .
revaluation reserve.
Government treasury . Amortized gainfloss transferred to
bonds (HTM) Cost Amortized cost revaluation reserve.
Zero coupon bond Cost Amortized cost None
Prize bond Cost None None
Debentures Cost At cost price None
Unquoted shares and Loss transferred to profit and loss
Cost None ! .
debenture account but no unrealized gain recorded.
Quoted shares Cost Cost Loss transferred tov proflt' and loss
account but no unrealized gain recorded.
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Loans, advances and provisions

Loans and advances are stated at gross amount. General provisions on unclassified loans &off-balance sheet
exposures, specific provisions for classified loans and interest suspense account thereon are shown under
other liabilities. Provision against classified loans and advances is made on the basis of quarter-end review
by the management and instruction contained in BRPD Circular # 51, 14,63, 59, 56, 52, 17, 16, 13, 03, 01,
15, 08, 16, 05, 19, 14, 10, 01, 07 & 13 dated 18 December 2022, 22 June 2022, 31 December 2020, 30
December 2020, 10 December 2020, 20 October 2020, 28 September 2020, 21 July 2020, 15 June 2020, 21
April 2019, 20 February 2018, 27 September 2017, 02 August 2015, 18 November 2014, 29 May 2013, 27
December 2012, 23 September 2012, 18 September 2007, 03 January 2018, 21 June 2018, 18 October 2018
respectively.

Interest on loans and advances

Interest is calculated on daily product basis but debited to the party’s loan account quarterly. No interest is
charged on loans and advances which are classified as bad and loss. Interest is calculated on unclassified
loans and advances (only standard) and recognized as income during the period. Interest calculated on
classified loans and advances (including special mention accounts) as per Bangladesh Bank circulars is kept
in interest suspense account and credited to income on realization. Interest suspense and penal interest (if
any) calculated on classified loans and advances are taken into income in the period of its receipt from the
defaulting borrowers.

Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization.
Recovery of written off loans and advances are taken into income in the period of its receipts from the
defaulting borrowers.

Provision for loans and advances

Provision for loans and advances are made on the basis of quarter as well as year-end review by the
management following instructions contained in BRPD Circular # 14, 16 & 52 dated 23 September2012, 21
July 2020 & 20 October 2020respectively and subsequent changes of Bangladesh Bank. The percentage of
provision on loans and advance are given below:

Rate of provision

RATE OF PROVISION

Particulars

Small & Medium Enterprise

Consumer Financing Loans

Short Term
Agri.
Credit &
Microcredit

All
other
credit

to
Other Medium BHs/M

Enterprise | Bs/SD
Financing s

Cottage, Micro

than Only and Small

HF & HF e Card Credits under
LP CMSME

uc

Standard 1% 2% 1% 2% 2% 0.25% 0.25% 2% 1%

SMA 0% 2% 1% 2% 2% 0.25% 0.25% 2% 1%

Cla
ssifi
ed

SS 5% 20% 20% 20% 20% 5% 20% 20% 20%

DF 5% 50% 50% 50% 50% 20% 50% 50% 50%

B/L 100% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 100% 100% 100% | 100%
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Presentation of loans and advances
Loans and advances are shown at gross amount as assets while interest suspense and loan loss provision
against classified loans &advances are shown as liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Security against Loans

a. Project loan: Project land and building are taken as security in the form of mortgage and plant &
machinery are taken in the form of hypothecation.

b.  Working Capital: Goods are taken as security in the form of hypothecation along with land and building
mortgage. Listed securities of stock exchange, fixed deposits, assignments of receivables etc. are also
taken as security.

Bills Purchased and Discounted
a. Bills purchased and discounted do not include Government Treasury bills and have been classified into
two sub-heads viz.:
i. Payable in Bangladesh;
ii. Payable outside Bangladesh.
b.  The bills purchased and discounted have been analyzed as per the maturity grouping.

Written off loans and advances

Loans and advances are written off to the extent that (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery, (ii) and
against which legal cases are filed and classified as bad loss more than five years as per guidelines of
Bangladesh Bank and (iii) special permission of Bangladesh Bank. These write off however, will not
undermine/affect that claim amount against the borrowers. Detailed memorandum records for all such write
off accounts are meticulously maintained and followed up.

Property, plant and equipment

a)Recognition

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment (Fixed assets) shall be recognized as an asset, if and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment have been accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation (except land)
as per |IAS-16: Property, Plant and Equipment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent cost of enhancement of an existing asset is recognized as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit & loss account during the financial
periods which are incurred.

a) Depreciation

Category of Fixed Assets Method of Depreciation Rate of Depreciation

Land N/A N/A

Immovable Property Reducing balance method 2.50%

10%
20%

Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipment

Reducing balance method
Reducing balance method

Computer & Peripherals Straight line method 3-10 Yrs

Motor Vehicles Straight line method 5Yrs

3-10 Yrs

Intangible Assets Straight line method

b)Disposal of fixed assets
On disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the fixed assets
schedule and gains or losses on such disposal are reflected in the profit and loss accountas per provision
of IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment.

c) Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital Work-in-Progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the
construction of building, system development, awaiting capitalization.

d)Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets have been capitalized as part of the cost of the assets.

e)Impairment
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets
should be reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Intangible assets

Software represents the value of computer application software licensed use of the Bank, other than software
applied to the operation software system of computers. Software acquired by the Bank is stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure incurred on software is
capitalized only when it enhances and extends the economic benefits of computer software beyond their
original specifications and lives and such cost is recognized as capital improvement and added to the original
cost of software. Software is amortized using the reducing balance method at the rate of 20%.

Other assets
Other assets include all assets not covered specifically in other areas of the supervisory activity and such
accounts may be quite insignificant in the overall financial condition of the bank.

Provision for other assets

Other assets have been classified as per BRPD Circular # 04 dated 12 April 2022 andCircular #14 dated 25
June 2001 of Bangladesh Bank and necessary provisions made thereon accordingly and for items not
covered under the circular adequate provisions have been made considering their reliability.

Receivables
Receivables are recognized when there is a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from
another entity.

Leases

The Bankfollows IFRS 16 which has been effective from 01 January 2019. As IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17:
Leases, the Bank has made recognition, measurement and disclosure in the financial statements of
31December 2021both as Lessee and Lessor as per IFRS 16.

The Bank as Lessee

The Bank assesses at initiation of a contract whether the contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration, then the Bank considers the contract as a lease contract.

The Bank as a lessee applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases, or, and lease of low value of assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payment and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

If tenor of a lease contract does not exceed twelve months from the date of initiation/application, the Bank
considers the lease period as short term in line with the recognition threshold of ROU assets as per Fixed
Asset policy of the Bank. In case of low value of lease assets, the Bank has set a materiality threshold which
is 0.10% of Total capital of the Bank. However, the bank used a flat threshold of BDT 20 million and above’
which is 0.062% of total capital of the bank as of 31December 2022. The reason behind considering the
materiality threshold of BDT 20 million and above is that the Bank operates many ATM booths, sub-branches
with short and single contracts; recording of which as ROU assets would inflate the balance sheet both in
assets and liabilities. Moreover, frequent changes of those establishments would create misreporting as well
as complexity in recording.

Right-of-use assets (ROU):

The bank recognizes the right-of-use assets (ROU) at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment of losses and adjusted for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ROU assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct cost incurred, and lease payment made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, or remaining period of the lease term.

The bank assessed all lease contracts live in2019 & up to December 2022 and recognized as RoU assets of
all leases, except short term and low value of assets as parameter guided by Bangladesh Bank and Banks’
own policy set as per IAS 16 and IFRS 16. The ROU assets are presented in the note no. 8 of these financial
statements.

Lease Liabilities (Bank as a lessee):

At the commencement of the lease, the bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed and variable lease
payment (less any adjustment for initial payment), and amount is expected to be paid under residual value of
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the bank and payment of penalties for terminating the lease.

In 2019 & up to December 2022, the bank reassessed all lease payment of existing contracts for remaining
period considering a cut-off date i.e. 01 January 2019. The lease liabilities are presented in the note 12.a.8 of
these financial statements.

The Bank as Lessor

Amount due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Bank’s net
investment in the leases (Note-7.a.3). Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Non-Banking Assets

Non-banking assets are acquired on account of the failure of a borrower to repay the loan in time after
receiving the decree from the court regarding the right and title of the mortgaged property. However, the bank
has no non-banking assets.

Liabilities and provision

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents include interest bearing borrowing redeemable
at call, on-demand and short-term deposits lodged for periods of less than 6 months. These items are
brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Interest paid or payable on these
borrowings is charged to the profit and loss account.

Deposits and other accounts

Deposits and other accounts include non-interest bearing current deposit redeemable at call, interests bearing
on demand and short term deposits, savings deposit, term deposit, margin, bills payable etc. These items are
brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balances.

Other liability

Other liability is recognized in the balance sheet according to the guideline of Bangladesh Bank and Income-
tax Ordinance, 1984, IAS37 and internal policy of the banks. Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized
in the financial statements when the bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Employee benefit scheme

The retirement benefits accrued for the employees of the Bank as on reporting date have been accounted for
in accordance with provisions oflAS 19: Employee Benefits. Bases of enumerating the retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Bank are outlined below:

a) Provident Fund

Provident fund benefits are given to the permanent employees of the Bank in accordance with Bank’s service
rules. Accordingly, a trust deed and provident fund rules were prepared. The Commissioner of Income Tax,
Taxes Zone 3, Dhaka has approved the Provident Fund as a recognized provident fund within the meaning of
section 2(52), read with the provisions of part-B of the First Schedule of Income-tax Ordinance, 1984. The
recognition took effect from 30 April 2001. The Fund is operated by a Board of Trustees consisting of 7
(seven) members. All confirmed employees of the Bank contribute 10% of their basic salary as a subscription
to the fund. The Bank also contributes equal amount of the employees’ contribution. Interest earned from the
investment is credited to the members’ account on yearly basis.
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b) Gratuity

The Bank operates a funded gratuity scheme approved by the National Board of Revenue. The Gratuity Fund
is managed separately by “Mutual Trust Bank Limited Employees Gratuity Fund” and any investment decision
out of this fund is also made by this trust.

As per gratuity scheme every permanent employee will get gratuity benefit as per following policy that
rendering their service without break:

Comg d years of Service Payment of Gratuity
8 years& above 2.00 basic for each year of service in MTB
7 years 1.70 basic for each year of service in MTB
6 years 1.35 basic for each year of service in MTB
5 years 1.00basic for each year of service in MTB

c) MTB Employees’ Welfare Fund

The welfare fund is subscribed by monthly contribution of the employees. The Bank also contributes to the
fund from time to time. The fund has been established to provide a token of appreciation or financial
assistance to the employees and their family members for education, funeral function etc. The fund is
governed and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04) members.

d) MTB Employees’ Medical Assistance Fund

Medical Assistance fund is subscribed by the employees as per policy. The Bank also contributes to the fund
from time to time. The fund has been established to provide medical assistance to the employees with
dependents. The fund is governed and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04)
members.

e) MTB Employees’ Hospitalization and Group Life Policy

The Bank, as an adherence to the best practice in the banking industry and to strengthen its corporate
culture, introduced the Group Life and Hospitalization policy for its employees and their dependents (spouse
and kids) effective from 01 January 2019.

f) MTB Employees’ Death Benefit Plan

The plan has been formed to provide financial benefit to the bereaved family of a deceased employee. The
Bank contributes to the fund from the annual profit of the Bank on requirement basis. The fund is governed
and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04) members.

g) MTB Foundation

The Bank, as part of corporate social responsibility, has established MTB Foundation for the benefit of the
community in which it operates and as part of its said responsibility it commits itself to human development,
poverty alleviation and overall national economic development. The Bank contributes to the fund from the
annual profit of the Bank on requirement basis. The fund is governed and administered by the Board of
trustees consisting of nine (09) members.

h) Incentive Bonus

Mutual Trust Bank Limited has started an incentive bonus scheme for its employees. This bonus amount is
distributed among the employees based on their performance. The bonus amount is paid annuallyand costs
are accounted for the period to which it relates.

Debt securities

The Bank issued a contingent-convertible Perpetual bond as additional Tier-1 capital having received
required approval from Bangladesh Bank and BSEC through private placement and bank issued 7-year non-
convertible floating rate subordinated debts in two phases mainly to increase Tier-2 capital having received
required approval from Bangladesh Bank and BSEC. Outstanding balance against the Bondsare stated in the
financial statements at principal amount and interest payable of which is reported under other liabilities.
Details of debt securities is given in note no. 13.a& annexure-D of the financial statements.

Taxation

a. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other period or are never taxable or deductible. Bank’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted the reporting period. Tax provision of the Group entities is made on taxable income of
subsidiaries at different rates applicable as per the ITO 1984 and the tax authority of the country where it is
incorporated.

b. Deferred tax

The Bank recognizes the current and deferred tax in the financial statements using the provisions of the
prevailing tax laws applicable in Bangladesh, as per IAS12 (Income Taxes) and BRPD Circular no. 11 dated
12 December 2011. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which such differences can be utilized. Deferred Tax
liabilities are also recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments and it is probable that
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates,
which are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realized.Details of
deferred tax assets or liabilities and amount recognized in profit and loss account for deferred tax income or
expense are given in note 9.a.4.2.1 in the financial statements.

Provision for Nostro Accounts

As per instructions contained in the Circular Letter # FEPD (FEMO)/01/2005-677, dated 13 September 2005
issued by Foreign Exchange Policy Department of Bangladesh Bank, the Bank is not required to make a
provision regarding the un-reconciled debit balance of Nostro accounts as on the reporting date in these
financials as there are no un-reconciled entries which are outstanding more than 3 months.

Capital and shareholders’ equity

Capital management

The Bank has a capital management process in place to measure, deploy and monitor its available capital
and assess its adequacy. This capital management process aims to achieve four major objectives; exceed
regulatory thresholds and meet longer-term internal capital targets, maintain strong credit rating, manage
capital levels commensurate with the risk profile of the Bank and provide the Bank’s shareholders with
acceptable returns.

Capital is managed in accordance with the board approved capital management planning from time to time.
Senior management develops the capital strategy and oversees the capital management planning of the
Bank. The Bank’s finance and risk management department are key to implementing the Bank’s capital
strategy and managing capital. Capital is managed by using both regulatory control measure and internal
matrix.

Paid-up capital

Paid-up capital represents total amount of shareholder capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to vote at shareholders meetings. In the event of a winding-up of the company ordinary
shareholders rank after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of
liquidation.

Statutory reserve

The Statutory reserve has been maintained @ 20% of profit before tax in accordance with provisions of
section 24 of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and amendment thereon).

Share Premium

Share premium is the capital that the Bank raise upon issuing shares that is in excess of the nominal value

of the shares. The share premium shall be utilized in accordance with provisions of section 57 of the
Companies Act, 1994 and as directed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission in this respect.

Revaluation Reserve on Govt. Securities

Revaluation reserve represent revaluation on Treasury bond (HFT and HTM) in accordance with the DOS
Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2008 & DOS Circular # 05, dated 28 January 2009.

Non-Controlling Interest

Non-Controlling Interestin business is that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent.

Off Balance Sheet items

Under general banking transactions, liabilities against acceptance, endorsements and other obligations and
bills against which acceptance has been given and claims exists there against, have been shown as Off-
Balance Sheet items. Provision for off balance sheet items is made as per BRPD Circular #14 dated23
September 2012 and BRPD Circular # 01 dated03 January 2018.

Memorandum items

Memorandum items are maintained for those items for which the Bank has only a business responsibility and
no legal commitment.

Revenue recognition

The Revenue during the period has been recognized according to the provision of IFRS15: Revenue from
Contracts with Customers,as well as Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

Interest income

In terms of the provisions of the IFRS15:Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the interest income is

recognized on accrual basis. Interest on loans and advances ceases to be taken into income when such

advances are classified.

a) Interest on unclassified loans and advances (except SMA) has been accounted for as income on accrual
basis and calculated on daily product basis but charged and accounted for quarterly and in some cases
yearly;

b) Interest on classified loans and advances has been credited to interest suspense account with actual
receipt of interest there from having credited to income as and when received as per instruction of
Bangladesh Bank;

c) Nointerestis changed on loans and advances which have been classified as bad/loss;

d) Commission and discount on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization;
and

e) Recovery of written off loans and advances are taken into income in the period of its receipts from the
defaulting borrowers.

Investment income

Interest income on investments is recognized on accrual basis. Capital gain on investments in shares is also
included in investment income. Capital gain is recognized when it is realized.

« Income on investment in treasury bills, bonds, preference shares and debenture etc. other than equity
shares has been accounted for on accrual basis.

Govt. securities (HTM) are revalued on accrual basis and effect of such revaluation gain has been credited
to Asset Revaluation Reserve account.

Dividend on equity shares is recognized during the period in which it is declared and duly approved.

Net increase in securities held to maturity during the period due to the valuation at mark-to-market basis
has been credited to income statement.

Fees and commission income

e Commission charged to customers on letters of credit and letters of guarantee are credited toincome at
the time of effecting the transactions.

e Fees and Commissions on bills discounted, purchased & others are recognized at the time of realization.

e Foreign currency transactions are converted into BDT at prevailing on the dates of such transactions and
exchange gains or losses arising out of such transactions are recognized as income or expense for the
period and dealt with exchange account.

Dividend income on shares
Dividend income on shares is recognized during the period in which it is declared and ascertained.

Other operating income
Other operating income is recognized at the time when it is realized.

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings
Interest paid on deposits, borrowing and other expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

Operating expenses
Expenses incurred by the bank are recognized on accrual basis. Expenses incurred by the Bank shown in
these financial statements are inclusive of VAT where applicable as per the Value Added Tax Act, 2012.

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income is not prepared in accordance withlAS1: Presentation of Financial Statements.
However, elements of other comprehensive income, if any, are shown in the statement of changes in equity.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33: Earnings per Share which has
been shown on the face of statement of profit and loss account. This has been calculated by dividing the
basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of
ordinary shares issued during the year. The basis of computation of number of shares is in line with the
provision of IAS 33: Earnings per Share.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is required to calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during
the year under review.

Reconciliation of inter-bank/inter-branch account

Accounts with regard to inter-bank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) are reconciled regularly and
there are no material differences which may affect the financial statements significantly. Un-reconciled
entries/balances in the case of inter-branch transactions as on the reporting date are not material.

Proposed dividend

Final dividend is recognized when it is approved by the shareholders in AGM. However, the proposed
dividend for the year 2022 has not been recognized as a liability in the balance sheet in accordance with IAS
10: Events after the Reporting Period. Dividend payable to the Bank’s shareholders is recognized as a liability
and deducted from the shareholders’ equity in the period in which the shareholders’ right to receive payment
is established.
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Operating segment

As perlFRS- 8: The Group has identified following five reportable segments which are the Group's major
strategic business units/entities. The strategic business units offer different products and services, and are
managed separately based on the management and internal reporting structure of the group. For each of the
strategic business units, the Group's/Bank's Management Committee reviews internal management reports
on quarterly basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the reportable segments:

Name Description
Deals with the full range of commercial banking products and services
o | DBO (Domestic Banking Operation) | offered by four different business units: Corporate, Commercial, Retail
g Banking and Treasury.
. . Deals with loans, deposits and other transactions and balances in freel!
OBU (Offshore Banking Unit) convertible currencieé)with eligible corporate customers. Y
= | MTB Securities Limited It buys, sells and deals in shares, debentures and other securities on
2 behalf of customers and does margin lending etc.
% It offers issue management, underwriting, portfolio management, corporate
3 | MTB Capital Limited advisory services to the clients including advisory services on merger and
2 amalgamation, capital restructuring, bond services etc.
8 MTB Exchange (UK) Limited :iiizzljn\:vith trade finance and off-shore banking business in United

Performance is measured based on segment revenue and profit, as included in the internal management
reports that are reviewed by the Management Committee of the Bank. Segment profit is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments.

Litigation

The Bank is not a party to any lawsuits except those arising in the normal course of business, which were

filed against the default clients for non-performance in loans repayment and against various level of tax

authority regarding some disputed tax issues. The Bank, however, provides adequate provisions as per
guidelines of IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Write-Off

Write-off describes a reduction in recognized value. It refers to recognition of the reduced or zero value of an

asset. Generally, it refers to loan for which a return on the loan is now impossible or unlikely. The item’s

potential return is thus canceled and removed from (“written off”) the bank’s statement of financial position.

Recovery against debts written off/provided for is credited to revenue. Income is recognized where amounts

are either recovered and/or adjusted against securities/properties or advances there-against or are

considered recoverable.

Accounting for changes in policy, Accounting Estimates and Errors

According to IAS 8: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors, the effect of a change in

accounting policy and correction of error if material is to be applied retrospectively and change in an

accounting estimate is to be applied prospectively. The carrying amount of assets, liabilities, or equity may be
changed following a change in accounting estimates in the period of the change. The Bank followed the same
accordingly.

Related Party disclosures

A party is related to the company if:

a) directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party control, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the company; has an interest in the company that gives it significant influence over
the company; or has joint control over the company;

i) the party is an associate;

i) the party is a joint venture;

v) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the company or its parent;

v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant

voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the company, or of any entity

that is a related party of the company.

Compliance report on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and InternationalFinancial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs)

The Financial Reporting Council of Bangladesh (FRC) is the sole authority for adoption of International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). MutualTrust Bank
Limited has applied all the applicable IASs and IFRSs as adopted by the FRC while preparing the financial
statements. Details are given below:

Name of the International Accounting Standards (IAS) IAS No. Status
Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied*
Inventories 2 N/A
Statement of Cash Flows 7 Applied*
Accounting policies, Changes in accounting Estimates & Errors 8 Applied
Events after the Reporting Period 10 Applied
Income Taxes 12 Applied
Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied
Employees Benefits 19 Applied
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government 20 NA
Assistance
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 21 Applied
Borrowing Costs 23 Applied
Related Party Disclosures 24 Applied
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 26 N/A
Separate Financial Statements 27 Applied
Investment in Associates 28 N/A
Interest in Joint Ventures 31 N/A
Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 Applied*
Earnings per share 33 Applied
Interim Financial Reporting 34 Applied
Impairment of Assets 36 Applied
Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Applied*
Intangible Assets 38 Applied
Investment Property 40 N/A
Agriculture 41 N/A

International Fi ial Reporting Standards (IFRS) IFRS No. Status
First-time Adoption of Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard 1 N/A
Shares Based Payment 2 N/A
Business Combination 3 Applied
Insurance Contracts 4 N/A
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation 5 N/A
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 6 N/A
Financial Instruments: Disclosures 7 Applied*
Operating Segments 8 Applied
Financial Instruments 9 Applied*
Consolidated Financial Statements 10 Applied
Joint Arrangements 11 N/A
Disclosure of Interests in other Entities 12 N/A
Fair Value Measurement 13 Applied*
Regulatory Deferral Accounts 14 N/A
Revenue from contracts with customers 15 Applied
Leases 16 Applied

* Bangladesh Bank is the prime regulatory body for banks in Bangladesh. Some requirements of Bangladesh
Bank’s rules and regulations contradict with the provision of IAS/IFRS as marked above and described in
note 2.1.1As such the bank has departed from those contradictory requirements of IAS/IFRS in order to
comply with the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank.

Risk Management

Risk is an integral part of banking business, and MTB aims at delivering superior shareholder value by
achieving an appropriate trade-off between risks and return. The policies and procedures established for this
purpose are continuously reviewed in our quest to benefit from a blend of local and international
practices.MTB conducts its risk management activities following six core risk guidelines of Bangladesh Bank
and Basel norms. At the directives of Bangladesh Bank, MTB has established a separate Risk Management
Division (RMD) to identify, measure, monitor and manage risks more effectively and efficiently. MTB’s Risk
management process is accomplished at strategic level, managerial level and at operational level. At strategic
level, MTB Board of Directors (BOD), through Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) & senior
management, sets up risk governance structure & risk philosophy, endorses risk strategies, reviews &
approves risk policies as well as the threshold limits of risks that may be taken in line with Bank’s risk
appetite. These limits are continuously monitored by an experienced risk management team and overseen by
BRMC. At managerial level, policies and strategies formulated by BOD are implemented by middle
management or divisions/departments/units devoted to risk reviews. RMD reports high-risk related matters,
identified by the management-level risk committee to the BRMC. RMD also submits periodic stress testing
results to the BOD as well. Operational level encompasses on-the-line risk management, where risks are
actually created at front office or at credit desk of the bank.

MTB’s risk management in the following areas, among others, is mentioned briefly:

(a) Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk due to a borrower’s inability to meet its financial obligations to the lender. The credit risk
is generally made up of transaction risk or default risk and portfolio risk. We have standardized credit
approval processes. Credit risk is controlled through segmental exposure limits to various industries and
sectors, prudential exposure and substantial exposure ceiling and risk mitigation by obtaining collateral and
guarantees.

The Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Board. In
addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the Bank has also framed Board approved credit policy and
ensures compliance with regulatory requirements, more particularly in respect of Exposures norms, Assets
Classification guidelines, Capital Adequacy guideline, etc. of Bangladesh Bank/other Statutory Authorities.

Credit Risk is monitored by the Bank account wise and compliance with the risk limits/fexposure cap approved
by the Board is ensured. The quality of internal control system is also monitored and in-house expertise has
been built up to tackle all the facets of Credit Risk.

The Bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. Credit Grid
has been constituted at Head office level for considering fresh/enhancements proposals. The Bank assesses
various risk factors for new products prior to its introduction.

(b) Market Risk

Marketrisk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument as a result of
changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates, equity and commodity prices.

i. Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Foreign Exchange Risk is a measure by the variance of the domestic currency value of an asset, liability or
operating income that is attributable to unanticipated change in the exchange rates. Simply, it is the risk that
relates to gains/losses that arise due to fluctuations in the exchange rates.

In view of the significance of the market risk and in order to aggregate all such risks at a single department
and to bring expertise in such functions, the concept of treasury has evolved. Today’s financial institutions
engage in activities from import, export and remittance to complex derivatives involving basic foreign
exchange and money market to complex structured products. All these require a high degree of expertise that
is difficult to achieve in the transactions originating from departments and as such the expertise in housed in a
separate department i.e. Treasury.

MTB has already segregated Treasury functions in three separate wings i.e. Front office, Back office and Mid
office.

In compliance with the requirement of Bangladesh Bank’s Foreign Exchange Risk Management guidelines,
Treasury department is performing the foreign exchange dealing in an appropriate manner and managing
risks of the organization’s overall balance sheet as well as the capital of the Bank.

ii.Interest Rate Risk

MTB’s focus is mainly on interest rate risk arising from conduct of normal business. Failure to identify the
risks associated with business and failure to take timely measures in giving a sense of direction threatens the
very existence of the institutions. It is therefore, imperative for the bank to form a “Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO)” with the senior management as its members to control and better manage its Balance
Sheet Risk.

In compliance with the requirement of Bangladesh Bank’s Asset Liability Management guidelines, MTB has
formed “Asset Liability Management Committee” (ALCO) with the senior executives. The Committee meets
once every month to set and review strategies on Asset Liability Management (ALM).

MTB ALM desk performs Money Market activities, manages liquidity and interest rate risk of the bank and
understands market dynamics i.e. competition, potential target markets etc., updates the balance sheet
movements and complies with the statutory obligations as well as the risk elements involved with the
business.

i.Equity Risk
Equity risk arises from movement in market value of securities. The investment committee monitors the risks
under a well-designed policy framework.

(c) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events. Operational risks in the Bank are managed through a comprehensive and well-
articulated internal control framework. Material losses are regularly analyzed by cause and actions are taken to
improve system and controls to prevent recurrence in the future.
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MTB has restructured Internal Control and Compliance Department (ICCD) headed by a senior level executive
in light of Core Risk guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The Department is comprised of three divisions; Audit and
Inspection Division, Compliance Division and Monitoring Division. The Bank has developed Internal Control
and Compliance Policy duly approved by the Board of Directors, complying with the directives of the revised
guidelines of Bangladesh Bank on ICC in Banks.

As a tool of Internal Control, the Audit and inspection teams undertake periodic and special audit and
inspection on the branches and departments/divisions of Head Office in order to sort out the weaknesses and
defects in the control process and report to the management for taking corrective measures to protect the
interests of the Bank.

The Compliance and Monitoring Divisions of this department ensure timely and proper compliance of all
regulatory instructions and internal policies and procedures in the day-to-day operation of the Bank by way of
using various control tools. They assess the operational risk and take appropriate measures to mitigate the
same for smooth operation of the Bank. ICCD reports serious non-compliances detected by internal and
external auditors with up-to-date compliance position thereto, large financial risk exposures, control
weaknesses etc. to the Audit Committee of the Board for review and taking appropriate measures.

The ICCD also ensures clear definition of organizational structure, appropriate assignment, accountability and
delegation of authorities to functional management to create control and compliance culture within the
organization with active guidance and supervision of senior management and Board of Directors.

Business entities today exist in a highly competitive world. They are constantly innovating to meet their
business objectives providing essential and unique services to their customers. Technology advances have
enabled them to achieve their varied strategies. And yet, the threats of disaster, on account of business
interruption, are not extinct. In fact, they have also evolved along with the technology. Keeping that in mind
MTB has taken up its Business Continuity Planning (BCP) as the most significant challenges working out a
way to prevent, if possible, and manage the consequences of a disaster, limiting it to the extent that a business
can afford. Besides BCP, the Bank is also focusing on combating security threats as well. In keeping with our
centralized management model, each branch within the Bank has its own ICT systems. Actions taken include
the updating of software and analyzing new software, enhancing ICT related controls, training of staff in
system knowledge and sharing of best practices between branch users.

(d) Money Laundering Risk

Money Laundering risk of Financial Institutions lies with the involvement in any single transaction or series of
transactions that assists a criminal in keeping, concealing or disposing of proceeds derived from illegal
activities. So it is a major threat to the banks and non-bank financial institutions.

Mutual Trust Bank (MTB), as a compliant bank, is firmly determined not to let money launderers and terrorists
or perpetrators to use it as a channel to launder money or finance terrorism in any possible way. Hence, MTB
has its own Anti Money Laundering (AML) & Combating Financing of Terrorism (CFT) compliance program
which is designed considering the size & range of activities, complexity of operations and the nature & degree
of Money Laundering & Terrorist Financing risks faced by the bank. Certainly, it is designed as per the
prevailing laws (i.e. Money Laundering Prevention Act, 2012 (Amendment 2015), The Anti-Terrorism Act,
2009 (Amended- 2012 & 2013), rules (i.e. Money Laundering Prevention Rules, 2013, Anti-Terrorism Rules,
2013), BFIU guidelines (i.e. Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk Management Guidelines),
circulars & instruction and international standards. MTB applies risk sensitive Customer Due Diligence (CDD)
measures, monitors business relationships and records suspicious transactions pursuant to the national
regulations and international standards.

MTB has developed its own Money Laundering (ML) & Terrorist Financing (TF) Risk Management Guideline
entailing the customer acceptance policy and the ML & TF Risk Assessment Guideline. The customer
acceptance policy incorporates the detail customer due diligence procedure for acceptance/rejection of
customer, procedures to open & operate different types of account. The ML & TF Risk Assessment Guideline
incorporates the risk register in line with BFIU guideline. Department has been reformed as ‘Central
Compliance Unit (CCU)" under the direct supervision of the MD & CEO which consists of 8 (eight) members
having expertise in the field of general banking and information technology. Every year, the MD & CEO of the
bank makes statement of commitment in writing to all employees that clearly sets forth MTB's policy against
Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing & Proliferation Financing.

(e) Fraud and Forgeries

Fraud Detection and Management Process: The Bank has its board approved Fraud Management Policy.
Internal Audit (IA) team conducts surprise audit on all MTB branches and offices of the Head Office at least
once in a year (high risk branches are audited half-yearly basis). While auditing branches and offices, the
Internal Audit (IA) teams thoroughly check the operational activities of the branches/offices including
transactions in various accounts and search for any irregularities occurred in those accounts. IA teams also
monitor the staff accounts and if necessary investigate the suspicious transactions and report the same to the
management. |A teams also conduct investigation into specific allegations and submits reports to the
management for action. Senior management of the bank also conducts regular visit to MTB branches and
advises the branch officials to comply with all the regulatory instructions, policies and procedures of the bank.

Implementation of BASEL-IIl

Bangladesh Bank issued ‘Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) for banks’ (RevisedRegulatory
Capital Framework in line with Basel-lll) vide its BRPD Circular 18 dated 21 December 2014 that Basel-Ill
reporting start from January 2015 and full implementation will start from January2021. The Basel-Ill rules on
capital consist of measures on improving the quality, consistency and transparency of capital, enhancing risk
coverage, introducing a supplementary leverage ratioand promoting counter-cyclical buffers and addressing
systemic risk and interconnectedness.

In 2021, the Bank is required to maintain minimum Common Equity Tier-1 (CET-1) capital ratio of 4.50%,
capital conservation buffer 2.50%, minimum CET-1 plus conservation buffer of 7.00%,minimum Tier-1 capital
ratio of 6.00%, minimum total capital ratio 10.00% and minimum totalcapital plus capital conservation buffer
12.50%
Pillar-l: Minimum Capital Requirement
Banks must hold minimum regulatory capital against Credit, Market and Operational Risk inherent with
Banking Business. Mutual Trust Bank Limited has adopted the following measurement approaches for
computing its Capital Adequacy Ratio:

- Standardized Approach for Credit Risk

-Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk, and

-Standardized Approach for Market Risk
Pillar-lI: Supervisory Review Process (SRP)
The Supervisory Review Process (the Second Pillar of Basel-lll) of the risk-based capital adequacyframework
is intended to ensure that banks have adequate capital to support all the risks in thebusiness and,
concurrently, to encourage banks to develop and utilize superior risk managementtechniques in monitoring
and managing risks. In compliance with the Pillar-Il guidelines of theBangladesh Bank under Basel-lll
framework, Mutual Trust Bank Limited has formulated its own Board approvedinternal Capital
AdequacyAssessment Process (ICAAP) to assess various risks that it is exposed to.Following Risk has to be
assessed for Adequate Capital Requirement under ICAAP as per Bangladesh Bank Guideline:

- Residual Risk

- Concentration Risk

- Liquidity Risk

- Reputation Risk

- Strategic Risk

- Settlement Risk

- Evaluation of Core Risk Management

- Environmental & Climate Change Risk

- Other Material Risks

Pillar-lll: Market Discipline

The purpose of market discipline is to establish transparency and discipline in the financial marketsso that
stakeholders can assess the position of a bank with respect to the assets held by it as wellas to identify the
risks relating to these assets and the capital adequacy to meet probable losses.For this purpose, banks have
to develop a set of disclosures containing information on the assets,risk exposures, risk assessment
processes and the capital adequacy to meet the risks. The Pillar-lil Disclosures are published on a yearly
basis on the Bank’s website also published in the Bank’sAnnual Report.

Audit Committee
In compliance to Bangladesh Bank’s circular, the Board of Directors has formed an Audit Committee
comprising of the following 4 (Four) Directors of the Board.

SI. No. Name of the Director Status with the Bank Status with the Committee
01. [ Ms. NasreenSattar Independent Director Chairman
02. [ Ms. Anika Chowdhury Director Member
03. Mr. Daniel Donald de Lange Director Member
04. [ Mr. Farug Ahmad Siddigi Independent Director Member

During the period, 04 (Four) meetings of the audit committee were held.

Audit committee reviews various audit/inspection reports at regular intervals. Upon scrutiny of the audit
objections and compliance, the committee advised the management to remain within the policy guidelines
and directives of the regulatory authorities.

As per circular, the committee places their report regularly to the board meetings of the Bank mentioning their
activities & recommendations of the internal control system, compliance of rules and regulations and
establishment of good governance within the organization.

Directors responsibility on statements
The Board of Directors takes the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements.

Credit rating of the Bank

As per BRPD Circular no. 6 dated 5 July 2006, the Bank has done its credit rating by Credit Rating
Information and Services Limited (CRISL) based on the audited financial statements as at and for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The following ratings have been awarded:

Particulars Periods Date of rating Validity Date It'::g Short term
Entity rating | January to December 2021 | 12 May 2022 | 11 May 2023 AA ST-2
Entity rating | January to December 2020 | 23 May 2021 | 22 May 2022 AA ST-2

Events after the reporting period

Material events after the reporting period need to be considered and appropriate adjustments/disclosures
accordingly are always made in the financial statements as per IAS 10: Events after the Reporting Period.
Board’s recommendation for dividend distribution is a common item presented in the note no. 53.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2023

General:

a) These financial statements are presented in BDT, which is the Bank’s functional currency. Figure
appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT.

b) The expenses, irrespective of capital or revenue nature, accrued/due but not paid have been provided for
in the books of the Bank.

c) Figures of previous year have been rearranged whenever necessary to conform to current period’s
presentation.

d) No Asset has been set off against any Liability except MTB General Account.

[ Amount in BDT |

Particulars [ 02 20
3.00 Consolidated cash

i. Cash in hand (including foreign currency)

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-3.a.1) 4,257,323,387 3,602,713,035

MTB Securities Limited 3,213,020 12,323,611

MTB Capital Limited 20,600 11,934

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited 2,134,212 2,449,942
4,262,691,279 3,617,498,522

ii. Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency)

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-3.a.2) 14,932,992,219 11,197,635,965
MTB Securities Limited - -
MTB Capital Limited -

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -
14,932,992,219 11,197,635,965
19,195,683,498 14,815,134,487

3.a Cash

Cash In Hand (Including Foreign Currency) 4,257,323,387 3,602,713,035

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency) 14,932,992,219 11,197,635,965
19,190,315,606 14,800,349,000

3.1 Cash In Hand (Including Foreign Currency)
Local Currency | 413,952,844 3,509,737,eﬁ|
Foreign Currency 74,077,856 69,126,089
4,208,030,701 3,578,913,947
Islamic Banking Branches 49,292,686 23,799,088
4,257,323,387 3,602,713,035
3.a.2 Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency)
With Bangladesh Bank:
Local Currency 11,209,311,590 9,642,188,956
Foreign Currency 3,199,338,734 1,201,410,389
With Sonali Bank (as agent of Bangladesh Bank-Local Currency) 211,852,805 243,309,042
14,620,503,129 11,086,908,387
Islamic Banking Branches 312,489,089 110,727,578
14,932,992,219 11,197,635,965
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Bangladesh Bank Adjustment Account represents outstanding transactions(net) originated but yet to be responded at the Balance Sheet date. However, the status
of unresponded entries as at 31 December 2022 is given below:

. . Number of p entry amount
Period of Unreconciliation Dr. o Br. o
Less than 3 months 42 12 (1,315,682,484) 423,699,067
|3 months to Less than 6 months - -
|6 months to Less than 12 months -
12 months and more ~ _
Total 2 12 (1,315,682,484)] 423,699,067

All unadjusted entries are subsequently adjusted on regular basis.

Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR ) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR )

Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) have been calculated and maintained in accordance with Section 33 of The Bank
Companies Act, 1991 (as amended in 2013) and Bangladesh Bank MPD circular no. 03 dated 09 April 2020, DOS circular no. 26 dated 19 August 2019 and
BRPD (P-3)/744(27)/2020-4086 for Offshore Banking Unit.

A. Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR )

As per Bangladesh Bank MPD circular no. 03 dated 09 April, 2020; bank has to maintain CRR 3.50% on daily basis and 4.00% on bi-weekly basis based on
weekly Average of Total Demand and Time Liabilities (ATDTL) of the base month which is two months prior to reporting month. The reserve maintained by MTB
as at 31 December 2022 is presented below.

B. Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) for Offshore banking Unit

As per Bangladesh Bank circular no. BRPD(P-3)/744(27)/2020-4086 dated 18 June, 2020; Offshore banking unit has to maintain CRR 1.50% on daily basis and
2.00% on bi-weekly basis based on weekly Average of Total Demand and Time Liabilities (ATDTL) of the base month which is two months prior to reporting
month. The reserve maintained by MTB as at 31 December 2022 is presented below.

Dec'2022 Dec'2021
i. Daily Bank's CRR Maintenance including Offshore Banking Unit Ratio in % BDT Million Ratio in % BDT Million
Required Reserve (3.50% of ATDTL) for DBO 3.50% 7,989.29 3.50% 6,980.17
Required Reserve (1.50% of ATDTL) for OBO 150% 230.29 1.50% 149.03
Total 8,219.58 Total 7,129.20
Actual Reserve Maintained 4.52% 10,317.33 4.49% 9,175.92
Surplus 2,097.75 2,046.72
ii.. Bi-weekly Bank's CRR Maintenance
Required Reserve (4.00% of ATDTL) for DBO 4.00% 9,130.61 4.00% 797733
Required Reserve (2.00% of ATDTL) for OBO 2.00% 307.05 2.00% 198.71
Total 9,437.66 Total 8,176.04
Actual Reserve Maintained 4.23% 9,663.07 4.08% 8,344.40
Surplus 21541 168.36

* Last bi-weekly average as of 31 December 2022

C. Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)

As per Section 33 of the Bank Company Act, 1991 & MPD circular no. 02 dated December 10, 2013 issued by Bangladesh Bank with effect from February 1,
2014, bank has to maintain SLR of minimum 13.00% based on weekly Average Total Demand and Time Liabilities (ATDTL) of the base month which is two
months prior to reporting month. SLR maintained by the bank as at 31 December 2022 is presented below.

Dec'2022 Dec'2021
Ratio in % BDT Million Ratio in % BDT Million
Required Reserve (13% of ATDTL) for DBO 13.00% 29,674.50 13.00% 25,926.34
Required Reserve (13% of ATDTL) for OBO 13.00% 1,995.82 13.00% 1,291.63
Total 31,670.32 Total 27,217.97
Actual Reserve Maintained 20.39% 46,533.65 21.61% 45,254.25
Surplus 14,863.33 18,036.28
i. Components of Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) (BDT Million)
Cash in Hand 4,208.03 3,578.91
Excess Cash Reserve* 879.66 999.88
Balance with Agent Bank (Sonali Bank Ltd) 211.85 243.31
Held to Maturity (HTM) Securiies 34,039.60 35,532.25
Held for Trading (HFT) Securities 7,192.01 4,896.24
Other eligible securities 249 3.66
46,533.65 45,254.25

*As per Bangladesh Bank DOS circular no. 26 dated 19 August 2019; Cash Reserve (if any) in excess of 3.50% of ATDTL calculated on bi-weekly average basis
is considered as an eligible component of Statutory Liquidity Reserve for that particular day.

Consolidated Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions

In Bangladesh

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-4.a.1) 1,961,231,052 1,543,685,647

MTB Securities Limited 1,207,867,788 1,412,381,790

MTB Capital Limited 12,466,573 13,846,460

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -

Less: Intragroup Deposit (953,834,853) (1,174,516,722)
2,227,730,560 1,795,397,175

Outside Bangladesh

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-4.a.2) 5,297,600,028 2,169,981,973

MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited -

5,297,600,028 2,169,981,973

7,525,330,588 3,965,379,148

Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions
In Bangladesh (Note-4.a.1)
Outside Bangladesh (Note- 4.2.2)

3,713,667,620

In Bangladesh
Term Placement 653,000,000 111,200,000
Union Capital Limited 60,600,000 65,700,000
GSP Finance Company [Bangladesh] Limited 42,400,000 45,500,000
Midland Bank Limited 450,000,000 -
Lanka Bangla Finance Ltd 100,000,000 -
Special Notice Deposit (SND) 31,656,485 88,268,533
BASIC Bank Limited 14,033,129 34,565,391
Sonali Bank Limited 17,104,080 53,616,293
Agrani Bank Limited 517,767 82,194
Janata Bank Limited - 2,144
NRBC Bank Limited 1,000
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited 1,510 1,510
Current Deposits (CD) 226,574,567 254,217,113
bKash Limited 58,459,738 87,799,320
Southeast Bank Limited 642,772 647,997
Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) 7,652,718 15,824,163
Janata Bank Limited 5,430,630 16,455,417
Agrani Bank Limited 154,388,709 133,490,216
Offshore Banking Unit - -
Islamic Banking Branches 1,050,000,000 1,090,000,000
1,961,231,052 1,543,685,647
Outside Bangladesh (NOSTRO Accounts)
In current account
Mashreq bank, New York 443,631,026 443,788,878
Standard Chartered Bank, New York 1,879,155,530 372,420,813
Habib American Bank, New York 1,003,546,029 36,008,955
Commerze Bank, Germany 67,039,008 31,018,824
KB Kookmin Bank 6,035,200 20,758,959
JP Morgan, New York 614,870,185 389,061,432
ICICI, Hong Kong 14,528,563 27,118,598
Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore 6,338,494 6,133,864
JP Morgan, London 16,299,443 7,707,625
Standard Chartered Bank, London 27,501,237 40,838,747
Habib American Bank, Zurich 3,191,250 9,005,217
Standard Chartered Bank, Tokyo 4,758,845 9,663,692
Standard Chartered Bank, Germany 57,466,063 42,904,788
ICICI, Mumbai 676,308 600,309
Unicredit, Germany 205,541,540 13,680,835
Commerze Bank, Germany 297,454,711 102,797,452
United Bank of India, Kolkata 463,592 411,497
Standard Chartered Bank, Mumbai 22,846,796 10,992,285
Standard Chartered Bank, Kolkata 51,698,338 42,941,396
Standard Chartered Bank, Pakistan 3,224,513 27,758,960
Standard Chartered Bank, Colombo 40,202 13,275,444
Sonali Bank, Kolkata 9,954,277 3,827,504
Habib Metropolitan Bank 5,443,246 21,562,866
Mashreq bank, Mumbai 22,877,901 36,851,944
AB Bank, Mumbai 127,254,089 97,021,150
Axis Bank, Mumbai 49,105,252 45,839,396
ICICI, Mumbai 104,885,460 71,970,973
Himalayan Bank Ltd., Kathmandu 11,309,989 9,394,242
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd. 13,632,529 11,323,378
Punjab National Bank, Kolkata 8,321,464 7,072,522
HDFC Bank, Mumbai 61,153,547 57,409,664
EMIRATES ISLAMIC BANK 13,847,248 10,083,688
MASHREQ BANK, UAE 42,428,827 51,859,978
Commerz Bank, Germany 24,246,014 2,764,364
Bank Al Ballad 20,235,825 9,075,716
Bank Al Rajhi 3,022,389 5,027,902
Riyadh Bank 2,885,007 2,399,680
Sonali Bank UK 3,620,289 -
INDUSIND BANK 5,085,745 -
Huzhough Bank, China 14,812 -
5,255,630,783 2,092,373,540
ICICI Bank Ltd., Mumbai - Term Deposit 28,032,607 28,032,607
5,283,663,390 2,120,406,147
Offshore Banking Unit 13,936,638 49,575,826
5,297,600,028 2,169,981,973

Details of NOSTRO accounts are shown in Annexure-A

| Particulars

4.2.3 Maturity grouping of Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions
On Demand
Less than three months
More than three months but less than one year
More than one year but less than five years
More than five years

5.

Money at Call on Short Notice:
Call Money
With Banking Companies ( Note 5.a.1)

o
B

Call Money-With Banking Companies
Midland Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited

6.
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Consolidated Investments
Government Investment

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-6.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Other Investments

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-6.a.3)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

6.a Investments
Government (Note 6.a.1)
Others (Note 6.2.3)

(° in Govt.
Treasury Bills (Note 6.a.1.1)
Treasury Bonds (Note 6.a.1.2)
Prize Bonds

Islamic Banking Branches

6.a.1.1 Treasury Bills (at present value )

Un-encumbered

28 days treasury bills
91 days treasury bills
182 days treasury bills
364 days treasury bills
Sub-total

Encumbered
Sub-total
Total Treasury Bill

6.a.1.2 Treasury Bonds
Un-encumbered
2 Years Bangladesh Government treasury bonds
5 Years Bangladesh Government treasury bonds
10 Years Bangladesh Government treasury bonds
15 Years Bangladesh Government treasury bonds
20 Years Bangladesh Government treasury bonds
Sub-total
Encumbered
Sub-total
Treasury Bond
Islamic Banking Branches
Total Treasury Bond

6.a.2 Bank Circular

Classified as per
Held to Maturity (HTM) (Note 6.a.2.1)
Held for Trading (HFT) (Note 6.a.2.2)
Other Securities

6.2.2.1 Held to Maturity (HTM)
Treasury Bond
2 Years
5 Years
10 Years
15 Years
20 Years

6.a.2.2 Held for Trading (HFT)
Treasury Bill
91 days
182 days
364 days
Treasury Bond
2 Years
5 Years
10 Years
15 Years
20 Years

6.a.3 Other (Investment in other securities)
Shares and Mutual Fund in quoted companies:
Shares in Quated companies
Mutual Fund in Quated companies

Shares in unquoted companies (at face value) :

BD Venture Limited

Central Depository (BD) Limited

Industrial & Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited
LIC Bangladesh

Central Counterparty Bangladesh Limited

The Bangladesh Rating Agency Limited

Funds:
Open end Mutual Fund (Unquoted)

Subordinated Bonds :

One Bank Subordinated Bond

Trust Bank Subordinated Bond

UCB 3rd Subordinated Bond
Jamuna Bank Subordinated Bond
AIBL Second Mudaraba Bond

IPDC Subordinated Bond

NBL Subordinated Bond

The Premier Bank Subordinated Bond
NRBC Bank Subordinated Bond

Perpetual Bonds:
Jamuna Bank Perpetual Bond
NCC Bank Perpetual Bond

Investment in Preference Share

Other investments

Islamic Banking Branches

Total other investments

(Details are shown in Annexure-B )

o
B
S

as under:

[ Amount in BDT ]
[ 2022 2021
4,687,423,116 2,398, 117,721
1,862,239,942 952,734,689
577,238,654 295,319,243
68,656,747 35,125,261
63,272,621 32,370,706
7,258,831,080 3,713,667,620
310,000,000 200,000,000
310,000,000 200,000,000
B 200,000,000
310,000,000 -
310,000,000 200,000,000
41,654,086,402 40,852,130,399
41,654,086,402 40,852,130,399
8,137,242,3% 4,924,291,954
1,945,843,164 1,268,830,421
543,692,249 372,131,084

10,626,777,807 6,565,253,459

52,280,864,209 47,417,383,858

41,654,086,402
8,137,242,394

40,852,130,399
4,924,291,954

49,791,328,796 45,776,422,353
1,475,760,999 219,059,856
39,756,850,404 40,209,434,833
2,495,000 3,655,710
41,234,106,402 40,432,150,399
419,980,000 419,980,000
41,654,086,402 40,852,130,399
1,475,760,999 -
- 219,059,856
1,475,760,999 219,059,856
[ I |
1,475,760,999 219,059,856
145,414,800 1,451,873,250
2,808,157,828 2,854,036,245
11,940,257,114 12,602,438,520
11,579,986,602 9,102,199,215
13,282,034,060 14,198,887,602
39,755,850,404 40,209,434,833
39,755,850,404 40,209,434,833
419,980,000 419,980,000
83

34,459,583,095 35,952,231,911
7,192,008,308 4,896,242,778
8,139,737,394 4,927,947,664
49,791,328,796 45,776,422,353
2,208,624,338 2,209,742,445
11,009,817,035 11,305,152,528
8,591,958,071 8,601,000,926
12,649,183,650 13,836,336,012
34,459,583,095 35,952,231,911
1,475,760,999
- 219,059,856
145,414,800 1,451,873,250
1,019,513 490 1,064,273,800
930,440,079 1,297,285,992
2,988,028,531 501,198,290
632,850,410 362,551,591
7,192,008,308 4,896,242,778
1,367,535,142 1,160,536,014
18,821,340 96,275,759
1,386,356,482 1,256,811,773
20,000,000 20,000,000
15,694,430 15,694,430
71,770,260 71,770,260
30,000,000 30,000,000
37,500,000 37,500,000
4,915,500 4,915,500
179,880,190 179,880,190
481,005,721 267,599,991
481,005,721 267,599,991
20,000,000 40,000,000
20,000,000 40,000,000
100,000,000 150,000,000
60,000,000 90,000,000
60,000,000 80,000,000
80,000,000 120,000,000
100,000,000 150,000,000
1,500,000,000 -
1,000,000,000 -
2,940,000,000 670,000,000
650,000,000 650,000,000
400,000,000 400,000,000
1,050,000,000 1,050,000,000
2,000,000,000 1,500,000,000
8,037,242,394 4,924,291,954
100,000,000 -
8,137,242,394 4,924,291,954

Assets pledged as security for liabilities as at 31 December 2022 is BDT 1,416,908,635.00 of Treasury Bill against Re-Purchase Agreement. Details are

a) i. Disclosure regarding outstanding Repo as at 31 December 2022
Counter Party Name

Agreement Date

Amount

Reversal Date

29-Dec-22

1,416,908,635

A. Inter Bank (Reverse Repo)
Standard Chartered Bank 2-Jan-23
Total 1,416,908,635
ii. There was no Reverse Repo as at 31 December 2022.
(b) Disclosure regarding overall transaction of Repo as at 31 December 2022
Minimum Maximum Daily average
Particulars during during during
the year the year the year
Securities sold under Repo:
i) with Bangladesh Bank 1,186,524,780 3,372,659,587 23,507,013
ii) with Other Banks & Financial Institutions 145,987,500 4,993,328.914 804,928,567
Securities purchased under Reverse Repo:
i) with Bangladesh Bank E . .
i) with Other Banks & Financial Institutions 236,810,025 2,941,274,490 85,039,241
6.a.5 Maturity grouping of Investment as follows:
On Demand 2,771,354 528,067,474
Less than three months 2,626,577,683 2,380,830,450
More than three months but less than one year 313,362,495 920,298,545
More than one year but less than five years 8,406,997,706 7,301,272,957
More than five years 38,441,619,558 34,645,952,926
49,791,328,796 45,776,422,353
7.00 C Loans and -
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-7.a) 248,173,020,462 219,396,487,169
MTB Securities Limited 3,245,333,252 3,200,807 474
MTB Capital Limited 442,536,175 380,471,869
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -
Less: Inter-company loan (797,414,700)| (493,904,927)|
251,063,475,190 222,483,861,585
C i bills and di
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-7.a) 2,772,219,197 3,527,713,085
MTB Securities Limited - -
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -
2,772,219,197 3,527,713,085
253,835,694,386 226,011,574,670
7.01 Significant concentration wise grouping of C Loans and
a) Directors
Credit Cards (Note - 49) 1,263,220 1,077,300
b) Chief Executive & other Senior Executives 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
i) Managing Director - | | - |
ii) Other Senior Executives 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
¢) Advances to Industries
Agriculture 4,176,042,840 3,188,679,653
RMG 38,210,821,382 37,054,273,187
Textile 10,243,389,051 12,409,196,162
Ship Building 1,982,118,073 2,005,332,100
Ship Breaking 3,785,669,260 3,803,379,886
Other Manufacturing industry 88,723,446,369 21,140,856,876
SME loans 32,376,279,324 27,820,139,675
Construction 10,401,416,269 14,134,021,171
Power, Gas 2,670,674,429 3,102,653,120
Transport, Storage and Communication 2,085,813,435 881,582,573
Trade Service 15,784,403,073 24,018,150,476
Commercial real estate financing 6,115,036,200 5,398,960,541
Residential real estate financing 730,233,679 15,674,580
Consumer credit 18,888,018,055 16,223,382,149
Capital Market (Loan provided for brokerage or merchant banking, to stock dealer or any kind of capital market 3,313,377,822 4,265,258,632
activities)
NBFIs 4,746,788,198 8,354,889,242
Others 8,567,194,248 41,345,723,620
252,820,721,707 __225,162,153,642

253,835,694,386

226,011,574,670
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7.04 Maturity grouping of Consoli Loans and
On Demand 26,900,816,126 23,909,226,234
Not more than three months 57,945,639,609 51,481,419,528
More than three months but less than one year 68,561,147,851 61,695,675,482
More than one year but less than five years 67,181,067,521 59,247,212,011
More than five years 33,247,023,279 29,678,041,416

253,835,694,386 226,011,574,670
7.a Loans and Advancesfinvestments
In Bangladesh

Loans (Note-7.a.1) 197,439,505,336 171 983,466,319
Cash Credits
Overdrafts.
248,173,020,462 219 396,487, 159
Bills Purchased and Discounted (Note-7.a.1.2) 2,772,219,197 3,527,713,085
250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
Outside Bangladesh - -

250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
7.a.1 Loans / Investments:

Continuous Loans 8,871,534,009 8,930,339,393
Demand Loans 60,165,352,111 47,689,836,492
Term Loans 90,435,977,930 81,537,221,535
Short term Agri. Credit and Microcredit 5,589,834,400 5,968,591,628
Packing Credit 589,172,762 639,466,141
Credit Cards 4,062,081,468 3,072,733,014
Staff Loan 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
Lease Finance (Note-7.a.3) 333,117,203 424,295,342
Others loan - 12,136,567

171,060,779,433 149,122,963,840
Offshore Banking Unit 22,130,197,349 22,515,586,635
Islamic Banking Branches 4,248,528,554 344,915,845

197,439,505,336 171,983,466,319
7.a.1.2 Bill Purchased and Discounted

Payable in Bangladesh 1,856,300,035 2,219,022,590

Payable outside Bangladesh 351,803,405 822,365,902
2,208,103,440 3,041,388,492

Islamic Banking Branches 181,583,112

Offshore Banking Unit 382,532,644 486,324,593

2,772,219,197 3,527,713,085
7.a.2 Net Loans and Advances/Investments

Gross Loans & Advances (Note- 7.a) 250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
Less:

Interest Suspense (Note- 12.a.6) 7,249,501,637 5,323,146,759
Provision for Loans & Advances (Note-12.a.1 & 12.a.2) 11,262,933,729 8,173,090,841
Net Loans & Advances 232,432,804,293 209,427,962,655

7.a.3 Gross Lease Rent Receivable

Within 1 year 237,362,235 371,096,485
Within 5 years 129,847,867 97,500,726

367,210,101 468,597,211
Less: Unearned Lease Rent 34,092,808 44,301,869
_ 333117,293 _ 424295342
7.a.4 Residual Maturity grouping of Loans and Advances/investments
On Demand 26,753,301,349 23,765,975,060
Not more than three months 57,871,882,221 51,409,793,941
More than three months but less than one year 68,842,260,831 61,688,201,301
More than one year but less than five years 65,964,070,610 58,065,389,828
More than five years 31,513,724,648 27,994,840,124
—250,945,239,659 _  222,924,200,254
7.a.5 Significant concentration wise grouping of Loans and Advances/Investments
a) Directors
Credit Cards (Note - 49) 1,263,220 1,077,300
b) Chief Executive & other Senior Executives 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
i) Managing Director | - | B |
ii) Other Senior Executives 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
c) Advances to Industries
Agriculture 4,176,042,840 3,188,679,653
RMG 38,210,821,382 37,054,273,187
Textile 10,243,389,051 12,400,196,162
Ship Building 1,982,118,073 2,005,332,100
Ship Breaking 3,785,669,260 3,803,379,886
Other Manufacturing industry 88,723,446,369 21,140,856,876
SME loans 32,376,279,324 27,820,139,675
Construction 10,401,416,269 14,134,021,171
Power, Gas 2,670,674,429 3,102,653,120
Transport, Storage and Communication 2,085,813,435 881,582,573
Trade Service 15,784,403,073 24,018,150,476
Commercial real estate financing 6,115,036,200 5,398,960,541
Residential real estate financing 730,233,679 15,674,580
Consumer credit 18,888,018,055 16,223,382,149
Capital Market (Loan provided for brokerage or merchant banking, to stock dealer or any kind of capital market 422,923,095 1,177,884,216
NBFls 4,746,788,198 8,354,889,242
Others 8,587,194,248 41,345,723,620
249,930,266,980 222,074,779,226

250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
7.a.6 Details of Large Loan / Investments
Number of borrowers with outstanding amount of loans exceeding 10% of total capital of the Bank and classification status thereof. Total capital of the Bank is
BDT 32,417.43 million as at 31 December 2022 (BDT 29,443.04 million as of 31 December 2021).

Number of Clients | 30 | ZTI
Outstanding Advances (BDT Million) 102,067 73,336
BDT Million
L Outstanding Classification
Sanction limit Funded Non - Funded Total Status
,130.00 1,063.30 175.80 .239.10 uc
520,00 107.80 3,361.10 468.90 uc
,450.00 511.50 1,854.60 ,366.10 uc
,935.90 1,620.40 203.80 .824.20 uc
,675.30 1.417.70 27.40 .445.10 uc
,900.00 200.30 ,170.50 ,370.80 uc
HIP BUILDERS LTD.VOSTA.& ITS ALLIED CONCERN&07.00 596.30 ,581.30 ,177.60 uc
NGINEERING LTD. ,243.40 .855.20 ,207.9 ,063.10 UC
,653.40 ,568.10 ,072.3 ,640.40 uc
,539.50 ,087.10 430.7 ,517.80 uc
352,50 706.50 467.4 173.90 uc
450,00 254.80 2,266.7 ,521.50 C
,679.00 1.419.10 848.00 ,267.1 UC
IS ALLIED 8CINGERNS 1,637.10 297 40 ,934.5 UC
ERNS _13,250.00 - .850.10 .850.1 uc
,605.10 .841.90 ,086.80 ,928.7( uc
RA 178,60 494.60 132970 ,824.3 UC
10N FABRICS LIMITED & ITS ALLIED CONCERN| 7,367.60 ,219.20 987.80 207,00 uc
LSIUS LIMITED & ITS ALLIED CONCERNS ,330.00 ,750.40 1,153.10 ,903.5 uc
52310 781.00 564550 426.5 uc
,621.40 ,336.20 9 ,429.60 C
,050.00 - 1 10.20 UC
|ABUL KHAIR GROUP ,360.00 2,138.70 2,09 4,029.80 UC
KABIR STEEL LTD & ITS ALLIED CONCERNS ,898.30 1,844.70 2,173, 4,017.80 UC
T.K. GROUP ,100.20 95.90 3,90 4,100. uc
[JAHANGIR & OTHERS ,091.30 19.40 - 519. UC
[CONFIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE LTD. ,399.20 .308.40 47511 6,059, uc
RADIANT GROUP' ,787.80 ,359.00 462,21 1,821 uc
NDE GROUP ,329.50 ,203.40 2,429.7 4,633, uc
GPH ISPAT LIMITED ,850.00 1689.80 2,406.3( 4,096 C
Total 177,796.30 48,727.80 53,339.3 102,067.

7.2.6.1 Large Loan Restructuring
1) The liabilities of Jamuna Builders Ltd. and Jamuna Denims Ltd. were restructured according to BRPD circular No 4/2015 dated 29.01.2015 under BB NOC
dated 02.09.2016 with grace period for 12 months for 12 years with validity 02.09.2027. Accordingly, the 1st Instalment due date was 02.12.2016. Later, client
again allowed 12 month interim grace under BB NOC from June 2019 to May 2020. As such, client avail total 24 month grace period. After that, client were
allowed payment pause for 8 months according to BRPD circular No 17 dated 28.09.2020 i.e. validity extended up to 31.05.2028 from 02.09.2027. Thereafter, as
per BRPD Circular 03/2021 dated 31.01.2021 , validity extended for 02 year i.e. up to 31.05.2030 from 31.05.2028. so far, as of December 2020, client have paid
all the installment regularly in due time since inception. In 2021, According to BRPD circular No 53 dated 30.12.2021, client have to pay minimum 15% against 4
quarterly installments for the year 2021 which is amounting to 2.39 crore (Tk 0.29 crore for Jamuna Denims Ltd and 2.10 crore for Jamuna Builders Ltd). But client
paid 5.79 crore (Tk 0.84 crore in Jamuna Denims Ltd and 4.95 crore in Jamuna Builders Ltd). In 2022, client have paid all the installment in due time according to
BRPD circular No 14 dated 22.06.2022 and based on the circular client have requested to extend the validity for 01 year more with the current validity.

2) Abdul Monem Ltd. and Abdul Monem Sugar Refinery Ltd. were allowed grace period for 09 months. So, the 1st Instalment due date was 30.06.2016. As such,
22 number of installment become due till 30.09.2021. The client is availed deferred of payment of quarterly installment facilities up to 31.12.2020 as per BRPD
Circular-17, dated 28.09.2020 due to COVID-19. If we considered 12 months deferment in installment payment then total no of due installment up to 31.12.2022
stands to 23. However, up to 31.12.2022 Abdul Monem Ltd & Abdul Monem Sugar Refinery Ltd has paid advance installment with 23.77 no's of installment and
28.12 no's of installment respectively.

a7 ion of Loans and

Oncatsitod (uy:

e

Special Mention Account (SMA) 5,715,080,041 6.483,324,221
Sub total 236,202,430,283 209,817,179,254
Classified:

Substandard T142,426,821 7.187,166,762

Doubful 1,002,241,101 661,520,499

Bad & Loss 12.418,141.454 11,268,333,739
Sub total 14,652,809,376 13,107,021,000
Total 750,945,239,659 222,924,200,254

7.a.8 Details of Required Provision for Loans and
] Provision
Particulars :::iesi':,r, Rate (%) Required Maintained
Unclassified (UC):
Standard 204,048,781,496 3,213,743,070 3,213,743,070
Standard- Offshore Banking Unit 22512729993 | 0%, 0.25%,1%, 226,127,300 225,127,300
SNMA 5529566428 | 2%.5% & 100% 264,401,285 264,401,285
General Provision-COVID-19 - 728,084,715 728,084,715
Sub total 232,091,077,917 4,431,356,369 4,431,356,369
Classified:
529,896,856 | 5% & 20% 69,955,310 69,955,310

Doubtful 459633943 | 5% 8 60% 119,358,103 119,356,103
Bad loan 6,642,263,947 100% 6,642,263,947 6,642,263,947
Sub total 7,631,794,746 6,831,577,359 6,831,577,359
Total 239,722,872,662 11,262,933,729 11,262,933,729

7.a.9 Details of Required Provision for Off Balance Sheet Items
Required Provision for Off- Balance Sheet Exposures 1,293,944,023 1,147,890,040
Total Provision maintained (Note -12.a.3) 1,293,944,023 1,147,890,040
7.a.10 Geographical Location wise Loans and Advances/Investments
Inside Bangladesh

Urban
Dhaka Division 195,459,698,356 171,946,553,486
Chittagong Division 38,045,684,362 33,907,282,733
Sylhet Division 1,991,159,240 1,907,689,074
Mymensingh Division 638,185,775 773,517,875
Rajshahi Division 4,401,586,847 4,577,556,126
Khulna Division 1,083,962,179 966,348,564
Rangpur Division 2,301,478,984 2,523,182,435
Barisal Division 221,259,521 191,119,594
244,143,015,264 216,793,249,886
Rural
Dhaka Division 4,125,519,312 3,207,497,203
Chittagong Division 1,598,966,806 1,536,856,635
Sylhet Division 155,088,538 281,206,593
Mymensingh Division 435,506,619 307,620,338
Rajshahi Division 20,881,472 349,393,939
Khulna Division 42,285,607 34,689,385
Rangpur Division 419,167,050 370,079,369
Barisal Division 4,808,992 43,606,906
6,802,224,396 6,130,950,368
Outside Bangladesh -
250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
7.a.11 Sectc ise L including Bill and Dit
Public sector -
Co-Operative sector - -
Private sector 250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254
7.a12 i of Loans and
1) Debts considered good in respect of which the bank company is fully secured. 194,716,493,002 169,220,979,916
11) Debts considered good for which the bank holds no other security than the debtor's personal security. 4,062,081,468 3,072,733,014
1I1) Debts considered good secured by the personal undertakings of one or more parties in addition to the personal 37,513,855,813 38,490,415,706
1V) Debts considered doubtful or bad, provision not provided for. - -
V) Debts due by directors or officers of the bank or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person. 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
V) Debts due by companies or firms in which the Directors of the bank are interested as partners or managing - -
VIl) Maximum total amount of advances, including temporary advances, made at any time during the year to 1,013,709,459 848,343,729
VIIl) Maximum total amount of advances, including temporary advances granted during the year to the companies - -
1X) Due from banking companies; - -
X) Amount of classified loan on which interest has not been charged, should be mentioned as follows:
a. i) (Decrease)/Increase in provision, 4,161,209,361 1,115,183,976
ii) amount of loan written off 1,091,081,779 362,056,175
iif) amount realized against loan previously written off; 67,997,716 44,858,845
b. Amount of provision kept against loan classified as 'bad/loss' on the date of preparing the balance sheet 6,642,263,947 4,471,185,787
c. Interest creditable to the interest Suspense A/c; 7,249,501,637 5,323,146,759
XI) Cumulative amount of loans written off - -
Opening Balance 4,789,728,761 4,427,672,587
Amount Written off during the period 1,091,081,779 362,056,175
Balance of Written off Loans & Advance
XII) The amount of written off loan for which law suit has been filed 5,880,810,540 89,728,761

7.a.13 Maturity grouping of Bill Purchased and Discounted

Payable within one month 818,636,329 1,041,733,674
More than one month but less than three months 1,459,018,963 1,856,635,397
More than three months but less than six months 494,563,905 629,344,014
More than or equal to six months - -
2,772,219,197 3,527,713,085
7.a.14 List of Asset pledged as collaterals:
Collateral of movable/immovable assets 120,581,824,460 111,332,707,392
Commodities and Export documents 16,941,016,739 32,400,566,479
Fixed deposit receipts 10,300,048,825 9,542,114,105
Other securities 82,455,825,518 48,695,470,226
Personal guarantee 20,666,524,118 20,953,342,053

250,945,239,659 222,924,200,254

r

Particulars

[ Amount in BDT |

[ 2022 2021

8.00 Consolidated fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-8.a)

MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Consolidated net book value at the end of the year

Details are shown in Annexure-C

Fixed Asset including Premises, Furniture and Fixture

Cost

8.:

»

Land
Immovable Property
Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipment's
Computers & Peripherals
Motor Vehicles
Intangible Assets
Right off use assets
Total Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Islamic Banking Branches
Book value at the end of the year
Details are shown in Annexure-C (i)

5,051,674,499 5,203,874,445
200,971,170 176,227,139
12,717,220 14,392,150

265,362,889

104,253,000 104,253,000
1,455,740,795 1,455,740,795
1,682,022,988 1,662,603,105
1,955,761,440 1,917,328,688

885,615,580 845,362,331

205,394,317 214,382,616

952,394,479 915,266,871
2,222,439,519 1,826,970,783
9,463,622,118 8,931,908,188
4,437,273,776 3,756,646,068
5,026,348,342 5,175,262,120

25,326,157 28,612,325

5,051,674,499 5,203,874,445

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises present value of lease payments less incentive, plus initial direct payment and dismantiing cost etc. The bank, as
lessee, on lease-by-lease basis, elected a single threshold less than BDT 20 million to consider low value asset on the basis of materiality (less than 1%) of Bank's
total capital i.e. BDT 32,417.34 million as of 31 December 2022. Hence, any payment made by the bank under contract for use of any rental premises or assets
for a period not exceeding twelve months, and/or, falls as low value assets, and substantially risks and benefits of ownership of those rental premises/assets do
not transfer to the bank, is recognized as expense as per IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' instead of recognizing as ROU assets,

9.00 Consolidated other assets
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-9.a)
Less: Investment in subsidiary (Note-9.a.1)

MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Less: Intragroup receivable & payable

9.01 Consolidated Advance Income Tax
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-9.2.4.1)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

9.02 Consolidated Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabi
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-9.2.4.2)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

ies)

9.a Other Asset
Classification of Other Asset
A) Income generating Other Asset:
i) Investment in Shares of Subsidiary Companies (Note-9.a.1)
B) Non-Income generating Other Asset :
i) Stationery, Stamps, Printing malerlals in stock etc.
ii) Advance Rent and Advertiser
ii) Interest Accrued on nvesiment ¢ bul not collected & other income receivable (Note-0.a.2)
iv) Security Deposit
v) Suspense Account (Note-9.2.3)
vi) Others (Note- 9.a.4)

9.a.1 in Shares of Subsidiary C
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

9.a.2 Interest Accrued on Investment but not collected & other income receivable
Interest Receivable on Investment
Interest Receivable on Loans and Advances
Interest Receivable on Treasury Bond
Interest Receivable on Term Placement
Interest Receivable on Call Money

9.3 Suspense Account
Sundry Debtors
Legal Expenses
Sanchay Patra
Chargeback Settlement Account

9.a.4 Others
Advance Income Tax (Note:9.a.4.1)
Deferred Tax Asset (Note:9.a.4.2)
Advance against Suppliers/Parties & Capital Work-in-Progress
Protested Bills
Advance paid to Employees
Prepaid Interest Expense against MTB Instant
Stamp Charge Adjustment Account
Receivables from MTB on Cards & ATM
Placement to Off-Shore Banking Unit
Receivables from Off-Shore Banking Unit
Receivable from Subsidiaries (UK)
Taka A/C Exchange House Receivable
NRB Outstanding
MFS Settlement Account
Sundry Asset
Unrealized Exchange loss on Foreign Currency
RTGS Adjusting Receivable Account

Offshore Banking Unit

Islamic Banking Branches

Less: Inter transaction with Offshore Banking Unit
Less: Inter transaction with MTB Islami Banking

9.a.4.1 Advance Income Tax
Opening Balance
Add: Payment during the year

9.a.4.2 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Opening Balance
Add: Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) during the year (Note-9.a.4.2.1)

9.a.4.2.1 Computation of deferred tax
Fixed Assets
Accounting written down value
Less: Tax base written down value
Deductible/(Taxable) temporary difference
Effective Tax Rate
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Interest Receivable from Treasury Bond
Accounting based
Less. Tax Base
Deductible/ (Taxable) temporary difference
Effective Tax Rate
Deferred Tax Asse(sl(Lia
Loan Loss Proy
Provision made agalnsl classified loans
Less: Tax Base
Deductible/(Taxable) temporary difference
Effective Tax Rate
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
on for Investment
Pm sion against Shares in quoted companies
Less: Tax Base
Deductible/(Taxable) temporary difference
Effective Tax Rate
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

es)

Closing Deferred Tax Assetsi|(Liabilities)
Opening Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax Income(Expense)

9.a.5 Classification of Other Asset
Unclassified
Doubtful
Bad/Loss

10.00 Consolidated borrowing from other banks, financial institutions and agents
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-10.a)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited
Less: Intragroup Borrowings

10.a Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents
In Bangladesh
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note 10.a.1)
Offshore Banking Unit

Outside Bangladesh
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Offshore Banking Unit

Less: Inter transaction with Offshore Banking

10.a.1 In Bangladesh:
Borrowing from Bank:
Call Borrowing: Jamuna Bank Ltd.

Term Borrowing

Foreign Currency Borrowing
Pubali Bank Limited
Bank Asia Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited

Borrowing from Bangladesh Bank:
SME Refinance
Investment Promotion and Financing Facity (IPFF)
Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF) under FSSP
COVID 19 Financial Stimulus Fund ( RMG Salary)
CMSME Stimulus Package
WC Stimulus Package for Large Industry and Service
Agri (Non-Crops)
Export Development Fund
Pre-shipment credit scheme
Green Transformation Fund

Borrowing from Other Institutes:
SME Foundation

Repo of Treasury Bill/Bond
Bangladesh Bank

10.a.2 Security against Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents
Secured (Treasury Bill)
Unsecured

10.a.3 Maturity Grouping of Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents
On Demand
Repayable within one month
More than one month but within six months
More than six months but within one year
More than one year but within five years
More than five year but within ten years

11.00 Consolidated deposits and other accounts
Current deposits and other accounts
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-11.a.1)

MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited
Less: Intragroup Deposit

Bills payable
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-11.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Saving deposit
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-11.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Fixed deposit
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-11.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Less: Intragroup Deposit

Special Noticed Deposits
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-11.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Less: Intragroup Deposit

Deposit Products
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-11.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

18,407,851,488 12,124,015,514
(3,528,395,800 3,528,395,800))

14,879,455,688 8,595,619,714
[ 473230222 305,149,271
43,015,315 58,647,600

(164,959,133)| (262,457,333)
351,286,404 101,339,537
15,230,742,091 8,696,959,252
5,019,715,531 3,823,253,757
345,406,112 228,970,188
25,847,647 15,897,798
5,390,969,290 4,068,121,744
2,351,034,248 1,741,362,031
(6,041,215)| (4,750,202)
(96,878)) (111,079)|
2,344,896,155 1,736,500,750
3,528,395,800 3,528,395,800
61,588,251 35,396,220
585,303,836 343,415,354
1,190,446,376 1,298,226,885
14,229,360 11,550,249
634,963,480 356,703,671
12,392,924,385 6.550,327.335

18,407,851,488 12,124,015,514

3,528,395,800 3,528,395,800

3,211,181 249,045,901
372,910,263 450,379,139
812,990,144 470,932,521

1,186,246 127,656,476

148,542 212,

260,490,129 22,772,510
56,616,191 42,086,181
317,057,980 289,705,474
799,181 2,139,506
634,963,480 356,703,671
5,019,715,531 3,823,253,757
2,351,034,248 1,741,362,031
110,765,696 259,860,604
51,609,559 51,609,559
9,947,800 14,955,000
1,815,980 1,829,214
5,040 272,500
243,329,309 142,721,943
4,723,079,772 7,074,210,000
100,197,976 176,966,825
34,961,533 34,961,533
11,112,335 10,579,143
24,333,480 4,337,173
1,329,882 -
2,712,379 -
- 18,986
- 5,285,000
12,685,950,519 13,342,223,267
4,178,817,811 149,662,620
903,847,041 309,618,273
(4,823,277,747) (7.251176.825)
(552,413,239)
12392024385 ___ 6,550,327,335

3,823,253,757 2,737,582,223
1,196,461,774 1,085,671,535
5019715531 _  3,823253,757
1,741,362,031 858,157,826

609,672,217 883,204,205

___ 2,351,034248 _  1,741,362,031

2,889.493,192 2,996,080,709
(642,152,698) (842,221,396)
37.50% 37.50%

(240,807,262, 315,833,024)

(470,932, 521)
37.50% 37.50%
[_(176,599,695)]
6,831,577,359 5,956,786,000
6,831,577,359 5,956,786,000
37.50% 37.50%

__2,561 ,841,510 __2,233,794,750

| 80,000,000 | - |

80,000,000
37.50% 37. 50%
[ 30,000.000] [
2, 351 034,248 1,741 362 031
1,741, 352 031 855 157,826
609,672,217 _____ 883,204,205

44,971,333,982
422,923,095
374,491,605

35,205,781,006
275,189,243
218,715,684

(493,904,927
44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006

(797,414,700

25,562,431,630 19,520,729,224
4,948,703,682 13,994,638.506
30,511,135,311 33,515,367,730

19,183,278,443 8,764,623,276

19,183,278,443 8,764,623,276

49,694,413,754 42,279,991,006
(4,723,079,772 (7.074,210,000;
44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006

25,558,167,123 19,435,464,717

1,328,637,921 1,205,352,419
666,253,485 723,272,094
1,277,772,889 1,434,915,766
235,245,370 813,751,852
2,990,242,000 1,318,177,000
1,120,629,305 1,044,112,565
394,003,124 252,892,500
17,361,127,716 12,527,945,526
99,801,000 -
84,454,313 115,044,995

85 264,506

4 264 506 [ 85264506

25,562,431,630 19,520,729,224
44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006
44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006

929,214,416 727,434,931
4,093,566,198 3,204,645,767
12,620,915,585 9,880,275,963
14,518,249,045 12,931,301,053
10,091,930,885 7,117,612,473
2,717,457,854 1,344,510,819

44,971,333,982 35,205,781,006

29,304,015,081 26,915,622,914

27,470, 717,021
29,303,987,611 26,914,905,893

2,181,104,098 1,975,092,979

2,181,104,098 1,975,092,979
44,731,165,855 42,589,740,210
44,731,165,855 42,589,740,210
105,844,214,688 91,528,348,348
105,844,214,688 91,528,348,348
26,996,403,337 26,332,451,468

(953,807,383 1,173,799,701
26,042,595,954 25,158,651,767

24,554,375,452 23,615,686,572

24,554,375,452 23,615,686,572
232,657,443,657 211,782,425,769

Particulars

[ Amount in BDT |

[ 2022

11.a Deposit and Other Accounts
From Customers (Note 11.a.1)
From Banks & NBFI

11.a.1 Deposit and Other Accounts:
Current Deposit & Other Accounts :
Current Deposit (Including Unclaimed Dividend amount, Note 11.a.6)
Foreign Currency Deposit
Sundry Deposit

Offshore Banking Unit
Islamic Banking Branches

Bills Payable :
Payment Order Issued
Pay Slip Issued
Demand Draft Payable

Offshore Banking Unit
Islamic Banking Branches

Savings Deposit:
From Customers

Islamic Banking Branches

Fixed Deposits:
From Customers
From Banks & NBFI (Note 11.a.2)

Offshore Banking Unit
Islamic Banking Branches

Special Noticed Deposits:
Islamic Banking Branches

Deposit Products :
Brick by Brick
MTB Millionaire Plan
Children Education Deposit Scheme
MTB Education Plan

NRB Deposit Pension Scheme
MTB Lakhopoti

MTB Angona DPS

MTB Micro DPS

Islamic Banking Branches

11.a.2 Fixed Deposits from Banks & NBFI:
Pubali Bank Limited
Prime Bank Limited
Southeast Bank Ltd
South Bangla Agriculture & Commerce Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited
Infrastructure Development Company Limited

11.a.3 Maturity grouping of Deposit and Other Accounts:
On Demand
Repayable within one month
More than one month but within six months
More than six months but within one year
More than one year but within five years
More than five year but within ten years
More than ten years

11.a.4 Demand & Time Deposit
a) Demand Deposit
Current Deposit
Savings Deposit (9%)
Foreign Currency Deposit non interest bearing
Sundry Deposit
Bills Payable

b) Time Deposits
Saving Deposit (91%)
Fixed Deposit
Deposit from Banks
Short Term Deposit
Deposit Under Scheme

Total Demand & Time Deposits

11.a5 Sector wise Deposit
Government
Autonomous & Semi-Autonomous Bodies
Local Authorities
Public Non- Financial Organization
Other Public
Foreign Currency
Private
Deposit from Banks

11.a.6 Unclaimed Dividend Account:
Cash Dwndend remain unclaimed which were declared for the years:
200!

2021

233 021,278,510 209 006,942,491
590 000 000 3 950,000,000

___212,956,942,491_

253,193,954
29,304,015,081

43,011,475
26,915,622,914

2,172,942,916
498,491
2,783,705
2,176,225,112

4,878,986
2,181,104,098

1,971,474,669
580,945
2,839,793
1,974,895,408

197,571
1,975,092,979

44,089,851,459 42,055,411,723
44,089,851,459
641,314,396

42,055,411,723
534,328,487

99,843,851,728 85,869,159,661
590,000,000 3,950,000,000

100,433,851,728

89,819,159,661
,029,238
1 sas 159 449

T 91,528,348,348_

[__26,850,800,242 | [ 26,305,565,797 ] 305 565 797
145,603,095

45,603,095
T 26,996,403,337_

26,33 51.468

11,611,002,962
5,835,689,135

12,225,301,907
5,336,982,993

19,750,461 15,313,430

188,613,450 213,919,399

8,673,002 8,310,001

6,397,848,948 5,686,815,542

60,740,960 90,489,515

2,270,878 1,921,644

43,873,331 9,440,707
5,526,502

24,073,989,629 23,588,495,139

480,385,823 27,191,433

24,554,375.452 23,615,686,572

- 750,000,000

- 600,000,000

- 500,000,000

- 1,000,000,000

- 1,100,000,000
590,000,000

8.419,760,180
22,904,811,507
46,969,442,730
51,842,458,178
65,953,597,826
36,142,901,548

35,510,924,105
20,162,715,712
4,025,804,927
5,014,528,709
4,126,770,660
2,181,104,098

7.675,341,687
20,879,722,323
42,816,720,914
47,258,897,152
60,122,424,862
32,947,389,593

1,256, 445 960

32,723,792,512
20,406,313,137
3,833,076,619
2,769,725,332
3,739,584,445
1,975,092.979

198,100,354,405
40,705,360,928
105,254,214,688
590,000,000
26,996,403,337
24,554,375,452

233,611,27:

0

180,233,149,979
38,756,663,501

26,332,451,468
23,615,686.572

15,848,106
777,584,521
844,054,121

6,688,637,694
633,294,900
5,014,528,709
219,047,330,460

590,000,000
233,611,278,510

24,020,115
375,341,822
714,427,685

5,017,112,639
13,143,812
2,769,725,332
200,093,171,086
3,950,000,000
212,956,942,491

1,035,531

As per Directives No. BSEC/ACMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated January 14, 2021. of Bangladesh Security & Exchange Commission (BSEC) clause No. 3(vii) disclose
the summary of year-wise unpaid or unclaimed cash dividend information in the statement of financial statements as a separate line item "Unclaimed Dividend Account”

12.00 Consolidated Other Liabilities
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-12.a)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited
Less: Intragroup receivable & payable

12.01 Consolidated Provision for Loans and Advances
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-12.a.1 & 12.a.2)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

12.02 Consolidated Provision for Current Income Tax
Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-12.a.7)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

12.a Other Liabilities
Provision for Loans and Advances/Investments (Note-12.a.1)
Special General Provision-COVID-19 (Note-12.a.2)
Provision for Off Balance Sheet ltems (Note-12.2.3)
Provision against Diminution value of Investment (Note- 12.a.4)
Provision for Other Asset (Note-12.a.5)

Interest Suspense (Note- 12.2.6)

Provision for Income Tax (Note-12.2.7)
Leasehold Liabilities Under IFRS 16 (Note-12.a.8)
Payable to Gratuity Fund (Note-12.2.9)
Contribution for MTB Employees Benefits
Treasury Intermediate Parking AIC

Withholding VAT payable

Withholding Tax payable

Excise Duty Payable

Master Card and Visa card Payable

ATM/POS settlement account

Agent Banking Commission Payable

Parking GL for various purpose

Interest Payable on Deposits and Other Accounts
Interest Payable on Bonds

Interest Payable on Borrowing

Provision for Expenses

BB Impress Fund Parking Account (NRB)
Provision for Good Borrower

Incentive Bonus Payable

Payable to MTB Islami Banking

Contribution to MTB Foundation

Blocked Interest BB Subsidy

Start-Up Fund for SME

Climate Risk Fund

Clearing House Adjustment

Student File Correspondence Bank fee Payable
Unrealized Exchange Gain/Loss on Foreign Currency
Miscellaneous Liabilties

Offshore Banking Unit

Islamic Banking Branches

Less: Inter transaction with Offshore Banking Unit
Less: Inter transaction with Islamic Banking Branches

12.a.1 Provision for Loans and Advances/investments
For Unclassified
Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the year
Less. Waiver during the year
Less: Transferred to classified provision as per Bangladesh Bank letter DOS (CAMS) 1157/41(Dividend) /2022-
1967, dated 10 April 2022 and DOS (CAMS) 1157/41(Dividend) /2022-2003, dated 13 April 2022
Closing Balance
For Classified
Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the year
Add: Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Add: Provision transferred from Special General Provision-COVID-19
Add: Transferred from unclassified provision as per Bangladesh Bank letter DOS (CAMS) 1157/41(Dividend)
/2022-1967, dated 10 April 2022 and DOS (CAMS) 1157/41(Dividend) /2022-2003, dated 13 April 2022
Less: Adjustment for Loan written off during the year
Closing Balance

12.a2 Special General Provision-COVID-19
Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the year
Less: Provision transferred

12.a.3 Provision for Off Balance Sheet Items
pening Balance
Add: Provision made during the year

12.a.4 Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments
Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the year
Less: Provision transferred to Income Tax provision

12.a.5 Provision for Other Assets
Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the year

12.2.6 Interest suspense account
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Waiver of Interest suspense

12.a7 Provision for Income Tax*
Opening Balance
Less: Adjustment made during the year
Add: Provision transferred from Diminution in Value of Investments.
Add: Provision made during the year

*Income tax provi:

12.a.7.1 Provision for current tax made during the year
Income tax @ 37.50% on estimated taxable business profit
Income tax @ 20.00% on dividend income
Income tax @ 15.00% on Capital Gain from Trading in Gowt. Securities
Income tax @ 10.00% on capital gain on sale of shares
Estimated total provision required

Computation of taxable business profit

Profit before tax

Add: Inadmissible expenditures

Less: Allowable Expenditure & Separate consideration
Estimated taxable business profit for the year

12.2.8 Leasehold Liabi
The bank recogni

s Under IFRS 16

36,963,327,148
3,072,840,201
276,263,543
36,162,427
164,959,133

11,262,933,729
689,688,791
81,000,000

6,602,121,503
393,463,525
53,328,933

24.818,899,708
2,443,343,997
224,372,798
33,652,631
262,457,333)

8,173,090,841
655,688,791
57,000,000

5.279,023,871
261,900,110

10,534,849,013
728,084,715
1,293,944,023
80,000,000
225,303,556
7.249,501,637
6,602,121,503
1,729,634,776
13,300,000
13,180
14,199,171
69,614,618
549,240,759
515,847,829
180,186,565
20,401,351
1,337,488
9,244,649
2,816,752,120
237,138,185
112,687,406
20,851,317
1,008,920,236
5,768,000

552,413,239
45,000,000
912,068
60,285,009
6,000,000
29,621

7.406,588,841
766,502,000
1,147,890,040
21,000,000
165,303,556
5,323,146,759
5,279,023,871
1,404,496,458
171,000,000
11,570
127,559
65,477,322
375,075,279
446,066,313
127,688,959
15,458,583
529,727
699,932
789,499,319
274,547,422
113,389,778
45,905,141
64,704,648
5,768,000
199,923,492
286,145,447
30,000,000
2,799,341
38,171,568

187,931

34,687,128,621
2,573,502,317
355,307,425

24,567,128,858

418,858,652

9,879,023
(176,966,825)

1,449,802,841

2,788,146,133

136,668,857

1,091,081.779,
6,831,577,359
10,534,849,0

2,253,938,813 13,729,058
(470,000)| (29,968)|

- (1,352,042,382)
3,703,271,654 1,449,802,841
5.956,786,000 4,181,064,000
1,761,216,565 732,840,719
67,997,716 44,858,845

1,352,042,382

354,019,947}
5,956,786,000
7,406,588,841

766,502,000

98,241,572
136,658,857,
728,084,715

408,639,000
475,868,961
118,005,961
766,502,000

1,147,890,040
146,053,983

1,293,944,023

812,297,387
335,592,653

1,147,890,040

21,000,000
59,000,000

80,000,000

62,000,000
(41,000,000
21,000,000

165,303,556 141,303,556
60,000,000 24,000,000
225,303,556 165,303,556

5,279,023,871

1,323,097,632

ion has been made as per Income Tax Ordinance 1984 and as amended for the time being

3,990,998,011
(12,500,000)|
41,000,000
1,259,525,860

2,066,593,534
91,459,975

83,402,184
1,082,667

1,323,097,632

1,176,662,245
76,534,087

6,329,528

59,525,860

ed lease liabilities which is present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term from the date of commencement or 01 January

2019 (date of initial application). The lease payments include fixed and variable lease payment (less any adjustment for initial payment), and amount is expected
to be paid under residual value of guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
bank and payment of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease payment has been discounted using Bank rate as implicit borrowing rate @ 4%.

12.a.9 Provision for Gratuity
Required Provi
Provision Maintained up to the year 2021
Provision to be maintained in 2022
Provision charged for gratuity during 2022
Total Provision maintained for gratuity at the end of 2022
Fund already transferred to Gratuity Fund at the end of year 2022
Fund to be transferred to Gratuity Fund/Remaining balance for charge in Gratuity

1,483,600,000
1,165,100,000
318,500,000
318,500,000
1,483,600,000
305,200,000
13,300,000
318,500,000

1,288,400,000
944,600,000
343,800,000
343,800,000
1,288,400,000
172,800,000
171,000,000

343,800,000

As per actuarial valuation report, provision requirement for Gratuity fund for the year 2022 is BDT 318,500,000 which has been fully maintained during the year
2022. An amount of BDT 305,200,000 has already been transferred to the Mutual Trust Bank Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund at the end of the year 2022.

Remaining balance of BDT 13,300,000 will be transferred soon to the Gratuity Fund.

13.a Bond
MTB Perpetual Bond :

4,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

4,000,000,000
4,000,000,000

The Bank issued a contingent-convertible Perpetual bond amounting to BDT 4,000 million as additional Tier-1 capital in December, 2020 through private
placement. The coupon is. Sem-annually payable and it ranges from 6% (o 10%, where the reference rate s 20-year treasury bond rate along with 2% margin

Subordinated Debts

MTB 2nd Subordinated Debt
Opening Balance

Less: Payment during the year

600,000,000
600,000,000

1,200,000,000
500 000,000
00,000

The Bank Issued MTB 2nd Non-convertible Subordinated Debt through private placement for BDT 3,000 million, date of issue October 20, 2015. The range of
coupon interest is from 10.50% to 13.50% for non convertible subordinated debt which is payable half yearly from the date of issue i.e. April and October of each

year. However, the bond has already been fully redeemed on October of 2022.
MTB 3rd Subordinated Debt

Opening Balance

Less: Payment during the year

3,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
2,000,000,000

4,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
3,000,000,000

The Bank Issued MTB 3rd Non convertible Subordinated Debt through private placement for BDT 5,000 million, Jate of issue February 16, 2017. The range of
coupon interest is from 7.00% to 10.50% for non convertible subordinated debt which is payable half yearly from the date of Issue i.e. February and August of

each year. 3rd principal redemption of this bond has successfully been redeemed
MTB 4th Subordinated Debt

000,000,000

5,000,000,000

5,
_____5,000,000,000_
The bank issued its MTB 4th Non-convertible Subordinate Bond amounting to BDT 5,000 million on January 2020 through private placement. The Coupon is semi-

annually payable and it ranges from 7.00% to 10.00%
MTB 5th Subordinated Debt

500,000,000

The bank issued its MTB 5th Non-convertible Subordinate Bond amounting to BDT 5,000 million on December 2022 through private placement. The Coupon is
semi-annually payable and it ranges from 6.00% to 9.00%. Bank successfully collected BDT 3500 million out of BDT 5000 million in 2022,

Total Subordinated Debts

Total Bonds
Detail list of subordinated debt holders are shown in Annexure-D
14.a Capital
14.a.1 Authorized Capital:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each

14.2.1.1 Issued, subscribed and Paid-up Capital:
Opening Paid-Up Capital
73,863,241 ordinary shares @ BDT 10 each issued as bonus
81,249,565 ordinary shares @ BDT 10 each issued as bonus
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Regulatory Adjustments:
Goodwill and all other Intangible Assets

Additional Tier-1 Capital
Total Tier-1 Capital (Going-Concern Capital)

Tier-2 Capital (Gone-Concern Capital) :

General Provision including Off Balance Sheet items
Revaluation Reserve on Investment in Securities
Subordinated debt

Regulatory Adjustments:

Total Tier-2 Capital (Gone-Concern Capital)
A. Total Regulatory Capital (Tier-1+Tier-2)

B. Risk Weighted Assets
Credit Risk on

Balance Sheet Exposure
Off Balance Sheet Exposure

Market Risk
Operational Risk
Total Risk Weighted Assets

Deferred Tax Assets (95% of DTA as per BB Guideline)
Reciprocal Crossholdings in the CET-1 Capital of Banking, Financial and Insurance Entities

Total Common Equity Tier -1 (Going-Concern Capital)

Revaluation Reserve for Fixed Assets, Securities & Equity Securities

445,795,666
2,433,749,434

i [ Amount in BDT
Particulars [ 02 200
14.a.1.2 Raising of Share Capital
Given below the history of raising of Share Capital of the Bank:
ing Year D No. of Share Value of Capital Cumulative
Up to 2002 Initial Paid-up capital ,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
2003 IPO & Pre-IPO ,000,000 400,000,000 600,000,000
2003-Bonus 20.00% ,000,000 120,000,000 720,000,000
2004-Bonus 20.00% ,400,000 144,000,000 864,000,000
2005-Bonus 10.00% ,640,000 86,400,000 950,400,000
2006-Bonus 5.00% .752,000 47,520,000 997,920,000
2007-Bonus .00 .948,000 249,480,000 ,247,400,000
2008-Right .00 .948,000 249,480,000 ,496,880,000
2008-Bonus .00 ,943,840 269,438,400 ,766,318,400
2009-Bonus .00 ,326,360 353,263,600 ,119,582,000
)-Bonus .00 ,391,640 423,916,400 543,498,400
-Bonus .00 434,984 54,349,840 797,848,240
-Bonus .00 978,482 79,784,820
-Bonus .00 1,552,661 15,626,610
-Bonus. .00 3,863,193 38,631,930 ,431,791,600
-Bonus. .00 66,476,874 664,768,7: 096,560,340
-Bonus .50 63,707,004 637,070, ,733,630,380
-Bonus. .00¢ 66,389,404 663,894, ,397,524,420 |
019 Strategic Investor (NORFUND) 63,707,004 637,070, ,034,594,460 |
2019-Bonus 5.00% 35,172,97: 351,729, 7,386,324,180
2020-Bonus 10.00% 73,863,241 738,632,4 8,124,956,590
2021-Bonus 10.00% 81,249,565 812,495,650 8,937,452,240
Total 893,745,224 8,937,452,240
14.a.1.3 Percentage of shareholdings at the closing date: -
Particulars No. of shares Value of shares 31 ‘Il)ecember 2022
% of holding
Sponsors / Directors 243,513,389 2,435,133,890 27.2464%
Foreign Investors (NORFUND) 85,157,133 571 9.52819
Institutions 268,257,066 2,682,570,660 30.0149%
General 296,817,636 2,968,176,360 33.2105%
[ Total 893,745,224 8,937,452,240 100%
14.a.1.4 Classification of Shareholders by holdings as at 31 December 2022 - -

" No. of No. of Value of shares i
Holdings Shareholders Shares in BDT Total Holdings %
Less than 499 shares 2072 326,881 3,268,81 .0366
500 to 5,000 shares 2716 012,695 126,951 .5609
5,001 to 10,000 shares 568 ,897,776 977,761 .4361

,001 to 20,000 shares 317 547,788 ,477,88| 5088
,001 to 30,000 shares 132 ,165,12! ,651,25( .3541
,001 to 40,000 shares 63 174,48 744,81 .2433
,001 to 50,000 shares 44 .950,754 507,541 2183
01 to 100,000 shares 103 101,82 ,018,23 7946
1 to 1,000,000 shares 129 38,298,422 382,984,22 2852
Over 1,000,000 shares 84 827,269,479 8,272,694,79( 92.5621%
6228 893,745,224 8,937,452,240] 100%
14.2.1.5 Name of Directors and their shareholdings as at 31 December 2022
31 December 2022
Name b No. of Shares held Holding %
Chairman 7,954,939 179,549,390 0090
Vice Chairman (Founding Chairman) ,066,321 300,663,210 3641
Director ,019,846 180,198,460 0162
Sponsor Director ,155,406 181,554,060 0314
Director .292,471 212,924,710 3824
Dr. Arif Dowla (Representing Advanced Chemical Sponsor Director ,952,876 269,528,760 0157
Director. 18,308,076 183,080,760 2.0485%
ASTRAS Ltd.) Sponsor Director 20,214,614 202,146,140 2.2618%
Mr. Daniel Donald De Lange (Representing Director 85,157,133 851,571,330 9.5281%
NORFUND)
Ms. Nasreen Sattar Independent Director - - -
Mr. Farug Ahmad Siddiqi Independent Director - - -
Total 256,121,682 2,561,216,820 | | 28.6571%
14.a.2.1 Consolidated Capital to Risk-weighted assets Ratios (CRAR) as defined by the Basel Capital Accord
Common Equity Tier-1 (Going-Concern Capital) :
Paid-up Capital 8,937,452,240 8,124,956,590
Statutory Reserve 6,281,308,408 5,696,354,496
Share Premium 1,095,304,778 1,095,304,778
General Reserve 786,777,324 786,777,324
Minority Interest 132,370 133,258
Retained Earnings 3,825,461,139 3,488,747,189
20,926,436,259 19,192,273,635

519,468,991
2,122,105,013

,000,000,000
,046,891,158

641,574,003
50,699,632
,761,540,739
20,312,240,371

5,725,300,392

5,254,075,689

3,364,194,881

6,666,761,041

10,979,376,081 10,030,955,922
NS | E—

10,979,376,081 10,030,955,922

33,026,267,240 30,343,196,293

157,031,607,044
26,012,964,439

190,415,506,065
16,780,831,341
20,608,435,547
227,804,772,954

183,044,571,483
9,433,537,085
18,157,763,375
210,635,871,943

C. Minimum Required Capital on Risk Weighted Assets (Except capital conservation buffer) 22,780,477,295 21,063,587,194
D. Capital Surplus/(Shortfall) (A-C) (Except capital conservation buffer) 10,245,789,044 9,279,609,099
" L December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

E. Carital Requirement Required Held Required Held

Capital to Risk-weighted assets Ratios (CRAR) 10.00% 14.50% 10.00% 14.41%
Common Equity Tier-1 4.50% 7.92% 4.50% 7.86%
Tier- 1 Capital 6.00% 9.68% 6.00% 9.64%

Tier- 2 Capital B 4.82% N 4.76%

Common Equity Tier-1 (Going-Concern Capital) :
Paid-up Capital

Statutory Reserve

Share Premium

General Reserve

Retained Eamings

Regulatory Adjustments:
Goodwill and all other Intangible Assets

Additional Tier-1 Capital
Total Tier-1 Capital (Going-Concern Capital)

Tier-2 Capital (Gone-Concern Capital) :
General Provision including Off Balance Sheet items
Subordinated debt

Regulatory Adjustments:

Total Tier-2 Capital (Gone-Concern Capital)
A. Total Regulatory Capital (Tier-1+Tier-2)

B. Risk Weighted Assets
Credit Risk on

Balance Sheet Exposure
Off Balance Sheet Exposure

Market Risk
Operational Risk
Total Risk Weighted Assets

Deferred Tax Assets (95% of DTA as per BB Guideline)
Reciprocal Crossholdings in the CET-1 Capital of Banking, Financial and Insurance Entities

Total Common Equity Tier -1 (Going-Concern Capital)

Revaluation Reserve for Fixed Assets, Securities & Equity Securities

14.2.2.2 Capital to Risk-weighted assets Ratios (CRAR) as defined by the Basel Capital Accord

8,937,452,240
6,281,308,408
1,095,304,778

786,777,324
3,456,442,965
20,557,285,715

445,795,666
2,433,749,434

2,879,545,100
17,677,740,615

4,000,000,000
21,677,740,615

The calculation of CRAR under Basel Il has been made as per "Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks in
line with Basel Ill)" issued by Bangladesh Bank vide its BRPD Circular no. 18 dated December 21, 2014.

8,124,956,590
5,696,354,496
1,095,304,778
786,777,324
3,046,326,323
18,749,719,511

519,468,991
2,122,105,013

,641,574,003

5,725,300,392
5,014,294,726

3,364,194,881
6,333,953,924

10,739,595,118 9,698,148,805
B 5
10,739,595,118 9,698,148,805
32,417,335,733 29,443,041,824

164,111,825,644
26,920,436,102
191,032,261,746
13,043,668,474
19,752,918,930

223,828,849,150

157,439,639,697
26,012,964,439
183,452,604,136
6,896,998,369
17,560,298,819

207,909,901,324

C. Minimum Required Capital on Risk Weighted Assets (Except capital conservation buffer) 22,382,884915 20,790,990,132
D. Capital Surplus/(Shortfall) (A-C) (Except capital conservation buffer) 10,034,450,818 §,652,051,691
] - December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

E. Capital Requirement Required Held Required Held
Capital o Risk-weighted assets Ralios (CRAR] 10.00% 14.48% 10.00% 4.16%
Common Equity Tier-1 4.509 7.90% 4.50% 7.75%

Tier- 1 Capital 6.00% 9.68 5.00% 9.50%
Tier-2 Capital 4,809 - 4.66%

15.a Statutory Reserve
Opening Balance

16.a Share Premium

17.00 C¢ Reserve on

The calculation of CRAR under Basel |l has been made as per "
line with Basel Ill)" issued by Bangladesh Bank vide its BRPD Circular no. 18 dated December 21, 2014.

Add: Transferred during the year (20% of pretax profit)

in Securities

Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-17.a)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

17.a Revaluation Reserve on Investment in Securities
Opening Balance

Less: Adjust during the year

1

=

.a General Reserve
Opening Balance

Opening Balance
Add: Consolidated Profit made during the year
Less: Bonus Share Issued during the year

Less: Capital reserve by MTBSL during the year
Less: Cash Dividend paid by Subsidiaries (MTBSL)
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve

Less: Start-Up Fund

Opening Balance
Add: Profit made during the year *

Less: Bonus Share Issued during the year
Less: Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve
Less: Start-Up Fund

deducted while i the di

19.00 Consolidated Surplus in Profit and Loss Account/Retained earnings

19.a Surplus in Profit and Loss Account/Retained earnings

20.00 Non-Controlling Interest
Opening balance
Add: Profit made during the year
Less: Cash Dividend Paid by MTBSL
Closing balance

MTB Securities Limited @ 0.002% of NPAT

MTB Capital Limited @ 0.004% of NPAT

21.00 Consolidated Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Total net assets value
Number of shares outstanding
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2021 Restated)

21.a Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Total net assets value
Number of shares outstanding
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2021 Restated)

F'

" Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adt

5,696,354,496
584,953,911

6,281,308,408

lequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks in

5,037,523,366
658,831,130

5,696,354,496

7,095,304,778 1,095,304,778
1,095,304,778 1,095,304,778
342,532,352 409,820,2217]
51,831,124 48,113,200
394,363,476 457,933,517
409,820,227 486,928,408
67,287,875 77,108,182
342,532,352 409,820,227
786,777,324 786,777,324
786,777,324 786,777,324

3,488,747,189
2,369,155,084
(812,495,650)
(3,717,834)
(227,495,800)
(584,953,911)
22,113,441
3,825,461,139

2,166,251,505
2,973,198,920
(738,632,410)

(658,831,130)
29,178,340
3,488,747,189

3,046,326,323
2,211,344,142
(812,495,650)|
(381,664,497)
(584,953,911)

1,779,195,562
2,917,833,997
(738,632,410)
(224,061,356)
(658,831,130)

(22113.441

(29,178,340)

*As per regulation of Bangladesh Bank (ref: BRPD circular no. 11 dated December 12, 2011), the amount of Net Profit After Tax (NPAT), increased due to the
recognition of deferred tax asset on specific provision kept against classified loans, will not be distributed as dividend, since carrying amount of provisions (liability)
will be settled in future periods when deferred tax income will be recovered. Hence, this entire amount of deferred tax asset i.e. BDT 2,561,841,510 will be
profit for the

133,258 131,752
3311 1,507

(4,200 -
132,370 133,258
751,008,856 37,178,343
X 744
7,280,369 19,083,977
291 763
3311 1,507
21,331,133,467 19,654,773,315
893,745,224 893,745,224
23.87 21.99
20,909,301,487 19.160,905,981

23.40

21.44

Amount in BDT |
2022 2021

| Particulars {

22.a Off-Balance Sheet ltems
Contra & Contingent Assets & Liabilities:
Acceptances and endorsements
Accepted Bill (Inland)
Accepted Bill (Foreign)

7,716,044 205 3836250511
61,583,924 677 61,051,364.695
66,299,968,882 64,887,615,205

Less: Inter transaction with Off-shore Banking Unit 2 879 20,464,318,094

46,197,680,003

Islamic Banking Branches 5 1
49,972,580,644 44,841,639,706
29,086,844 664 23,596,100,618
20.169.474.191 16.753,330,954
49,256,318,855 40,349,440,573

31,407,254 -

Letter of guarantee
BG Outward (Inland)
BG Outward (Foreign)

Islamic Banking Branches

Offshore Banking Unit - -
49,287,726,110 40,349,440,573
5.630,574,626 5.203,529,776
31,224,607.572 31.457,362,647
36,855,182,198 36,660,892,423

12,352,025

Irrevocable letters of credit
ILC Sight & Usance
FLC Sight & Usance

Less: Inter transaction with Off-shore Banking Unit

36,842,830,173
881

36,660,892,423
Islamic Banking Branches 994
36,766,759,417

10,571,089.855 10,053,512.136.

10,571,089,855 10,053,512,136
744,683

Bills for collection
Bills

Islamic Banking Branches

22.a1 Letter of Guarantee
i) Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
ii) Money for which the bank is contingently liable in respect of
guarantees given favoring

Directors B B
Government - -
Bank and other Financial Institutions 20,383,852,954 17,643,412,494
Others 28,872,465,901 22,706,028,079

49,256,318,855 40,349,440,573

(3.212,624,712) 2,826,875,664)
46,043,694,143 37,522,564,909

Less: Margin

iii) Liability on Account of Bills Re-Discounted
iv) Liability on Account of Outstanding Forward Exchange Contract -
46,043,694,143

22.a.1.1 Segregation of Commitment by Type

Documentary Credit and Short Term Business Related Transaction

Forward Asset Purchased and Forward Deposit

Endorsed formal standby facilities, Credit facilities and other commitments:
Less than one year
One year and above

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments:
Spot and Forward Foreign Exchange Rate Contract - -
Other Exchange Contract
Others

38.805,688,054 36.766,759.417

99,260,306,753 85,191,080,279

834,538

23.00 Income Statement

Interest, Discount and Similar Income 78,393,446,343 76,833,540,596

Dividend income. 327,302,273 155,174,634
Fee, Commission and Brokerage 1,267,781,974 1,110,303,099
Exchange Gain 6,020,219,149 977,045,235

Other Operating Income 1,604,700.340

27,613,450,079

1,595,148,232
20,671,211,796
Expenses:
Interest, Fee and Commission
Administrative expenses.
Other operating expenses
Depreciation on Banking Assets

12,197,762,448
5,236,254,449

8.821,458,698
4,751,191,008

Operating profit

24.00 oni
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-24.a) 15,838,446,494 14,329,716,118
MTB Securities Limited 228,877,965 232,395,343
MTB Capital Limited 47,426,272 45,323,079
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited
Less: Intragroup Interest Income (Loans) (49,856,702)| (35,520,509)
Less: Intragroup Interest Income (Bank balance) 22,077; 9.432,616;

16,064,871,951 14,562,48

24.a Interest Incomelprofit on investments.
Loans and Advances/investments (Note-24.a.1)

75,642,086,072 74,237,848,843

Money at Call and Short Notice 8,199,282 8,471,250
Short Term Placement (Local) 56,272,786 23,232,207
Short Term Placement (Foreign) 549,105,350 197,256,789

76,255,663,491 14,466,809,179
(417.216,997) (137,093,061

75,838,446,494 14,329,716,118

Less: Inter transaction with Offshore Banking Unit

24.a.1 Interest on Loans and Advances/investments
Cash Credits
Overdrafts
Bills Purchased and Discounted
Continuous Loans
Demand Loans
Term Loans.

7,993,660,989
1,773,987.441
227,559,174
900,632,427
3,363,656,317
5,097,624,753

2,129,299,547
1,647.680,170
160,157,248
952,078,195
2,524,571,160
5,191,316,498

Short term Agri. Credit and Microcredit 377,687,076 445,627,367
Packing Credit 43,030,039 48,608,841
Credit Cards 383,760,495 297,770,564
Staff Loan 31,425,202 31,145,355
Lease Finance 29,979,201 33,754,242

14,222,903,112 13,462,000,187

Offshore Banking Unit 1,214,363,089 62,305,245

Islamic Banking Branches 204,819,871 13,534,411

642,086,072 14,237,848,843

25.00 Consolidated Interest paid/profit shared on deposits and borrowings etc.
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-25.a)

12,197,762,448 §.821,458,698

MTB Securities Limited 27,480,783 22,853,884
MTB Capital Limited 22,375,919 16,036,186
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited -

Less: Intragroup Interest Expense (Borrowings) (49,856,702)| (35,520,509)
Less: Intragroup Interest Expense (Deposits) 7] 9.432,616;

12,197,740,371 8,815,395,643

25.a Interest paid/profit shared on deposits and borrowings etc.
Interest on Deposit and Other Accounts (Note-25.a.1 )
Interest on Subordinated Bonds and Borrowing from other Banks and Financial Institutions (25..2)

8,366,411,355

Offshore Banking Unit

Islamic Banking Branches k

Less: Inter transaction with Offshore Banking Unit (417.216,997) (137,093,061
,448

12,197,762,44 8,821,458,698

25.a.1 Interest on Deposits and Other Accounts

Current Deposit & Other Accounts 2,256,854 5,867,540
Savings Deposit 620,538,457 580,831,806
Fixed Deposits 6799.274,719 4,272,997,573
Special Noticed Deposits 797,795,063 454,512,309

Deposit Products

2,051,980.523
10,283,

505,604,329 302,001,889
545,938,720 707.172,267
3,048

1,051, 4,156

2,038,937.970

25.a.2 Interest on Subordinated Bonds and Borrowing other Banks and Financial Institutions,
Interest on Borrowing from other Banks and Financial Institutions.
Interest on Subordinated Debt

2009, 21
26.00 Consolidated Investment Income
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-26.a)
MTB Securities Limited
MTB Capital Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

3,482,338,332
127,596,925
37,378,581

3.362,199,216
200,396,369
77,185,733

26.a Investment Income
Interest on Treasury Bill
Interest on Treasury Bond
Capital Gain from Trading in Govt. Securities
Capital Gain/(Loss) on Investment in shares of quoted companies
Dividend Income from Investment in Shares
Dividend Income from Preference Share Investment
Dividend Income from Mutual Fund
Dividend Income from Perpetual Bond
Income from Other Investments
Dividend Income from Subsidiaries

77,176,905
2,183,272,213
645,709,649

Islamic Banking Branches

27.00

i ission, Exchange and
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-27.a)

MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

7.288,001,123 2,087,348,334
267,971,407 400,029,009

- 520,066

555,972,530

27.a Commission, Exchange and Brokerage

Commission (Note-27.a.1) 1.267,781,074 7,110,303,099
Exchange (Note-27.a.2) 6.020,219,149 977,045,235
= 1:288,001,123 _____ 2,087,348,334
27.a1 Commission
Commission on Letter of Guarantee 276,656,112 206,324,186
Commission on Letter of Credit 407,170,102 384,367,618
Commission on Acceptance of Bills 377,148,335 335,629,657
Commission on ImportExport Collection 49,257,963 41,057,221
Commission on LC Advising 15,606,000 14,910,300
Commission on PO, DD & TT 3,923,627 6,122,495
Exchange houses commission 56,258,353 56,194,813
On-line service commission 15,314,108 12,494,919
Commission on IBC 112,788 166,738
Underwriting Commission regarding Treasury BillBond 18,691,590 42,819,520
Commission on RTGS 8,256,155 5,099,956
Commission on POS 3,670,806

7,228,395,134 ,108,858,229
Offshore Banking Unit -
Islamic Banking Branches 39,386,841

1,444,870
1,267,781,974 70,303,099

27.a.2 Exchange Gain (net of exchange loss)
Exchange Gain
Less: Exchange Loss

28.00 Consolidated other operating income

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-28.a) 7,004,664,130 861,948,128
MTB Securities Limited 11,613,173 12,506,960
MTB Capital Limited 15,489,011 24,890,497
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -

1,031,766,314 899,345,586

28.a Other Operating Income
Handling Charges 766,728 297,485
VISA Card 260,874,726 147,674,822
Charges against cards 200,336,320 200,602,086
Service Charges 131,774,224 99,775,932
Telephone & SMS Charge Recoveries 139,989,250 126,251,276
SWIFT Charge Recoveries 40,352,605 31,911,575
SME Fees and Charges 3,789,770 4,886,387
Management fees 31,788,500 28,502,251
Early Settlement Fee 3,559,270 3,791,166
Loan Processing Fee 48,590,018 57,128,820
NPSB Acquire Income 33,297,975 22,157,019
Locker Rent 7,698,230 7,155,790
Miscellaneous Earnings 94,380,928 131,042,951

996,598,542 861,177,559

Offshore Banking Unit - -
Islamic Banking Branches 065,588 770,570
8

29.00 Consolidated Salaries and Allowances.
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-29.a)

4,291,711,740

3.875,876,621

MTB Securities Limited 102,747,530 92,741,437

MTB Capital Limited 12,451,740 13,799,417

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -
4,406,911,01 3,982,417,475

29.a Salary and Allowances

7,033,249,536 7,720,438,603

Gratuity
Provident Fund

29.a.1 Chief Executive's salary and fees

Basic 79,267,606 78,176,985
Allowance 1,985,550 2,374,450
nus 3,191,586 4,010,930
Provident Fund 1718134 1,817,692
26,162,875 26,380,057

30.00 Consolidated Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity etc.
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-30.a) 731258874 706,146,335
MTB Securities Limited 4,983,865 19,958,099
MTB Capital Limited 395,570 317,505
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited 99,543

736,638,308

726,521,483

30.a Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity etc.
Rent*

294,399,593 276,731,483
VAT on Rent 72,025,570 70,478,397
Rates & Taxes 6,319,040 82,189,187
Insurance 233,804,658 163,689,372
Electricity & Utilities 124,562,470 113,057,897
731,101,330 706,146,335
Islamic Banking Branches 157,543 -
731,258,874 706,146,335

* While implementing IFRS 16: Leases, the bank recorded Interest paid on lease liability (note-37.a) and depreciation on ROU
expense of BDT 236,306,601 in 31 December 2022 against those rental premises that have been treated as ROU assets and shown in the Balance Sheet as per IFRS 16

30.a.1 Reconciliation of rental expense is presented as under:
A) Total Rent expenses incurred for office premises paid during 2022

Total Rent expenses incurred in 2022 602,731,764 588,469,876

B) Rental expenses converted into the Interest expenses on lease liability & depreciation expenses on ROU Assets:
Rent expense considering for IFRS 16 Leases 236,306,601 241,259,997
C)=(A-B), Rent Expenses presented in Note 30.a 366,425,163 347,209,879
D) Expenses charged during 2022 for IFRS 16 - Leases

Interest Expenses on lease liability (Note 37.a) 58,437,835 58,457,446
Depreciation Expenses on ROU Assets (Note 36.a) 276,558,599 233,490,912
Total expenses charged for ROU Assets during the year 334,996,435 291,948,358
E)= (D-B), Additional expenses incurred for leases during 2022 98,689,833 50,688,361

31.00 Consolidated Legal Expense

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-31.a) 1,279,109 2,924,001

MTB Securities Limited - -

MTB Capital Limited - -

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited - -
St Logal Expense LN

Legal Expense

Istamic Banking Branches "

1,279,109 2,924,001

32.00 Postage, Stamp, otc.
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-32.) 37,307,396 22,200,804
MTB Securities Limited 530,473 692,568
MTB Capital Limited 112,359
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited N
41,622,020 23.005,821
32 Postage, Stamps, Telecommunication etc. e
Postage/Courier Service 12,351,210 5,044,265
Telephone 26,040,231 13.234.002
40,431,441 22,278,267
Islamic Banking Branches &

5 12:627
73

33.00 Consolidated Stationery, Printings, Advertisements etc.

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-33.3) 40,476,755 713,860,499
MTB Securities Limited 2,226,324 2,229,665
MTB Capital Limited 462,620

537,324
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited -

33.a Stationery, Printings, Advertisements etc.
Printing Stationery
Computer Stationery
Petty & Table Stationery
Publicity & Advertisement

55,856,266

16,684,899

22,879,905
353,

42,570,750

14,247,773

19,568,012
834,

Islamic Banking Branches

34.a Director's Fees
Meeting fee

2,041,600 2,059,200

2,041,600 2,059,200
Islamic Banking Branches 118,400 158,400
2,160,000 2,217,600
Bank has paid BDT 8,000 as Honorarium according to the BRPD circular letter no. 11 dated 04 October 2015
35.00 Consolidated Auditor's Fees
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-35.a) 1,897,700 1,495,000
MTB Securities Limited 143,750 126,500
MTB Capital Limited 69,000 69,000
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited 460,021 467,889
2,570,471 2,158,389

36.00

36.01

36.01.1

37.00

38.00

38a

39.00

39.a

39.01

39.a.1

40.00

41.00

42.00

43.00

44.00

45.00

46.00

47.00

48.00

Particulars

Auditor's Fees
Annual Account
Quarterly Accounts
NOSTRO Account
IPFF Account
Corporate Governance

Consolidated Depreciation and Repair of Bank's assets
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-36.a)

MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Consolidated Depreciation of assets
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-36.a)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Consolidated Repair of Bank's assets
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-36.a)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Depreciation and Repair of Bank's assets
Depreciation :

Immovable Property

Fumiture & Fixture

Office Equipment's

Computers & Peripherals

Motor Vehicles

Intangible Asset

Right off use Assets

Repair of Bank's assets

Islamic Banking Branches

Consolidated Other Expenses
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-37.a)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Other Expenses

Security & Auxiliary Service

Office Cleaning

Office Maintenance

Car Expense

Entertainment

Newspaper & Periodicals

Clearing House Expense

Traveling & Conveyance

Bank Charge

Training Expense

Professional Fee

AGM Expense

Subscription & Donation

Reuters Charge

CDBL Charges

Fees & Registration

Business Development Expense
Contribution to MTB Foundation
Honorarium

Cash Carrying Expense

Contact Point Verification (CPV) Charges
Site Maintenance & Support Service
On-line and connectivity charges
NID Verification Charge

Agent Banking Float Sharing Commission
Interest on lease liability

Passage for Travel

Climate Risk Fund

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

POS Interchange Reimbursement Fees

Offshore Banking Unit
Islamic Banking Branches

Consolidated Provision for Loans, Investment & Other
Provision for Unclassified Loans and Advances

Special General Provision-COVID-19

Provision for Classified Loans & Advances

Provision for Off Balance Sheet Items.

Provision for Margin Loan & Investment in Shares
Provision for Other Asset

Provision for Loans, Investment & Other
Provision for Unclassified Loans and Advances
Special General Provision-COVID-19

Provision for Classified Loans & Advances
Provision for Off Balance Sheet Items
Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments
Provision for Other Asset

Consolidated Provision for Current Tax
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-39.a)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Provision for Current Tax
Current tax

Cy i Deferred Tax

Mutual Trust Bank limited (Note-39.a.1)
MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Provision for Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)
Deferred Tax (Note-9.a2.4.2.1)

Consolidated Earning Per Share (EPS):*
Consolidated Net Profit After Tax

Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding
Earning Per Share (EPS)

*Earnings per share has been calculated in accordance with IAS-33: Earnings Per Share (EPS).

Earning Per Share (EPS):*

Net Profit After Tax

Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding
Earning Per Share (EPS)

Consolidated Receipts from other operating activities
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (Note-41.a)

MTB Securities Limited

MTB Capital Limited

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited

Less: Intragroup other operating income

Receipts from other operating activities
Handling charge

VISA Card

Charges against cards

Senvice Charges

Telephone & SMS Charge Recoveries

SWIFT Charge Recoveries

SME Fees and Charges

Management fees

Early Settlement Fee

Loan Processing Fee

NPSB Acquire Income

Locker Rent

Discount on Treasury Bill

Gain(net off loss) from Trading in Govt. Securities

Capital Gain/(Loss) on Investment i shares of quoted comparnies
Miscellaneous Earnings

Islamic Banking Branches

Consolidated Payments for other operating activities
Rent, Tax, Insurance and Electricty efc.

Legal Expense

Postage, Stamps, Telegram & Telecommunication etc.
Directors' Fee

Auditors fees

Repair & Maintenance

Other Expenditure

Payments for other operating activities
Rent, Tax, Insurance, Electricity

Legal Expense

Postage, Stamps, Telegram & Telephone
Directors' Fee

Auditfee

Repair & Maintenance

Other Expenditure

Consolidated Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Profit before provision
Adjustment for non cash items

Depreciation on fixed assets

Amortization on software

Adjustment with non-operating activities
Recovery of written of loan
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable on deposits
Loss on sale of assets
MTB Foundation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in loans & advances
Changes in deposits & other accounts
Changes in borrowings
Changes in other assets
Changes in other liabilties

Income tax paid

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Profit before provision
Adjustment for non cash items

Depreciation on fixed assets

Amortization on software

Adjustment with non-operating activities
Recovery of written of loan
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable on deposits
Loss on sale of assets
MTB Foundation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in loans & advances
Changes in deposits & other accounts
Changes in borrowings
Changes in other assets
Changes in other liabilities

Income tax paid

Consolidated Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share
Total net operating cash flows
Number of shares outstanding
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2021 Restated)

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share

Total net operating cash flows

Number of shares outstanding

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (2021 Restated)

Number of Employees

[ Amount in BOT ]
[ 2022 2021 |
1,380,000 1,380,000
345,000 -
57,700 -
57,500 57,500
57,500 57,500
1,897,700 1,495,000
964,108,596 832,571,524
23,332,446 6,829,676
1,923,306 1,946,390
989,364,348 841,347,591
770,310,285 683,793,129
23,162,914 6,015,583
1,674,931 1,743,127
795,148,130 691,551,839
193,798,312 148,778,396
169,532 814,093
248,375 203,263
194,216,219 149,795,752
29,190,025 29,938,487
82,351,194 90,975,626
121,338,056 138,116,864
145,802,968 92,424,119
27,591,556 31,574,150
883,273,220 65,813,058
276,558,599 233,490,913
766,105,617 682,333,218
193,798,312 148,491,796
959,903,928 830,825,013
4,204,668 6,511
964,108,596 1,524

1,323,097,632

7,912,104,095 7,389,803,525
29,952,415 24,108,246
5,778,716 3,785,705
14,951 503,800
1,047,850,178 1,418,201,275
295,565,953 252,666,240
96,609,406 83,645,135
25,440,538 31,400,281
347,688,691 287,737,642
23,036,772 15,919,540
535,503 276,779
24912 34,163
40,550,654 24,732,777
6,571,996 2,459,066
6,457,739 2,452,108
11,582,306 36,756,638
320,000 502,632
28,185,236 57,377,268
- 2,269,586
- 1,132,500
41,985,122 19,178,470
537,955,003 246,931,699
45,000,000 30,000,000
2,036,186 1,330,155
33,216,231 31,119,875
184,680 3141475
3,733,946 4,245,737
35,113,504 43,958,985
1,716,859 1,919,096
57,471,933 45,674,002
58,437,835 58,457,446
150,972,038 78,513,485
6,000,000
7,893,868 7,680,095
6919425 -
1,871,206,336 1,371,512,893
38,026,751 16,430,851
2,871,009 1,859,781
1,912,104,095 1,389,803,525
2,253,938,813 13,729,058
98,241,572 475,868,961
1,761,216,565 732,840,719
146,053,983 335,502,653
255,000,000 540,000,000
60,000,000 24,000,000
4,574,450,933 2,122,031,391
2,253,938,813 13,729,058
98,241,572 475,868,961
1,761,216,565 732,840,719
146,053,983 335,502,653
59,000,000 -
60,000,000 24,000,000

1,259,525,860

1,323,097,632

131,563,415 167,815,154
12,918,274 21,668,557

- (175,341
1,467,579,321 1,448,834,228
1,323,097,632 1,259,525,860

1,259,525,860

(609,672.217)] (883,204,205)
1,291,013 (46,291)
(14,201) (12,044)
(608,395,405) (883,262,540)
(609,672,217, (883,204,205)
(609,672,217) (883,204,205)
2,369,155,084 2,973,200,427
893,745,224 89
265

2,211,344,142

2,917,833,997

893,745,224 893,745,224
247 3.26
1,579,005,162 1,688,129,960
91,943,967 170,277,897
36,348,004 93,147,760
1,707,297,133
166,728 297,485
260,874,726 147,674,822
200,336,320 200,602,086
131,774,224 99,775,932
139,989,250 126,251,276
40,352,605 31,911,575
3,789,770 4,886,387
31,788,500 28,502,251
3,559,270 3,791,166
48,590,018 57,128,820
33,297,975 22,157,019
7,698,230 7,155,790
7,499,804 17,176,905
566,014,559 645,709,649
10,826,669 63,295,278
94,380,928 131,042,951
8,065,588 770,570

1,579,005,162

1,588,129,960

736,638,308 726,521,483
1,279,109 2,924,001
41,922,020 23,095,821
3,526,999 3,633,000
2,570,471 2,158,389
198,420,887 149,795,752
1,893,842,485 1,379,388,303
2,878,200,278 2,287,516,748
731,258,874 706,146,335
1,279,109 2,924,001
41,307,396 22,290,894
2,160,000 2,217,600
1,897,700 1,495,000
198,002,980 150,238,307
1,859,210,228 1,362,123,430
2,835,116,286 2,2

7,802,793,245

707,670,241
83,273,220

5,660,803,506

625,738,781
65,813,058

790,943,462 691,551,839
67,997,716 44,858,845
185,249,384 1,971,431,563
2,037,035,466 (2,344,336,165)
9,007,693 8,812,972
45,000,000 30,000,000

2,344,290,258

(27.824,119,716)
18,799,870,813
9,765,552,976

(289,232,785)

(22,268,069,098)
25,387,384,419
4,358,472,567

(5:396,184,677) (3.467,677.996)
7.,395,187,988 2,644,890,387
2,740,307,384 6,655,000,280
1,322,847.547) 1,154,524,080;

12,355,486,802 11,563,598,761
7,303,220,490 4,876,187,043
83,273,220 65,813,058
766,105,617 682,333,218
67,997,716 44,858,845
185,249,384 1,071,431,563
2,037,035 466 (2,344,336,165)
7,893,868 7,680,095
45,000,000 30,000,000

2,343,176,433

(28,021,039,405)
20,654,336,019

2,006,630,475

1,196,461,774;

11,222,671,242

23,736,166,118

7,006,550,175

1,085,671,535,
11,189,033,239

12,355,486,802 11,563,598,761
893,745,224 893,745,224
13.82 12.94

11,222,671,242
893,745,224
12.56

11,189,033,239

The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part thereof who received a total remuneration of BT 36,000 or above were 2512.

Number of Branches
Number of Branch
Number of Sub Branch

Number of Meeting

Board Meeting

Executive Committee Meeting

Audit Committee Meeting

Risk Management Committee Meeting

Auditors Work Hour

157 152
119 120
38 )
15 4
10 3
4 4
5 4

The external auditors of the bank, M. J. ABEDIN & CO. Chartered Accountants covered 80% of the Bank's Risk Weighted Asset and has spent around 4,300 man-

hours to complete the audit as per Bangladesh Standard on Auditing (BSA).

www.mutualtrustbank.com




1T Q0 GieT ffoe ™

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

you can bank on us

Financial

Statements 2022

. ; ial Highlights
Consolidated Financial ?322 gl Annexure - F
<0 : As at 31 December BDT in Million
fnexre ) 1
' 2022 2021 =
. Fixed:‘:\xnse( Sc::rd;zz ! temns 8.037.45 8,124.91
' As at 31 Deceml -
re-t itten down ' Sl. No. ,343.20
Annexure-E 1 Depreciation Written H - Capital 33,026.27 30
o 2022 ! Adjustment [ e ocat | valueasat | | Paid up Cap 9,279.61
o Ban ich they nave interest - iod anded 31 Decarmber — | ot ent | gaance as a : ) ! 279,
R e "Eb' R B S R S i o it S5 e cexnex Disposal | gojance as at | Ratel | Balance as at C"ZWed:W madeduring | 3129072 | 31.02.2022 | 2 |Total Capital (Tier-1 & 2) 10,245.79 500.93
N ontracts where Bank is a ature of rove limit - i A » t eal L _ ] B 3 X
B St o - T SSEEOCH sasaosor| | Partculars Bolanee st | AdHion UG | ying e | B20nceseat | Ratel | Baance oo o — = H lus/ (Shortage) Gapital 353.,643.68 306
e .
Name of Directors e e 11.405.00 OR - . o122 the year = o BDT ' 3 Surpl " 211.782.43
N oy \782.
N AUl Wialek ERQ Credit Sard UTSDD — TomereR e - = o BOT BOT - e 4 |Total Asset 232,657.4
Syed Manzur Elahi Credii Gara, BB 79509580 R e e S8.79C ' " N B 1138410,957 H . 5.60 226,011.57
M. Sye Credit Card Goo = ssooR ' 104253000 0% 5 317329838 1, | Deposit 253,835.
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1 Business other than banking business with any Name oTDirsctor and Relersd & Roproved by - I BDT 104253000 0% W1 s 288,139813 Ms%gggfgf \ 17 |Return on Investments (ROI) 0.72%
L  —— Semes | e Lo e smeos waoime  minnes i %205 | t (ROA) 3,647.31 3.669.78
2) Lease agreemer e onrd o 455,740, 974, 301, 496 ,647.
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Amount 0330 443,631,026 0 372,420,813] 1 3 [Sonali Bank Limited A 0 300.000.000 ! . 80T) 546
4,204,714 - ! imi 200,000,0 ing Profit Per Share (| 6.75
bank, New York e 03.30] _1,879.155,530 0 3600855 | =/ Ltheast Bank Limiied 200.000.000 180000000 ! 21 |operating
%m,mwhrk ﬂii ¥iEE 03.30] 1,003, ggg g 0 1,012,253 i[5 [Janata Bank Limited 120000000 180,000,000} | 22 |Price-Eaming Ratio (Times)
New York 648 99 03.30 67,039, 0 0,758, N ni Bank Limited YTy 120,000,000 Segment Report
Habib American Bank, US§ 548, 035,201 2 6 |Agra — 80,000,000 ! ° e Sheet oy
.30 035, 389,061.4: ! = d , 000, lidated Balanc: Annexure -G ()
Commerze Bank, Germany US$ 58,426 2 o] 614.870.18 2 7.1185%8] | |7 [Eastern Bank Limite 80,000,000 120,000,000 f R e Do s ‘Amountn BOT
Kibono o 2o R R T 6133564 | [76 [Rupall Bank Limited Timited 60,000,000 90,000,000 ! | -
[4P Morgan, New York Uss I o 338.49 7.107625| ! [ [Delta Life Insurance Company Limite 20.000.000 60,000,000 | - Lz r— o | w—
; 338, 707, —= ,000, i i
Lo o SGD 762 30| 16.209.44 4088.747] | [75[Standard Bank Limited 5.006.000 3,000,000,000 | : o | s | [T e
Standard Chartered Bank, 131,127 30 27.501.23 1005.217] 1 7 [United Finance Limited < 2,00 ! s Ve petin | 020 B8 | Eimination
JP Morgan, Londo; Bank, London 221,245 138 3,191,250 663,69 | Sub-Total (C) H o 19195683498 (| 14615134467
rtered Bank, 8,651 - EY A YTYET ! - L -
Standard Chai Bank_ Zurich 2 7 77 4,758,845 7 42,904,788] 1 Investment ' [PROPERTY AND ASSETS prop— 19190345608 3213020 o| 7| | s
Habib American Bank, 51657 3 ! i d Investment ' 1882850389 - sI8RE| T
Standard Chartered Bank, Tok 523.791 09.7 7.4 (6{80 7 7. 600’325 I MTB 4th Subordinate Bon Amount Amount U [com s i B Bk wvo vy e R prrvsnyen | ey
|Standard Lhartered Bank, Tokyo y 76, . ,680, L mo a3l 139 0004
Standard Chartered Bank, German 6.164.41 g ; 205,541,540 ; 1(1)3 337 5] sL Name of Party 400,000,000 400,088%88 i siane it oerBans & Fnanci st 6104804 prey— o | e
3 VTR e TTE ! Yoy ol 310000000 B0
ICICI, Mumbai 1,873,469 7454711 1,055,600 a97] | 000,000 100,000, ! oz | s tos ]| sisgezi
- 09.7 207,454, 7. 411, = 100,000, ' oney aCatand ot - w93 TP | e
Ecrod, Somany T —itsr 463,592 Sst g5 a0 o7 i [ 1 |BRAG Bank Limited _ 500,000,000 500,000,000} | e = | | i i)
Commerze Bank, Germany 4,226 - 77.846.19 128,115 - 22.9413%| | 5 [Community Bank Limited :000.000 00,000,000 | & e P e R el sz | s
United Bank ounma,BK"'lfa,t;umbai 221,176 g X TR EOO‘ZBZI 8355 (;J 27.758960] ' [ Sonali Bank Limited 88’000’000 00,000,000 | ! T . P setona| angnm| i PP o |
[Standard Chartered Bank, 500,482 . 224513 323,531 - : 75444 | | Bima Corporation A s 500,000,000 ' Fumitre & Fiure 5026348342 - A it -
[Standard Chartered Bank, Kolkata 16 03.30 1229, 85.80 13,275, + | 4 [Shadaran Bi — 00,000,000 900,000, H Fired Asset including Premiss, assr | satssangss| 16407851,
Standard Chartered Bank, Kolk: 31, 20202 154,725 27504] 1 - urance Limited 500,000, 000.000 18100877623 4178817811
[Standard Chartered Bank, Pakistan 89 03.30 : 0 85.80 3,827, + |5 [Guardian Life Ins 00,000 1,000,000, ! m
Standard Chartered Bank, 954,277 44,61 2.866 S - ted 1,000,000, 000 ' oter Asels coades | oo | 206500925,
[Standard Chartered Bank. Colombo 56 03.30 9.954, 85.80 21,562, I Agrani Bank Limite - 0 200,000, | to| tosewntin|  2tuane | sasmsosns| 353
Standard Chartered Bank, .3 443,24 251,315 19441 1+ [ 6 |Ag T 200,000,00 Non kg Asses 75600986 | 350955241128 176458516 1054
[Sonali Ba 03.30 5443, 85.80 36,851,944 J Bank Limited : 100,000,000 | o x| mossnasnt| Tstosson| srsm
Sonali Bank, Kolkata ,695 22.877.90 429,510) 7021,150] ' | 7 |Eastern e 100,000,000 A H 223344010 | 26705
Habib Metropolitan Bank 477 03. g T35 9508 7.130.783) 85.80 3;’ L \ [ IMs. MONISHA ANWAR H 3.000.000.000 2,000,000,000 H " R T sarases|[ a0
1,231,924 g = 910525 34,250] Bg- g 1570, 1 |9 [Shimanto Bank Limited = 5.000.000.000 5,000,000,000] : | mES AND CAPITAL syro pm— s usnse| o oo | oo || 2
X - 85. e 1 icals s 255624316 B34 -
111 , ; 103.30 104,885,46 133?53 85.80 9.394.242] \ 70 [SQUARE Pharmaceuti Sub-Total (D) i oroing fom tver Sanks, Firencial stvios & Agent — 979215 2611278510 e e a2z
f i - ¢ ~ %, 263,54 99,1 !
09,490 0330 ‘?0 223 131974 8580 113233781 | tment | e d Ot s | 2msemon| wsames| seenas| wsvwiue| smsom| 2 PP | ey
- 5 - 7,072, ' Invest 34687,128621| 2573502, il
31,974 03.30 321,464 43 85.80 - | i d Bond Investment ' Povsin 8 Otver iiies 14300000000 BT
- R . rdinate orsl 8,586 | 332.312,411825 || 286,846,018
80,559 03. g 2 07 669,11 . g 7'§29’ ! E_MTB 5th Subol e of Party Amount Amount : Boncs e 91046640 5375690986 | 330045939541 | 3495763296 | 650755148| 36162427 | 1916,20 e [ —
X — = 7,291,046 il 1,331,265,
592,017 g 5 847,248 431,67 X5 859, v sL Nam 1,000,000,000 - : o Liies 01425088546 | 26705484841 Frympepe Py gy g p— pr—
gg } i? £ 42,428,827 2‘220‘“0‘2 50 ,764,364] | Pharmaceuticals Limited 2,500,000,000 = ' o - 2909301467 m‘gm“ 8| TOTeASRTS| ASMAIZ| 2122 Seeuades| IseeneeRe| | esings;
S T 4,246,014 2 {E TS 075.716] 1 ; ng::}eBank Limited : 3,500,000,000 [ ere—— — oy ooy v p—
’ 35,825 : ¥ 027,902 u Sub-Total (E ' ot ibittis and tarehlgrs Equ
736,484 27 - 220,000 2285 027, . u 000,000] Segment Report
1000027, 022,389 5000 2285 2399,680] [ 14,500,000,000] [ 12,600 i olidated Profit and Loss Account e
105,000 27. .865.007 1 - — Total Bonds (A+B+C+D) . For e Yo e o1 December 2032 mount nBDT
. 620,28 - -1 ure - E 21
103. N [ Annexure-E | - 02 E
Riyadh Bank Us$ 047 085.74 - m i s
i Bank UK 49,234 103.30 vy - - ! | k have Interest ' MTB Exchange | lidated || Consolidated
:onahSIB:D BANK ACU 00 14.81 14,81 N - 28,052,60 ' f Companies in which the Directors of the Ban ' Bark ) MTBSL MTBCL (UK) Fiminaton _consm - [TTesa2de1415
NDY - CNY . 28,032,60 2,120,406,147 | 1 Name of As at 31 December 2022 ' N 08U 188 | Eimination I R NS REEEE
Huzhough Bank, China ACY 5,283,663,390 | _ 39,341,407 ! in which the Directors have interest | Partclrs Main Opraton I WA | Tz Jsa78 778 | 12197740371 | [ 8415395643
CICI Bank Ltd., Mumbai 58,896,707 | me of Companies in which the ' T LWW 2375519 [ swmmm]| | s
° ' f the Bank Na | T 4269071 1 40684046 | 201397182 | 25,050352 36073135% 781318
Annexure-£ ectors of ry 1 11,3 A U I N 3¢ { 1,50 T8 > AalftLEA | EEEYTTETTITTY
Investment in Shares voeL] Nams of Dir P’°P"eé°'rdenia I ETE ] A 82338350 | 12756305 | 3378581 756972590 | 048789741 |
As at 31 December 2022 T et Vaia . 1 [Mr. Md. Abdu -__GCa I I 456603.150 - | 56 288.001.123 | 26771407 - R
s = 2t 31 Decomber H Chairman Chairman ' Investment ncome 8514283 30,386,841 1613173 ] 15489011 16,102,184,262
el e e | 2 [Mr. Syed Manzur Elahi Apex Tannery Ltd. ' amnission, Exchange and Bokerage é;s B o [Ceossraser | 71,9174 4406971010 || 3582417475 |
ernare] come oram e " 5 ) " 55, [ eoe.s7a.r | - B RN | IR
race [no ot share] Couy oiaimg | Aeres = LYAE, H Vice Chairman (Founding Chairman) - Apex Footwear Ltd. ! her Operaing oone T M5 | TN | 2632470 [o2a7530] 12,»5«;3 - - 736638308 | | 726521483
o5 il - Apex Pharma Ltd. L ' Total Operating Income LTI T N — 543 7 4983865 395 - - 279,109
' ear Ltd. d Alowances - I — - - 22,000
! - Blue %CT::I E::tnd, . Z‘:‘WT:; Tnsurance and Electil 73 2311325 - 530473 84,151 - 11 :%5,599
' - Apex Enterp tLtd ' gal Expense e 875955 2206324 462620 - 76,16075
! - Apex /';;Vesr:fgig (Bangladesh) Lid. ! ostage, Samps and Teephone e 170182 - - 526900
- Grey Adverti d Advertisement £ B | 7o8600] 56899 - ¥
: T Quantum Consumer Solutions Ltd : ing,Saborryod At X T ] ] N e
i - Manusher Jonno Foundation N oclos Foo . = [ Tsnus] T - 507 30178 | [T o802
' Sunbeams School Ltd ! udit Fee 28 5 4,204,668 [ 29952415 5178716 14,951 290,391,017 || 7.043.306,578
: aging Director 1 S WYY T IO T Totrta 3| ourmase| — wagrt 120279345 | [5.660803506
' wan O e tonal Publicaions Lid = i, I T g | sossa] o] el [ oimos|
' - . ' ing Expenses Ty | 92080565 | 72703, 1 - . 98241572 [ 475866.961 |
H D"e“oé dit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB) I +oft Bofors Proviion 719843412 ] 92080565 e
redi 1 - [ 335502653 |
- b d. (CDBL) E 3,983 335,592,665
1 - Central Depository Ba"glfde:h b ' jg:':Ge'::vs;\m;mwsmn-comwg - - ;ggggn 0| [ st0.00000]
' Chairman of the Board o{ Trustee: H cic Provsion | 760000000 | 36000000 50,000,000 Eomg
Unrestizod el B - EastWest University ' Ot Balance She fems ] - 57445093 | | 2,122,031.39
Faco [No. of Share an ‘../(-:!:247 | Member of the Board of Trustees o ' Mergn o & nvestnentn e s ton | Teomani] T o ;:zzs‘m,m [sswrmarm|
e e Gn Quoten Zsis = o ! - Centre for Policy D‘alofg ;e (CIZde)sh i her Assel 2924768557 | 283863284 zn,ium (#rdn) 359183916 M
78 e s e ' iabati iation of Bang tal Provision - [ ro2e5448] 1290, - 297320047
CSTOT T o batic Associal " ' o 713425415 | 122854, 2369158395 | [ 2.073,200427 |
o I Averago | o NAVon Garmiieas ] gl:n ladesh Freedom Foundation ' rofit Before Tax 2211344142] T51008880 | Tam0368 | (aragni)
A e e e e —_Dangadesh Freedom Foundalk i oo ToxBgeres 211344 —
o [ort s e A I Rl I T i — Chairman_ , : L
Unit Funa (U o e _2;_;%._% 7000 — e ' 3 [Mr. Md. Wakiluddin - Baridhara Corporation Ltd. cossing Lid. H [Net Proft Aftr Tax ing Uit G20 Amnexure-H
B ELX R oS o e o Unreatized H Direct Baridhara Agro & Food Pro " IaTB) ' Off Shore Banking
e w 347.600.:660 einea | TSharesor | nav [asa3ibecemuer| Unresized irector - idiary o ' t
BN o Sy oo | o ! : Fully owned subsidiary Balance Shee
Er et | e s Chairman (Fully I st h
race [wo-oronre] cone o e el e - MTB Securities Limited (MTBSL) ! As at 31 December 2022
a i e i - MTB Capital Limited (MTBCL) ' — I a T
o e T e mear o ing Director ' U | B0
i Saamsel seceseel o il ] ! Managing o5 Ltd Notes [ERo T Bt ||
To—T—3080050 T5.861.900.131 1 7o6.64428 ey H - Swadesh Properties Ltd. ' Particulars o UsD_ | BOT
e = I : Swadesh Global Media Lud. 1 . - :
22 ,
700,000,000 - HURDCO Internal 1 d Assets - - -
59,000 000 1 ) ' Property an .
*ggg‘g’gg”" ' Dlrecmsrwad%h Land Developers Ltd. | Cash foreign currencies) : ” : | - - -
7500000 000 ' — In hand (including foreign currg -
11000.000.000 Chairman - ! jent bank (s)
it ' Wi Wi Fedaytaiiah Hedayetullah Securities Ltd. : Balnce it Bangldesh Bark an s agent bk o) o o
L otaooone = ' Director Managing Director ' (including foreign currencies) - 70737 577,345 49,536,232 =
Soo-a0a003 — ' FB Footwear Ltd. e ' o . 0 1022963 3, 107, - - - )
ey i - Footbed Footwear L | Balance with other banks and financia institutions - - . smas|  soson g 3956
T S 0o | Nuovo Shoes (BD) Ltd. \ ar|  aoan ;
Sooman ' - i InBangladesh W) 0208 % -
100:000 " 1 Director . - 9 212574,
xS o] S | - Apex Tannery Ltd. » ' s Bengadesh T LMESN NS DISOUN LOH Mk
P - i -_Apex Property Development Ltd. ' 4 A9TIAR 021800785 20 T2 6500|5008 58] 2 03008 ][ 2 o] 22
o R ﬁ, Cost Holding | Averas = T ! Chairman ts Ltd ' Loans and advances 192,023,952 | 19,835,498,142 || 20,915,712 seatio| 4 ) -
—— Z80 EEiRe H 5 |Mr. Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury - ABC Building P;:T_l:g s Ltd. ! Loans, cash credit, overdrafs lc | wmsns
2 o i ! Director - Danga Garmen ) H Bils purchased and discounted i ) . -
= = o2 ' Director X i X i - - . .
z = = . - Associated Builders Corporation Lid i includii ises, fumiture and fixtures - . . 174320 149,662,620 .
s S 2 = e ' - ABC Real Estate Lid. I Fixed assets including premises, 0454397 41TBBITA1 . - - T T
2 53 % s | . - 613
Tl e oo o ! Chairman Bangladesh) Ltd. v Othrasses - 5L 2086406581 76103150 20850508 1183,
ez s — — osv | S5 STNAV oS , 6 |Dr. Arif Dowla - Tetley ACI (Bang ' Non - banking assets 236,200607 24 407,077,860 20,349, z
Averase | oulimaran, |y amountasat | unreatces SR o Gy A v
No. ot Share | Cout wotaing | AYaram o i ‘:3202551 T L) ‘&;iégz 1 (Dé':::g;enmg Advanced Chemical Industries Ltd.)  |Vice 'AC! HoalthCare Limited ! Total assets
Vi | sTx T e 0 e f
£ XY 2 1000 T 7 e 1 207 ' ing Director ) d ' ’
=== = ES IR EaE ' - Advanced Chemical Industres (ACI) Lt " Ligiites and Capitl QTBETE TN Z2SMWTHMT QNG 211874366
e e ALY Totar vatue am per | o ' - ACI Logistics Limited | ' Liabilties jalinsttutions and agents 6 211,750,445 21,874,115339 20,580,000 2,257,866, prog BINB .
P LTI Prep— o5% NAV ’f;("::‘i,z::: GainiLoss. : - Stochastic Logic Limite ' Borrowings from other banks, financial insttutions and ag . - - R
vaide |l cortretaa | 7 o R s e — i e o Formulations Lid. ! Deposits and other accounts : .
36— irteas [—so000000 — — S - T I 1 - ACI Motors Limited | Curtent deposits & Other Accounts . : . )
- — Z. I L : : | G Pure Flour Limited ! Bill payable ) ) 268,406 23029238 .
T —— ' - ACIAgrolinkLtd. . Savings bank depasis : . - :
Lo Foouireq | wanisines | (Snoraly H Premiaflex Plastics Limited H Tem deposts R
Particular Bequired - imited ' >
N | I : Bearercetfte o deost T I T
Managin . ' 252 ) i r 183, 01,
e o Anesre G e Nargre Flossa - SAHCO Securities Ltd. A 8 zazg;;g; zﬁg;:; 860 70009512 2296406581 267,931,652 22998,535,148
' orate Director er liat It 236,280, 01011, A
C°"s°'Kdaw;fé:iiﬁs;‘zsu;;ed“le ! Director Corp SAHCO International Ltd. ' Total liabilities - N N
Asat Written down 1 = 1 " ' equit - -
Tati i ital | Shareholders' equity ) .
t o | Balancoasat | value as at : Mr. Anika Chowdhury D"_e ctosrqua'e Fashions Ltd ' Cappai dup capiel - i 3 .
- Disposal | gaianceasat | Ratel | Balanceasat C::%”"Q Suaaz | iz | 8 Director Director (Business Developmznt) ' oy esne . i 3
tom dorh \ o ) .
e oot [P hon uin9) guring the | Bienoe 2ot | R | e o ¥ s v o BOT H (Representing ASTRAS Ltd.) - Square Pharmaceuticals L ' incurency nsion i i ) i
Particulars 01.01.2022 the year vear - BDT BDT o ! Management Coordinator ' Foreign cu . -
- BT ED - 104253000 | Other reserve - - -
BDT. BDT R 11 - Square Group " - T30
’ - 884 11663539 ' © H ‘ s - N 8280 21260,
R 104,253,000 0% 1477 30660706 335,751, s ma7s470 | Managing Director H Retained eaming ) - 581 26793165  22,088,535,1 109,
Land 104:255,000 ) S oo oA oAb U staomenl 1 - Square Health Limited | Total Shareholders' equity y iy 236,280,607 24407077860 20,949,512 2,298,406,
n 1,502,105, 263 1,746,844, o 457" 123,689,092 895 gy 352,955,746 - 1 bl reholders' equi -
et oot Smioss raseam irane0en 3inears e Pl S i 50808219 ! Daniel Donald de Lange DlrectolgSiacap Holdings Limited (Consulting) | Total Liabilities and Sharg
Fumiture . 1,959,000,385 00, 128574 911329080 310y 127220 27591556 8,132, ‘128392 618281087 Mr. Daniel - ' . -
Office Equipment's 870957331 45500324 5,128 205304317 5Years 135127, e 337,328, : i ctor h i . -
Gomputers & Perpheras raren avames I tede sivems  sorere saeeh TenaEa0s  ABATIE. | DR‘re resenting NORFUND) [Board Member ited-CONSUMARK , Ofdlance Shet fems g : .
Vehicles 1927, . ¥ g —— . : i
e 917681871 o 5.330,834,976 500,663,106 42115627 | [0 [Ms. Nasreen Sattar - Consumark I'-Im“e H Contingent iabilties . : i
276,064,210 204,768,000 55960870 7427 Gia0  ddlnesn TSR0 1STSETATOE ) Independent Director __ Independent Direc O mited ' Acceptances and endorseme A . -
As at 31 December 2022 6 48406608 2380728884 408,776,455 204484, ) TR 11 [Mr. Farug Ahmad Siddiqi - Summit P?/:r;minee) ! Leflers o quaraniee - ) ) .
475,094,624 406, R 4,543,237, 1 irector Rating AB I - -
Right off use Asses as per IFRS 16 1954,040,956 68 9,808.600.124 3838611431 795148129 90,522,325 ' Independent Dire Membeér(edit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Ltd. (CRAB) : \rrevocableu\e?emmed“ i )
03675 ! L SIEneY & Sangaceen I Bilsfor ollecion -
9.233,105166 679,862,626 1 . rman Finance i -
As at 31 December 2022 Consolidated Fixed Asset Schedule ! S SeeTMenoaEe R Ch_a Industrial & Infrastructure Development Fina ' Oercoigent abiies . A .
Ao at 31 December 2021 Tati Writen down : 2 Ma‘na)g,ing Director & CEO Company Limited (IIDFC) : z - N -
Adistment | gajance asat | valueasat | Vice Chairman ted (PDBL) ' Other commitments - ) - -
cort Disposal | pjance as at | Ratel | Balance as at Charged 1 | made during | Barnce 2sat | value a8t ' - Primary Dealers Bangladesh Limited (I ' Documentaryrdis and shot e e et ansections - : A )
i Bororar | e eioa| duringthe | Battoe st R vl “ororaon the pe the period BOT BOT ) Director . Fonvrd assels urchased and fonvard depis placed - ) )
Particulars he period BOT 0T f Bangladesh Ltd. onva iing faciiies -
01.01.2021 | thep watded BOT BOT 104253000 | LI o (gFu"y owned subsidiary of MTB) ' Undrawn note issuance and revolving undenwriting facie . A .
Bl - S i irman 1 " -
— = 53000 0% ; . o ot hiolaes Vice CT\,T-:-'B Securities Limited (MTBSL) ' Undrawn forma standby fecltes redit ines and ofher commitments - 5 - -
104253000 ' D imos 2% Taaioom  o37s0e  3nise i wnee ~ MTB Capital Limited (MTBCL) ! Licblties against forvard purchase and sele -
Land 1,502,105,795 N 1710683212 10% 774,413, 0742,666 35384809 1,378,457, Tarars Member H - - )
immovabe Propery e e o o s reaoes satamons S A0S0  erana ' Trusteo Mot Angladesh ! Other commitments ; - -
ture 010, 899, 310 years 363, 20 127, . H -
it oo st tosese e s e Somao  omie  mores  eemer | Membor ! .
oo g crpneres 187395267 STana  Teas  stvarert 3M0years 188613801 65828, TEITe 190 | - Prothom Alo Trust .
Motor Vehicles 430,831,169 487,625, § 122,408 63,456,365__3; ' asurer
Intangible Asset 279.064.210 2,047,168,934 456, a0t Tre: SR Centre
e 5,427,392 498,776,455 1,455,264, ! asue
- 3 235,427,
Sub Total 1,954,040,956 263,349,06 H
- 1,954,040 5394493735 !
1,589,343,346 364,697,610 5 $3.456.365 _ 3.838.611.431
Right-of-use Assets as per IFRS 16 S T 3210517997 691549,
1
EeNDcen____SSeSUR MM TN SIS - _STOSOV DU S MRS DM
BoalSiDecombor2021 8106804420 1201668105 TEJT6T XBASIES - 320SU G579 63456365 SERSAT 6304957%
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Off Shore Banking Unit (OBU) Annexure- H
Profit and Loss Account

For the Year ended 31 December 2022

Outside Bangladesh
IMAN BANK

Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Islamic Banking Division

For Musharakah Investment

Annexure-l

| |
' '
' '
1 [ 10,000,000 [ 1032970000 [ s00000] 429,000,000
H ALUBAF ARAB INTERNATIONAL BANK 2046,153 175,559,939 : l,:;z;:,’;’:;‘:ﬁ[::‘z;e,\;esz‘;‘(eo?ﬁq"; C/;unfsraer-?:zl:nvevdezltmem we follow the actual (cash/ realization) basis instead of accrual i.e. no income is
: 2022 |l 2021 ' AXIS BANK LIMITED 2000000 171600000 ' For Ujrah Investment
Particulars Notes USD | BOT ” EURO BOT ” USD | BOT ” EURO BOT ' BANK MUSCAT SAOG 5non‘nn0 515‘455,000 - - 5,000,000 429,000,000 ' Islamic Credit natured Card has been introduced based on Ujrah. It is mainly a fixed fee based service. Customer (borrower) pays
: CAIXA BANK SA. 14,200,000 1466817400 | | 13,175,000 |  1,445.451648 10,000,000 858,000,000 . . : monthly fees against the service irrespective of outstanding amount i.e. for any amount of outstanding, the fee is fixed.
1 COMMERZBANK AG - - - - 4,000,000 343,200,000 | 1,743,141| 169,752,323 1 2.05 Cost Recognition Prin
Interest income 12,342459 | 1,158,959,338 || 562,296 | 55403,751 [ 8,939,084 | 761,036,926 || 12,971 1,268,320 1 DEG-DEUTSCHE INVESTITIONS - - 2,000,000 171,600,000 - - i Cost in respect of profit pald on deposit is recognized on accrual basis. Monthly accruals in this respect are calculated on the basis of
. i 1 HDFC BANK LIMITED 5,000,000 516,485,000 - -
s et on s, boroings, o] wosomim || sl suossnl] o] ssons] s s : HOFCEAMKLUITED : _ | sovsnian 5 Income Sharing Ratlo. Other coats re aisa ecaanized o e acorusl sl folwing 1 Faalaing EonGept of AcoountinG
N Isu FOR OF 000 2,065,940,000 - - N To ensure and supervise Shari'ah compliance in banking operation, MTB has a formed a Shari'ah Supt
Commission, exchange, etc. - H 1CICI BANK LIMITED . . 10,000,000 856,000,000 H Committee comprising renowned Figh scholars, Islamic bankers and in Islamic & Finance.
Other operating income: - - - - - - - - i MASHREQBANK PSC (UAE) 35,000,000 3,615,395,000 - - i - 5037
Total Operating Income (A) 1168657 109,737,165 206,738 2037051 2,251,311 191,667,374 _ 3,726 364,283 ' NORFUND - - 12000000 1029600000 ! Particulars I——|sm Esm
- - - - - - = - ' RESPONSABILITY GLOBAL MICRO AND SME FINA NCE[FUNF 7,000,000 723,079,000 - - '
Salaries and allowances ! RESPONSABILITY SICAV (LUX) MICRO AND SHE FINANCE DEBTFUND 1,875,000 193,681,875 ! 3.00 Cash
Rent, taxes, insurance, electrict, etc. . - . . - - H RESPONSABLITY SCAV (LUK) MCRO ANDSHE FIANCE LEAOER 1,125,000 116200125 . . H o1 O Gneluding foreign currencies) T 575505
Legal expenses - - - - - - 1 SONALI BANK (UK) LTD 6175219 637,881,545 11,127,168 954,711,014 i Foreign Currency N -
Postage, stamp, telecommunication, etc. - - - - - - ' STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (SINGAPORE) LTD 10,000,000 1,032,970,000 - - ! 49,202,686 ____ 23,799,088
Stationery, printing, advertisements, etc. . . . . . R ' STANDARD CH!?RTERED BANK (HONG KONG) LTD - - 1inooﬂoo 429,000,000 ' 3.02 Balance :fr-:;-nl:;nsladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) — S
Audiors'fees - - - - - - | T ﬁgﬁgﬂf éx:NiAgﬁ :zgss pr oo | 10000 ssmovo | enserez 12]238]838 1332338883 1 i oY s agent of Bangladesh Bank-Local Currency) 48,048,000 :
Depreciation and repair of Bank's assets - - - - - - - - ' UNITED BANKLTD. 7,500,000 774727500 - . - - ' 315.485.085 10727578
Other expenses 13 401629 37713087 ]  3183| 313665 192432 | 16,382,861 491 47,989 ! YES BANK LIMITED 2500000 258242500 2000000 171600000 ! Balance with other banks and financial institutions —_ =
Total operating expenses (B) 401629 37713087 _ 3183 313665 192432 16382861 491 47989 | R SUVATE PARTNERSHI FUND SA SCAVS - 10m0001  1ooasmeme . . | e ciosh [ ] il
Profit  (loss) before provision (C=A-B) 767,028 72024079 203554 20056487 2058879 175284512 3235 316294 ! SICAV (LUX) MIGRO AND SHE FINANGE LEADERS {87300 preprbyeen ! oo Procomont it Barice 2 Othor Finamcial Inettution - 5
1 ICAV (LUX) AGRICULTURE FUND 1,875,000 193,681,875 1 . —
Provision for loans and advances / i - - - - - - . ' GLOBAL MICRO AND SME FINANCE FUND 4375000 1451924375 ' Mercantie Bank Limited 450,000,000 710,000.600
Specific provision N N N - N : SICAV (LUX) MICRO AND SME FINANCE DEBTFUND | 4.375,000 | : Jamuna Bank Limited 300,000,000 -
. Exim Bank Limited 300,000,000 580,000,000
General provision - - - - - : : Premier Bank Limited - 400,000,000
Total provision (D) - - - - ' 7.00 Deposits and other accounts ' . —_1,050,000,000 __1,090,000,000
;o(al proli;l(loss) before taxes (C-D) 767008 72004079 203554 20056487 2058879 175284512 3,235 316,294 ! Fired Deposis - I ] |:|:| ! 500 e o oy 556000 555000
rovision for taxation ' - X N Others (Note: 5.02) 100,000,000 -
519, 80,000 419 980,000
gu;rem tax | ) | ) || ) | ) || | B || ) | | | 800 Otheriabilities H 5.01 in Govt. ities)
eferred tax - - - - - - ' Sundry Crediors T35 7082 TRaB] 0520968 . 1 Sukuk Islamic Bond m m
h h h h h h h h : Due to Head Office (Retained earnings) 767,028 203,554 2,058,879 175,284,512 3,235 316,294 : 5.02 Other (Investment in other securities)
Net profit/ (loss) after taxation 67,028 72024079 203554 20056487 2058879 175284512 3235 316,294 H Inerest Payabe on Borrowing 1389775 142875 171868 | 100546316 4%0(  aus9| | - Fund (Unquoted)
Retained earnings brought forward from previous years - - - - - - ' Translation gain/{loss) - 207 - 275/ - 1,367,302 (1289 UCB Taqwa Growth Fund 50,000,000 -
767,028 72,024,079 203,550 20,056,487 2050879 175284512 323 316,294 : 24,521,162 2,532,962,522 369,512 40,539,795 4,873,183 418,119,093 7,594 739,560 : Shanta Amanah Shariah Fund 0. 000 -
H 9.00 Contingent Liabilities & ! 6.00 Investments
' Letter of Guarantee [ 1 - [ - - I -1 Bl - 1 o R stiartind 7,653,630,205 B
) 1 - - - h - - 1 Bai Sal 1,555,619,358 -
0ff Shore Banking Unit (BU) Annexure | 1000 Interest income | Fire Purehase Shirkatul Melk (HPSM) 934.532.026 344,915,845
. v : Interest on loans and advances (Note:-10.01) 561,991 55,373,699 8,648,294 736,280,257 12,971 1,268,320 : :\7‘%"&%;‘2;‘ C;SARD ;2;;?3;2?,3 N
Notes to the Fmanc'al statements ' Foreign Currency Lending (Note:-10.02) 24,756,668 N 4,248.528,554 344,915,845
For the Year ended 31 December 2022 : = Payabis inside Baniadsch
ayable Inside Banglades
1 10.01 Interest on d ad 1 Inland Documentary bills purchased [ 181,583,112 ] [ —1
' inapaii 7,009,665 - - TOOT81A| 85290342 - — Payable Outside Bangladesh 181,583,112 R
100 Sttusof the ui ' Interest on UPAS 10,539,662 561,991 55,373,699 7442108 633590402 2or | 1288320| ayable Outside Banglades| 5
A US OF Ine unii 1 Interest on Placement to other OBU 144,008 - - 18,628 1,585,892 - - i 1 i
) - T R ' Inland Documentary bils purchased zssm 81854 15482300 ' 601 e saa UGy oane and oit
The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unt ('the Unit') permission vide letter No. BRPD(P-3)744{105)2009-4470 dated December 3, 2009. The Bank commenced operafion of this unit rom December 07, ' Foreign Documentary blls purchased R . 3892 31311 R R ! Standard 4.430,111,667 344,915,845
2009, The Of-shore Banking Unit s govened under te rues and guidelines ofthe Bangladesh Bank. s off s located at 26, MTB center, Guishan South Avenue, Gulshan Circl 1, Dhaka 1212, | 012 Forson Gy Londi '“‘“959 1120046023 _ 61091 51369 _ 8646204 736200251 12911 126830 Sy Sion Account (SMA) :
S .02 Foreign Currency Lending ' X
110 Principal activities 1 Foreign Curtency Lending 317500 29813310 g 30052 70,750 24,756,658 ' e
- . " . . . . . B P . Y ' 317 500 29,813,314 305 30,052 190 790 24,756, GGB - N Dl;uit;ﬂ =
The principal actities of the units are to provide ll kinds of commercial banking services fo s customers through s offshore Banking Units in Bangladesh. ' 11,00 Intereston deposits and borrowings, fc. ! Bad & Loss
200 Significant accounting policies and basis of preparation of financial statements ' Ieret e on deps ] 355 553 soniol| s e o] ] ! Batdbia
' Interest paid on borrowings ¥ 048,790, 681, ,822. ' . . .
240 Basis of accounting ' _mm ot mmow _monmo _eeim swiosy o e ! 6.02 Sf:agr:aphlcal Location wise Loans and Advances
A } ! " ! ' 1200 Other Income ' Dhaka Division 2,293,699,033 344,915,845
The Offshore Banking Unit maintains fts accounfing records in USD from which accounts are prepared according to the Bank Companies Act, 1991, Intemational Accounting Standards ' Rebate & Other [ Bl I Bl I B B | I 1 Chittagong Division " 63.882.237 e
(1ASs), Internafional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and other applicable directives issued by The Bangladesh Bank, n particular, Banking regulafions and policy department (BRPD) | 13,00 Other Expenses | Rajehar Dwision resoret -
4 5 R [ el T "7 gal ol °T ™ ol e :
I . ' ' arishal Division 512, -
220 Use of estimates and judgements ' 3 313,665 16,362,861 L] a9 Rangpur Division - -
. . . . . . — . - ' ' Mymensingh Division 4,835,943 -
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of ' B ) o Annexure-l ! 2,378,305,562 344,915,845
asses, blies,income and expenses. Actua resuls may diferfom these estimates. ' Islam 'galB::‘:: 'S'Liect’ tvision ' R o Division e -
. . . . . . L . . Lo L . . . . . Chitt: Divisit 17,938,498 -
Estimates and underling assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estmates are recogrized in the period n which the estimate isrevised and n any fulure H As at 31 December 2022 , Rajshani Division -
. 1 ' Khulna Division - -
periods afected. | Particulars |[wotes| | Amount In BDT ] Sylhet Divisi - -
2022 [ 2021 | ihet Divislon
2.30 Foreign currencies transaction H Barishal Division - -
; ) ‘ ) . ‘ . . ) . . 1 Property and Assets i Rangpur Division - -
Foreign cumency transactions are converted into equivalent functional cumrency i.e USD & EURO using the exchange rafes ruling on the dates of respective transactions s per IAS-21" The ! Cash 3 361,781,775 134,526,666 ! Mymensingh Division R -
i i " i 1 i i In Hand (including foreign currencies) 49,292,686 23,799,088 — 1,806,105
Eflect of Changes in Foregn Exchange Rates'. Al revenue ftems have been translated to presentaion curency i BOT at verage rae and al balance sheeE flems were translated to ' B e e e Agent Bank (s) 315280009 Viorareea]| ! 2,430.111.667 344,
presentation currency at the closing rate. Any resulfing differences have been recognised as foreign currency translation gainfloss (a component of equity in the Bank's financial statements). | (including foreign currencies) | 7.00 Fixed Assets Including Premises, Furniture and Fixtures - -
. . ' 1 Furniture & Fixture 2,028,596 2,028,596
' Balance with Other Banks and Financial Institutions - - 3 g "
A Tt . : O SIS e srim|| st
These financialstatements cover from 01 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. | 'Onu?saigg'gd;zf;adesh | - " - | ' mmg.me yhalibeis 3.215.000 2.415.000
250 Loans and advances | investments H 1 - 30,072,236
o . . H Placement with Banks and Other Financial Institution a 1,050,000,000  1,090,000,000 H Less: Accumulated Depreciation
a) Loans and advances of Off-shore Banking Units are stated in the balance sheet on gross bass. ' !
. . § . . ' Investments in Shares and Securities 5 519,980,000 419,980,000 ! 8.00 Other Assets
) Interest s calculated on a daiy product basis but charged and accounted for on accrual basis. Interest is not charged on bad and loss loans as per guidefines of the Bangladesh Bank. ! Government 419,980,000 419,980,000 | | Advances 6,273,500 4,600,000
K 3 Others 100.000.000 - Stock of Stationery 863,300 831,450
Records of such inerest amounts ar kept in separate memorandum accounts. ! ! Due to Head Office (Retained earnings) - 4,516,246
. N I t t: 6 4,430,111,667 344,915,845 N Receivable from MTB Conventional Banking 505,049,186 284,189,408
¢) Provision for Loans and Advances has been made on the basis of measurement required and as per instuctions by the Bangladesh Bank, BRPD Circuar 14 and 19 dated 23 September G anoral Investments etc. F’m’m’mum’m' \ prOFITREAZABLE T T 138,327 707
' : > ' 2 ,198,
2012:and 27 December 2012 respectively. | Bills Purchased and Discounted 181.583.112 - I Charge of Investments 1,941,450
. . ! i i i i i ! Position Account 46,970,923
260 Provision for liabiliies H Z't’i.e;ﬁssiii Ineluding Premises, Furniture and Fixtures ; ggg':ig’:’i: ssg'glg';g,g ' Profit Receivable on Placement with Banks. 29,992,344 7,035,438
Auoviion ized 1 thebalance sheet when the unthas  eaal rucive oblal Hf a vast event and it orobatle that an outlow of icbereft il b H Non - banking Assets I I ' Profit Receivable on Government Bond 14,230,011 8,445,731
provisionis recognized in the balance sheet when the unit afa egal o constucive olgaton a aresulof a as e\‘{en and it s probable that an outfow of economic benefi will be : o paman —TasTome —ZaETEssi | oo beposits and othor accounts 503,847,041 309,618,273
required to setfle the obligations, in accordance with the IAS 37 "Provisions, Confingent Liabilfies and Confingent Assets'. | I @ Canital | : Alwadesah Current Assounts and Other Daposit Accounts 535155957 BOTTATS
270 Interest income ! Liabilities and Capital ' Bills Payable 4,878,986 197,571
' ; . ) e ) ) i Placement from Banks and Other Financial Institutions - - ! Mudaraba ?ZAZ'QSEEEZ?S"S soatdiaotl| 234328487
Interms ofthe provisions of the IFRS-15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers", the interest income is recognized on accrual basis. ! ! Special Notice Depostt " 145.603.095 6885671
Deposits and Other Accounts 9 6,935,739,215 2,317,774,086 . ! . )
. i P " il 2 - 2 2 2! 1 Scheme Deposit product 480,385,823 27,191,433
2.80 Interest paid and other expenses H Al-wadeeah Current Accounts and Other Deposit Accounts 253,193,054 23.011.475] 5835735315 — 2317774086
L . " y . N y Bills Payable 4,878,986 197,571 1 s
In terms of the provisions of the IAS - 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements" interest and other expenses are recognized on accrual basis. , Mudaraba Savings Deposits 641,314,396 534,328,487 | 1 10.00 3#:&'.:':‘;'3.‘;9; Doposits and Other Accounts T T
. ' Mudaraba Term Deposits 5,410,362,960 1,686,159,449 ' ! § ¥ '
290 Allocation of common expenses ! Special Notice Deposit 145,603,095 26,885671 | | ‘ég;g:‘!rf;';yable 13 ;gg‘gsg 4 fgg'?g?
. B o . . PR Sch D it duct 480,385,823 27,191,433 N g g y g
Operating expenses n the nature of salary, rent, ates an taxes, management expenses, printing statonary, et. ae not allocated nthe current year due o insignicant amount, ! cheme Deposit produc ! Excise Duty payable 9,526,400 1,606,450
10 355,307,425 9,879,023 H Unearned Income 214,273,479
240 General ' »S0 04 »E09,0 | Card Settlement 449,427 90,333
; . . ‘ 3 ' Total Liabil, T 7,291,046,640 _ 2,327,653,109_ ' Due to Head Office (Retained earnings) 68,186,867 -
a) These financial statements are presented in Taka, which is the Bank's functional cumency. Figures appearing in these financial statements have been rounded of to the nearest Taka. ' otal Liabilities e e Legal Charge Payable 55
'
b g . . . Capital / Sh; hold: = ity
b) Assets and iailies & income and expenses have been converted into Taka curency @ USS1=Taka 103.2970 & EURO =Taka 109.7117 (closing re as at 31 December 2022) and BDT Paid up Capital Y - - ! 11.00 Contingent Liabilities
| , ' Statut R i Acceptances and Endorsements 3,774,900,641 418,342,594
93.9002 & 98.5313 (average rate which represents at the period end). ' oo Recamue? | Letters of Guarantee 31,407,254 -
) o . ) o ) ) ' O?.:‘;';eszf\z"e ' Irrevocable Letters of Credit 1,962,857,881 105,866,994
) Fixed assets of this unit are appearing in the books of the main operation of the bank and depreciation s also charged to Profit & loss Accounts of the main operafion of the bank. ' Retained Earnings ' Bills for Collection 753,744,683 -
! Total Shareholdore® Equity ! Other Contingent Liabilities e -
PR, . - 5 5
' Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity : 12.00 Investment Income
[ m [ [ | oftBatance S - - 1 Income from general investment (12.01) w w
W ] mr [[ERO] @r |[ U ] mr [ER] BI | .  ContingentLi 11 _Gsz20i04s0  spazossen | Cter Banks and Financiatnstiuton ST T W T T
; o 1 Acceptances and Endorsements 3,774,900,641 418,342,594 1 12.01 I f 1i " t
300 Balance with other banks and financia institutions I Letters of Guarantee 31,407,254 - I : e o peneral investmen §3.362.700
' Irrevocable Letters of Credit 1,962,857,881 105,866,994 [ ! al Murabaha 502 -
nBangldesh : : : . : : . : ' Bills for Collection 753.744.683 R [ B e Shirkatul Melk HPsM) 15,708,769 6.318.973
1 " UR— . N 1 ire Purchase Shirkatul Mel E !
Qutside Bangladesh 9028 10229263 319 3707374 S5 49520 LUl 3959 ' Other Contingent Liabilities - - ! Musharakah -
! " Bill hased and di ted | -
W IR BM W W BB W WM OtherCommiments R S ! 1o purcased and dscoum —TseRuser. —eaimeTs
otal ff- eef
13.00 Profit Paid on Deposits
" " slamic anking vision annere== 1 Profit paid on borrowings 747 222
i) Loans, cash credit, overdrafts efc. , i
Profit and Loss Account ' 195 335,008 21 866, 815
Tem Loan 19512246 215,356,444 L0759 2051268541 . ' For the Year ended 31 December 2022 . 14.00 Income from Investments in Shares/Securities
. ' Profit Received on Sukuk Islamic Bond
Usance Payable at Sight (UPAS) MOSIT06]  1TSI0%41698| | 20916720 | 2294890007 (| 23604310 | 20251743762 ][ 2162869 2125743% | - Amount In BDT ] 25,685,178 7,018,271
! Particulars Notes 2022 ] 2021 ] ! 15.00 c and
19202395 1983549842 0016720 294499207 259041868 22303012308 2182869 2025743% ' ' o oy o505 500
i) Bills purchased and discounted ' Investment Income 12 204,819,871 13,534,411 ' Commission on Letter of Credit 12,496,834 545,778
Payable side Bangladesh ' Profit Paid on Deposits 13 195,335,008 21,866,815 | ! Gommission on Accegtance of Bils 10,946,224 421287
, 9,484,863 8,332,404) | ommission on vising . ,
[ \ydD g‘n s TOH]  ms B] R0 [ e invesmentineome ( > Commizsion omiag 0 & *% 300
end Documentay bispurchese W0y 0L . 000, W . ' Income from Investments in Shares/Securities 14 25,695,178 7,018,271 ' g°""“!55!°" on :fTCGS 72 ?22 . ;gg
Foreign Documentary bils purchased - - . 1 [ . ' Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 15 39,386,841 1,444,870 | 1 ommission on Srallse e o
' Other Operating Income 16 8,065,588 770,570 AT i
VRBT S : © B e - © ! Total Other Income 73.147.607 5253711 | Evehanen Gain on Forsign Currency Ta5T55T] EAT
Payable utside Bangladesh ' Total Operating Income (A) 82,632,470 901,307 1 14.575.061 767.500
1 1 T 1444870
9577488 208030786 05720 2204699207 265609987 227093%6,896 2180869 22743% H Less: Operating Expenses H 16.00 Other Operating Income
' Salary and Allowances 17 - - 1 Income from Cards 2,941,237 8,120
1 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity, etc. 18 157,543 - 1 Service Charges 1,260,451 233,780
oo . T ' Legal Expenses 19 - 500 ' Telephone & SMS Charge Recoveries 1,699,078 392,022
401 Classicaton of Loans and Advances including bl discounted I Postage, Stamp, Telecommunication, etc. 20 875,955 12,627 | | SWIFT Charge Recoveries 826,750 17,700
Unclassiﬂed(UC]' : Stationery, Printing, Advertisements, etc. 21 1,701,782 1,639,734 i SME Fees and Charges 101,000 4,500
: ' Shariah Supervisory Committee's Fees & Expenses 22 118,400 158,400 ' Management fees 1,065,898 -
Standard 70180 WAB0078 N6 22480207 2609967 227893%6% 2162869 2125743% ' Auditors' Fees 23 - - ! Recouery of NID verification charges 5760 1,800
Spe Merion Acsour (S . Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assets 24 4,204,668 1,746,511 ' M?s"ce:lr‘a?‘emfs@;;nmgs 164818 112,648
N Zakat Expenses 25 - - ' 5065588 70570
Sub total 195707180 028030786 2035720 2294690207 609087 22780,%68%6 2182869 2025743% ! . Ogu:ec: EXpet'_‘SeSE ® 26 % % ' 17.00 Salary and Allowances I
. otal Operating Expenses ,929, L A17, 5 5
Classified: H Profit /(Loss) before Provision (C=A-B) 72,703,113 (4,516,246) | 18.00 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity, otc.
Substandard i L B Insurance [ 157,543 ] [ |
' Provision for Investments ' 157.543 -
Doubl ' Specific provision - - H 19.00 Legal Expenses
General provision - - ' Legal Expenses - 500
Bad & Loss H Provision for off-balance sheet items - - ' = 200
Sublotdl ! Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments - - ! 20.00 Postage, Stamp, Telecommunication, etc.
Other Provision - - Postage/Courier Service
'
Total 195707180 8030786 20915720  D294K99207 68609967 2078906896 D186  2025743% | Total Provision (D) - - ' 875955 12627
i 1 21.00 , Printing, Adverti: etc.
. _ ' Total profit / (loss) before taxes (C-D) 72,703,113 (4,516,246) ' Printing S{ationery 491,412 1,040,967
402 Geographical Location wise Loans and Advances ! ! Petty & Table Stationery 41,813
i Bt h Islamic Banking Division Annexure-l ! Publicity & Advertisement 1 Yot 7o g 238 Zil
Urhan . e N‘::“’SY“’ the T“:’:‘;i’g s‘a‘el’:“e’;:zz ' 22.00 Shariah Supervisory Committee's Fees & Expenses.
' or the Year ende ecember ' Shariah Supervisory Committee's Fees [ Tisa00] [ 158400]
Vi i 1 1.00 Status of the unit i 118 400 158 400
DrdeDis THRIGB]  1SBRes) [ WAAR] SRERRR | [ ZAUER | ISHIB [ THITB] IUAT| | 90 SSolheuit . syou mooing on danuary 20 2016, approued e proposa o intoducing Wamic Bakdng Window: + 3500 mutors s
i i 1 Subsequently, MTB applied for Bangladesh Bank’s permission on February 11, 2019. The Bank obtained permission for initiating Islamic - y
Chitagong Dison QM| S| a1sT|  GBMAT| | msen| deTNE) ' Banking oporations from Bangladesh Bank vide Latier No. BRPD(P-3)745(51)/ 2016.6642 dated Novermber 25, 2019, MTB Yaqoon | Auitors Fees L —1 [ —1
Rejshehi Divsion | Islamic Banking business services were rolled out on February 22, 2021 ' 24 - . .
. e N . N .00 Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assets
L 1.01 Principal activities/ Islamic Banking operation: 1 T on @
Khuina Division . The operation of our Islamic Banking channel is completely separate from the Bank’s conventional operation as the former operates its ' Df"'e‘:'a‘l;T“F;
. ' businesses on the basis of Islamic Shari'ah. Through the Islamic Banking channel, the Bank extends a wide range of Islamic Shari'ah ! mmovable Property N 1321
Syt Diison kLA SOSLRG(| 2048108| 4TI PAEIME) RN ' compliant deposit products such as Al-Wadee'ah Current Accounts, Mudarabah Savings Accounts, Mudarabah Monthly Savings ! Furniture & Fixture 189,633 32,174
Bt i ' Schemes, Mudarabah Term Deposit Accounts (Retail and Institutional) and in \cing products such as Musharakah, H Office Equipment's 3,718,742 1.312.519
afshial UNision ! Diminishing Musharakah, Bai-Murabahah, Bai Salam, Bai Istisna’a etc. An appropriate accounting system has also been implemented in H Motor Vehicles N -
RangpurDivision : order to further reinforce our emphasis on Shari'ah compliance. In a nutshell, we follow under noted accounting principles, run through a ' g\lﬂ;\tg't:f‘e Asiel " 296,293 15,218
' completely separate Islamic Core Banking System (ICBS) named ‘Ababil-NG': i ight off use Assets - -
inah Divie 2.00 Significant accounting policies and basis of of financial i . 4,204,668 1,459,911
Mymensmgh Dison U307 T8781507 : 2.01 Deposit Collection and income Sharing Ratio (ISR) based Profit Distribution 1 Repairs on Bank's property: - 286,600
10060500 0056 MOBTID  2004E07 MOS0 LTERAB 19176 1861056 ' Islamic Banking operation usually follows Al-Wadee'ah principle and Mudarabah principle for procuring deposit. The current accounts are | 4,204,668 1,746,511
Rl 1 operated under the ‘Al-Wadee'ah Principle’. Under this principle, bank bears the risk of loss and therefore, enjoys the right to get the : 25.00 Zakat Expenses
ura ' entire profit Zakat Expenses [ - 110 - 1]
" : Al other deposit products follow the Mudarabah principle, which refers to a partnership contract, where one party, known as Rab-ul-Maal, : - -
Dhaka Division 6‘777,229 700,067,384 ' provides capital and the other party, known as Mudarib (entrepreneur) provides skill and manages the business, maintaining Shari’ah il 26.00 Other Expenses
Chit Disi 130418 R ' principles. Rab-ul-Maal cannot take part in the management of the business. Profit is shared as per pre-agreed ratio, while loss is borne i Office Cleaning and Maintenance 30,320 704,640
tagong Uvision Uy 003, ' by the Rab-ul-Maal on pro-rata basis. ' Car Expense 177,892 i
ichab Mo i The pre-agreed profit ratio is known as Income Sharing Ratio (ISR), which may vary based on the product type, tenure and amount. The ! Entertainment 439,980 997,687
RaISham DMSIDH 202'150 20881‘472 4'07219[] 349'393‘939 ' ISR determines the portion of income for each type of depositor and the Bank. For example, the ISR of 75:25 would mean that 75% of : Newspaper & Periodicals - 14,512
Khulna Division 24034 19222004 : distributable income is to be shared by the concerned depositors and the rest 25% to be shared by the Bank. The ISR between each type i Traveling & Conveyance 41,253 29,610
" ' of Mudarabah depositors and the Bank (Mudarib) are duly disclosed at the time of Account opening and/or beginning of the concerned ' Training Expense 274713 -
o 1 ] P 3
Sy\hetDMs\gn nrn 598578 | 107902| 10,507 866 ' period. Profit rate is emerged at actual, as derived from the income fetched from deployment of the concerned fund. As such our rate of ' Professional Fee 9,200 13,332
A, ' profit on deposit under Islamic Banking is nothing but a post facto expression of the respective agreed sharing ratios. Our profit rate is an ' Subscription & Donati 700,000 700,000
Barihal ivision 4655 440899 508 AT (125640 | 12235186 ' output based on the Bank's earning on investment. ' Fees & Registration 255,000 >
! 202 Theisr d i for th: 2022 Business Development Expense 947,777 -
Rangpu Dison 19716 BTUs1 RIS IR VA ] ' e o epostt or the vear Drtbatnis st ! Agont Banking Float Sharing Gommission 4874
Mymensingh Divison 1,186,534 1225854% 16982] 10898079 (| TS| 3660718 ' Types of Mudarabah Deposit Income Sharing Ratio (ISR) w.e.f. ! 2,871,009 1,859,781
'
ST 0TS T I T T Vansen Roguiar Savings Acsaunt 0% =357 ! Mutual Trust Bank Limited —
Privil Sz Ac it annexure=
195,727,133 20,215,030‘756 20,915,720 2‘234,599,207 265,609,937 22,789,335,3% 2,132,359 212,574,332 : ZZZZ: EZZIEQ::QGe:;lrr‘:llssa\?;?;;nAccounl : Fixed Asset Schedule - Islamic Banking Wing
' 2 ooon Shont Notieo Depost (SHD) AScetnT ! As at 31 December 2022
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Financial

Statements 2022

Opinion

We haveaudited the financial statements of MTB SECURITIES LIMITED which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31,
2022, Statements of profit or Loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then

Independent Auditor’s Report
MTB SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects of the statement of financial positionof MTB
SECURITIES LIMITED as at December 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and

regulations.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Inernational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standa rds are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the companyin accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ([ESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in jurisdictions, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance these requirements and with the [ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financi al statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our o pinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilitiesdescribedin the AuditorsResponsibilitiesof the audit of the financial statements section of our report, incl uding in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assess ment of the risk of material
misstatements of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address  the matters below, provide

the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information other than the fi nancial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s o, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994 , the
Securities and Exchange Rules 2020and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concen and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial s tatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance , but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reas onably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and  perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basi s for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may invol ve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management but not for the purpose expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s intermal control.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the au dit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are ba sed on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease o continue
a5 a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the company’s financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations, we also report the

following:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpo ses of our

audit and made due verification thereof,

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept bycompany so far as it appeared from our examination of these

books;

¢) The statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement

with the books of accounts and returns.

Signed for and on behalf of
Shafiy Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountents
-
M L]
Sheikh Zahidul Islam FCA, MBA
Place: Diialn Partner
Date: February 12,2023 PEs2303113HASTROCH
MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2022
Particulars ” Notes | Amount in BDT |
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant & equipment 4 200,971,170 176,227,139
Investment in Stock Exchange 5 54,113,290 54,113,290
Investment in securities under Strategic & SFCM 6 634,831,694 256,893,234
889,916,154 487,233,663
Current assets
Advances and prepayments 7 29,369,702 37,122,716
Investment in Marketable securities 8 1,256,898,180 957,823,897
Margin loan to clients 9 3,245,333,252 3,200,807,474
Security Deposit for CSE TREC 30,000,000 30,000,000
Accounts receivable 10 68,454,408 9,056,367
Advance Income Tax (AIT) 11 345,406,112 228,970,188
Cash & cash equivalents 12 1,211,080,808 1,424,705,401
6,186,542,462 5,888,486,043
Total Assets 7,076,458,616 6,375,719,706
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 13 3,250,000,000 3,250,000,000
Retained earnings 14 148,864,196 131,573,175
Dividend payable 130,000,000 227,500,000
Capital reserve 15 51,831,124 48,113,290
3,580,695,321 3,657,186,465
Liabilities
Long Term Liability
Long Term Lease Liability 91,313,258 H 105,433,386
Term Loan-ICB SFMU 257,922,339 -
349,235,597 105,433,386
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 16 1,237,089,010 1,176,076,377
Loan from MTB 17 422,923,095 275,189,243
Liabilities for expenses 18 25,519,621 29,521,954
Payable-interest 859,741 -
Provision for income tax 19 393,463,525 261,900,110
Deffered tax liability 20 6,041,215 4,750,202
Provision for margin loan 21 689,688,791 655,688,791
Provision for diminution in value of Investments 22 324,300,000 198,300,000
Current Portion Lease Liability 46,642,701 11,673,178
3,146,527,699 2,613,099,855
Total equity and liabilities 7,076,458,616 6,375,719,706
Net Assets Value (NAV) per share 23 | 12.09 | 11.58

™

Chief Officer
M. Ni Mazumder Syed B Md. Abgul Mnlek
Signed as per annexed report on even date.
Signad for and on hehalf of
Shafiq Basak & Co.
‘Chartered Acoquniants
Blace: Dbl mmmn:&m!'
Datez Eabruary 12, e 2303011 304AS I RO654

MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the period ended December 31, 2022

MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022

i
'
'
'
'
i
1 1.00 Company and its activities
' 1.01 Legal status of the company
R [ ‘Amount in BDT | MTB Securities Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company on March 01, 20 10 vide its registration No.
Particulars Notes ' 82868/10 and converted into public Ltd. company in the year 2015 under The Companies Act 1994. The company has started its
| 31.12.2022 | | 31.12.2021 | ' " on 23, 2010 after getting approval from the curities and C i
' (BSEC) as a separate entity. The Brokerage registration is REG 3.1 DSE-197:2010/427 and Dealer registration is REG 3.1/DSE-
Operating Income 711,585,754 919,129,042 ' 197 2010/428.
. ' 1.02 Nature of business
Brokerage commission 24 343,497,691 473,830,370 | The main object of MTB Securities Limited is to act as a TREC holder of stock exchange, the depository participant of the Central
Interest income 25 228,877,965 232,395,343 ' Depository System (CDS) and to carry on business of broker, or dealers in stocks, securities, bonds, debentures ctc. The company is
also authorized to buy, sell, hold or otherwise acquire or invest the capital of the company in shares, stocks, and fixed income
Income from investment 26 127,596,925 200,396,369 ' 200 Ssecuri‘:ies
. . X ignificant ti lici
Margin account maintenance 27 666,094 684,505 YT Basis of preparation of financial statements
i artici ! The Financial Statement of MTB Securities Limited includes the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Depository participant 28 10,685,261 11,212,305 ' Cmnp‘rchc:swc Tncome. Statcment of Chan‘gc‘s m“l"!’q:l(y:, Statement of Cash Flow and notes to the Financial Statements and
Other operating income 29 261,818 610,150 H disclosures. This Financial Statement have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going concern basis in accordance
' with International i (IAS), The C ies Act 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other Laws and
! - Ichulutions applicable to the company.
. . X Leases
Less: Operating expenses 240,241,687 221,327,952 . The Company follows IFRS 16 which has been effective from 01 January 2019. As IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17: Leases, the Bank has
Laga charge 23,268,298 32,937,725 ' made an in the financial statements of 3 1 December 2021 both as Lessee and Lessor as per IFRS
' 16.
CDBL charge 30 19,083,950 18,900,000 |+ 203 Statement of cash flows
Sales Associate Commission 33.174.036 21.963.636 ' Cash flow is prepared in with the (IAS — 7): " of Cash Flows" and
. . s ek ' the cash flows from operating activities have been presented under indirect method.
Office & administrative expenses 31 164,715,403 147,526,591 ' 2.04 Property and equipment
! Depreciation of fixed asset is charged using reducing balance method as per IAS- 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". Depreciation of
P an asset begins, when it is available for use. The rates of depreciation used to write off the amount of assets are as follows:
Net operating income 471,344,067 697,801,090 ! et
P g m [ ' Category of assets Rate of depreciation
' ) N
Less: Financial expenses 32 | 27.480,783 | | 22,853,884 ! Fumiture 10%
Profit before provision 443,863,284 674947206 ! Office equipment 20%
T T 1 Furniture and fixtures 10%
Less: Provision for margin loan 33 34,000,000 341,700,000 1 Premises 5%
Less: Provision for diminution in value of Investments 34 126,000,000 128,300,000 H -
' 2.05 Revenue recognition
160,000,000 470,000,000 ' Revenue which comprises of brokerage commission, interest income and other income are in with
' Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15: "Revenue from Contracts with Customers".
Net profit before income tax 283,863,284 204,947,206 E 206 P o e a5 boen caloulated based on Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and Finance Act 2022.
' 2.07 Provision for expenses
' Provision for expenses is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable  that an
Less: Income tax expenses 35 | 132,854,428 | [ 167,768,863 | ! outﬂbow 0&(‘1 resources embedding cconomic benefits will be required to settle the present obligations and reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.
Net profit after tax 151,008,856 37,178,343 V208 Cash and cash equivalent
' Cash and cash equivalent includes cash at bank which are held and are available for use by the Company
i . ! 2.09 Reporting period
Othgr Comprehensive Income: ' The ﬁnu‘ncia] s(:alcmcnl covers from January 01, 2022 to December 31, 2022.
Capital reserve [ (3,717,834 [ -~ ] ! 210 Events after Reporting Period
! This report passed in the Board of Drictors meeting on February 12, 2023, where 4% Final cash dividend was approved.
3.00 General
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 147,291,021 37,178,343 ' The figures in the financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), which is the company’s functional currency. Figures
. ' in these notes and financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka value.
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 36 | 0.46 | [ o]
' j | Amount in BDT |
‘ Particulars [ 31122022 ][ 31122021 |
1 4.00 Property, plant & equipment
finencial statements., i
H Cost:
: Opening Balance 245,999,494 125,585,686
: Add:Addition during the year 47,906,945 120,413,808
Chief’ Fman ' less: Disposal during the year 5,044,416 -
M. N Md. Abgul Malek ' Total Cost: 288,862,023 245,999,494
Sigmed as per annexed report on even date. E Depreciation:
gls‘““ m’““;"&:ﬂ"""' : Opening Balance 69,772,355 63,756,772
Clum dA tant: ! Add: Depreciation during the year 23,162,914 6,015,583
- ! Less: Depreciation of Disposal assets 5,044,416 -
. " ! Total Accumulated depreciation 87,890,853 69,772,355
Place: Dhaka Sheikh FCa, MBA. ' Written down value 200,971,170 176,227,139
Date: February 12, 2023 !Daw'llﬁmwgw ! The detail has shown in Annexure - A.
H 5.00 Investment in DSE
. Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) | 54,113.290 || 54,113,290 |
'
MTB SECURITIES LIMITED I Total 54,113,290 54,113,290
'
Statement of Changes in Equit; !
) 8 quity ' As per the provisions of the Exchanges Demutualization Act 2013 and in accordance with the
For the period ended December 31, 2022 ' Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) approved Demutualization scheme, MTB
1 Securities Limited received the following ordinary shares at face value of BDT 10 each against the
Amount in BDT ' membership of DSE respectively :
'
Capital H Shares issued by No. of Shares Amount (BDT)
i i i Retained Reserved for | Capital Dividend , Shares received from Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE
Particulars Paid up capital Earnings DSE Reserved payable A/ Total : s 2 ( ) 7,215,106 72,151,060
Investment ! Shares sold to the Strategic Investors by DSE (B) 1,803,777 18,037,770
Balance as on 01 ' .
January, 2022 3,250,000,000 131,573,175 | 48,113,290 - 227,500,000 3,657,186,465 ' Remainig Balance C = (A-B) 5,411,329 54,113,290
~dd N‘t’ o) ' Floated Shares (53.33%) 2,886,041 28,860,410
: Net profit/(Loss. '
after tax for the period _ 147,291,021 . ~ 147,291,021 ' Blocked Shares (46.67%) 2,525,288 25,252,880
' . . I
Less: Interim Dividend N (130,000,000) N N (227.500.000) (357,500,000) ' 6.00 Strategic Investment in Securities:
' . . .
Addition during the year i Strategic Investment in Securities 6.01 46,034,589 45,075,634
dividend payable A/C - - - - 130,000,000 130,000,000 | Special Fund Investment in Securities 6.02 299,482,630 211,817,600
Transfer during the period - - - 3,717,834 - 3,717,834 : f? ?FMU Fund Investment in Securities : 6.03 iiz’;;?:;i 256.893 2_34
ota
Balance as on 31 , = = =
3,250,000,000 148,864,196 | 48,113,290 | 3,717,834 130,000,000 3,580,695,321 . . ..
December, 2022 1 6.01 Strategic Investment in Securities
'
'
Capital : As per Income Tax Ordinance, 1984, S, R, O No. 319-Law/Income Tax/ 2018 dated October 31,
. P . . ' 2018, sale proceeds of 25% shares (sold to Startegic Investors by the DSE) to be invested in listed
. . . Retained Reserved for Capital Dividend ! L. . .
Particulars Paid up capital . Total ! securities of any Stock Exchage in Bangladesh for a period of 3 (Three) years from the date of
Earnings DSE Reserved payable A/c 1 N N N N N R
Investment ' investment of entire net sale proceeds to avail the tax incentive by the NBR. Acordingly, the
i proceeds have been invested by the Company in the Capital Market.
Balance as on 01 '
January, 2021 3,250,000,000 | 321,894,832 | 48,113,290 - - 3,620,008,122 [ [ 46,034,589 | [ 45,075.634 |
“Add: Net profit/(Loss) i 46,034,589 45,075,634
: Net profit/(Loss. '
after tax for the period - 37,178,343 - - - 3178343 | 6.02 Special Fund Investment in Securities under SFCM: [ 299,482,630 |[ 211,817,600 |
Less: Interim Dividend B (227,500,000) B B B (227,500,000) ' 299,482,630 211,817,600
Addition durma ' Investment under SFCM represents the cost value of securities in which has invested the company
vidond p:;‘a‘ge e - - - - 227,500,000 | 227,500,000 | under Special Fund for Investment in Capital Market (SFCM) (BB DOS Circular-01, Dt.-
'
' 10.02.2020)
Balance as on 31 '
December, 2021 3,250,000,000 131,573,175 | 48,113,290 - 227,500,000 3,657,186,465 ! 6.03 ICB SFMU Fund Investment in Securities : | 289,314,475 | | -
! 289.314.475 -
' All investments in marketable securities arevalued on an aggegated portfolio basis at cost price, at
H the balance shhet date. Suficient provision has maintained as per BSEC guidlines against this
' unrealized loss. Please see note 22 for details.
'
| 7.00 Advances and prepayments
'
Md. N Maramder ML Abonl Malek ' Office Rent 24,928,843 12,102,188
. Advance to Employees-Car 3,611,579 2,806,248
Place: Dhala | Investment in IPO Share - 21,400,000
Date: Fobruary 13, 2023 ! Advance to supliers 829,280 814,280
' Total 29,369,702 37,122,716
'
MTB SECURITIES LIMITED ' 8.00 Investment in securities
'
I Quoted share [ 1.256.898.180 | 957.823.897 |
; Statement of Cash Flows ' Total [ 1,256,898,180 || 957,823,897 |
For the perlod from January 01, 2022 to December 31, 2022 ' All investments in marketable securities arevalued on an aggegated portfolio basis at cost price, at
' the balance shhet date. Suficient provision has maintained as per BSEC guidlines against this
. | Amount in BDT ] ! unrealized loss. Please see note 22 for details.
Particulars | 2022 H 2021 | E 9.00 Margin loan to clients
Cash flow from operating activities: ! This amount represents the margin loan balance with clients provided by the company at the balance
Net profit during the year (after tax) | 151,008,856 || 37,178,343 | ' ;}:)ezezt date, which includes principal amount and accrued interest on margin loan during the year
Add : Amount considered as non cash items : H Opening Balance 3.,200,807,474 2.758,173,678
Depreciation charge during the year 23,162,914 6,015,583 ' Add: Addition during the year 482,745,058 802,276,799
Increase/(decrease) in provision for expenses (4,002,333) 4,332,723 . ‘Edd: i‘g’_r"st‘ d“rt";g the yt‘;lar (626268759723856888) X 52822269:5277 3207)
. .. . ' ess: Adjustment during the year
Increase/(decrease) 19 provls_lgn for margln loan ) B 34,000,000 341,700,000 ' Total 3.245333.252 3.200,807.474
Increase / (decrease) in provision for investment in securities 126,000,000 128,300,000 '
FI ! 10.00 Accounts receivable
Increase/(decrease) !n interest payalble o 859,741 i Receivable from (DSE) Broker (Note 10.01) 59,683,256 4,382,167
Increase/(decrease) in Current Portion of Lease Liability 34,969,523 11,673,178 ! Receivable from (CSE) Broker (Note 10.01) _ _
Increase/(decrease) in provision for income tax 131,563,415 167,815,154 ' Receivable from (DSE) Dealer (Note 10.02) 146,152 -
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax laibility 1,291,013 (46,29 Receivable from (CSE) Dealer (Note 10.02) - -
Sub total of non cash items 347,844,273 659,790,347 ! Dividend reccivable Giﬁiiﬁgg 3‘322?23
' ,454, ,056,.
Changes in working capital components !
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 61,012,633 411,101,611 | ! 10.01 Receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE)-Broker
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (59,398,041) 57,688,891 , This amount repre.sen.ts receivable.ﬂ.'om Dhaka Stock Exch.ange. Limited (DSE) and Chitt:j\gor)g
(Increase)/decrease in advance income tax (116,435,924) (80,081,107) ! St‘(t);kl\/][‘l—;(l;h;nge &!mlie.d ((t:iE) arising from daily transactions in Customer Accounts maintained
(Increase)/decrease in advance & prepayment 7,753,014 (24,573,172)] | W ccurities Himitec.
(107,068,318) 364,136,223 ' 10.02 Receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE)-Dealer
A) Net cash inflow from operating activities 391,784,811 1,061,104,913 . This amount represents receivable from Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong
' Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) arising from daily transactions in Dealer Account.
Cash flow from investing activities: '
I / in T " ti ities Deal 299.074.2 40.564 ' 11.00 Advance income tax
(Increase)/decrease f“ nvestment in seC}m ies Dealer (299,074,283) (40,564,579) ' Opening balance 238.970.188 148,889,081
(Increase)/decrease in purchase of premises & fixed asset (16,687,752) (120,413,808) ' Add: Addition during the year ( Note 11.01) 116,435,924 80,081,107
(Increase)/decrease in Right of Use Assets (31,219,193) - ! Less: Adjusted during the year - -
(Increase)/decrease in margin loan to clients (44,525,778) (442,633,796) Total 345.406,112 228,970,188
(Increase)/decrease in Security deposit of CSE TREC - (30,000,000)| ! 11.01 Addition during the year
(Increase)/decrease in Investment in Strategic & Specialfund Investnjent (377,938,460) (216,511,220)] ! Brokerage commission 47,942,047 66,540,079
B) Net cash outflow from investing activities (769,445,466) (850,123,403) ! Bank interest 32,164 943,262
H Dividend income 8,461,713 7,590,246
Cash flow from financing activities : ! Advance Tax 60,000,000 5,007,520
Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowing 147,733,852 254,480,997 [ ! Total 116,435,924 80,081,107
Increase/(decrease) in Long term borrowing 257,922,339 - . 12.00 Cash and cash equivalents
Long Term Lease Liability (14,120,128) 105,433,386 ' FDR
Dividend paid (227,500,000) - ' Union Capital Limited [ 5,500,000 ][ 22,500,000
C) Net cash outflow from financing activities 164,036,063 359,914,383 \ 5,500,000 22,500,000
' SND A/C No.
D) Net cash increase / (decrease) (A+B+C) (213,624,593) 570,895,893 H Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (CCA) 1301010000663 934,046,866 1,141,674,876
E) Opening cash and cash equivalents 1,424,705,401 853,809,508 | 1 b’\fluma} ?ust gant Etg gﬁg; gggg-gggggfgig ‘22223 1%?3;‘5’22
. . " ' utual Trust Banl - 3 175,
F) Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E) 1,211,080,808 1,424,705401 . Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (Dealer) 0087-0320000287 2,602,733 27,941
. . ! Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (Strategic) 0087-0320000376 144,075 13,505
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) Note:37 | 121 | 3.26] Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (Special Fund) ~ 0087-0320000465 684,105 5,287,719
: Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (ICB Fund) 1310000101957 1,849,264 -
' Mutual Trust Bank Ltd (IPO) 0087-0320000063 234,592 233,553
h IFIC Bank limited (Dealer) 1090358680041 6,045,236 663,147
' IFIC Bank limited (CCA) 0190234374001 587,542 173,727
' Standard Chartered (CCA) 01114647901 254,347,852 228,324,639
Chalrman ' Standard Chartered (SND) 02114647901 18.878 50,015
M, Ny Mazumder ML Abitul Malek ! 1,202,367,788 1,389,881,790
Places Dhalka : Cash in hand (Cheque in hand) 3,213,020 12,323,611
Dartes Fobruary 12, 2023 . Total 1.211,080.808  _ 1,424,705.401

www.mutualtrustbank.com
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The amount represents service charges on margin account, which were received from the
customer during the year.

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financi al statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

We have fulfilled the the Auditors’ the audit of the financial statements section of our report, incl uding in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assess ment of the risk of material misstatements of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
accompanying financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information other than the fi nancial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s o, consider whether the other i fon is

basis for our audit opinion on the

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial s tatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarante e that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reas onably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and - perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basi s for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissi ons, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in — the circumstances.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and  related disclosures made by management but not
for the purpose expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the au dit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the - company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements o, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor ’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the company’s financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations, we also report the following:
a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpo ses of our audit and made due
verification thereof;
b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept bycompany so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;
¢) The statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of

accounts and returns.
Signed for and on behalf of
Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Sheikh Zahidul Islam FCA,I(”IBA
Flace:Dhaka

Partner
pve: 230301 1394AS 183154

Date: February12, 2023

MTB Capital Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

Particulars Notes | Amount in BDT
[ 31122022 [ 31122021 |
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets 12,717,220 14,392,150
Property, Plant & Equipment 4.00 | 12,717,220 || 14,392,150 |
Current Assets 1,041,730,912 825,108,947
Investment in Securities 5.00 443,750,904 289,960,749
Investment in Securities under SFCM 6.00 99,941,345 82,170,334
Margin Loan to Clients 7.00 442,536,175 380,471,869
Accounts Receivable 8.00 13,784,285 42,488,490
Advance and Prepayments 9.00 29,231,029 16,159,109
Cash & Cash Equivalents 10.00 12,487,173 13,858,396
Total Assets 1,054,448,132 839,501,097
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Equity 403,692,984 396,412,615
Share Capital 11.00 393,464,100 374,727,700
Retained Earnings 12.00 10,228,884 21,684,915
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities 96,878 111,079
Deferred Tax Liability 13.00 | 96,878 || 111,079 |
Current Liabilities 650,658,270 442,977,403
Short Term Loan 14.00 374,491,605 218,715,684
Accounts Payable 15.00 14,088,351 17,247,140
Provision for diminution in value of Investments 16.00 79,000,000 67,000,000
Provision for Margin Loan 17.00 81,000,000 57,000,000
Provision for Current Tax 18.00 53,328,933 40,410,659
Other Liabilities 19.00 37,954,156 31,015,121
Lease Liability 20.00 10,795,225 11,588,799
Total Liabilities 650,755,148 443,088,482
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities 1,054,448,132 839,501,097
Net Assets Value (NAV) per share 21.00 | 102.60 |[ 105.79 |
_|'l -~
"65 - [ S = ‘i;’" i
Chief Executive Officer Director Chairman

Signed as per annexed report on even date.
Signed for and on behalf of
SHAFIQ BASAK & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Zahidul Islam FCA,MBA

Partner
DVC:

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 12,2023

MTB Capital Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

. [ Amount in BDT 1l
Particulars || Notes || 2022 I 2021 |
Operating income 100,293,864 147,919,376
Interest Income 22.00 47,426,272 45,323,079
Income from Investment (EI offer Income, Capital
Gain & Dividend Income) 23.00 37,378,581 77,185,733
Underwriting Commission 24.00 - 520,066
Issue Management Fees 25.00 1,861,389 8,809,783
Settlement Fees and Documentation Charges 26.00 3,531,395 8,070,264
Portfolio Management Fees 27.00 5,438,216 4,085,450
Trustee Fees 28.00 3,700,000 3,450,000
Other Operating Income 29.00 958,011 475,000
Less: Operating Expense 21,733,502 22,101,944
Office & Administrative Expenses 30.00 | 21,733,502 [ 22,101,944 |
Operating Profit 78,560,362 125,817,432
Less: Interest Expense 31.00 22,375,919 15,076,942
Profit before Provision and Tax 56,184,442 110,740,490
Provision 36,000,000 70,000,000
Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 32.00 12,000,000 45,000,000
Provision for Margin Loan 33.00 24,000,000 25,000,000
Net Profit before Tax 20,184,442 40,740,490
Income Tax Expenses 34.00 12,904,073 21,656,513
Current Tax Expense 12,918,274 21,668,557
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) (14,201) (12,044)
Net Profit after Tax 7,280,369 19,083,977
Earning per share (Restated -2021 ) 35.00 | 1.85 [ 4.85 |
M VI'
o= Fom
Chief Executive Officer Director Chairman

Signed as per annexed report on even date.
Signed for and on behalf of
SHAFIQ BASAK & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Zahidul Islam FCA,MBA

Partner
DVC:

Place: Dhaka
Date: January 12,2023

MTB Capital Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Amount in BDT
Retained Earnings

Particulars

Paid-up Capital Total

Balance as at January 01, 2022
Net profit for the year after tax -
Stock Dividend

374,721,700 21,684,915
7,280,369

(18,736,400)

396,412,615
7,280,369
18,736,400

Balance as at 31 December 2022

393,464,100 10,228,884 [ 403,692,984

Balance as at 31 December 2021

374,721,700 21,684,915 | 396,412,615

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
is ible for the and fair of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and

Depository participant

BO maintenance fees 9,427,600 10,622,350

Dematerization charges 47,595 1,371

CDS charges 1,210,066 588,584

Total 10,685,261 11,212,305

This amount Comprises of BO maintenance, demate charge and CDS charges.

Other operating income

Other Income [ 261,818 || 610,150 |
261,818 610,150

Other income represents Cheque return charge & IPO application fee charged on the

customer.

Exchange Rules 2020and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the p reparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

'
! 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
[ sta22022 [[ 3naz2em | | Il |
sh ital ' Other income represents Cheque return charge & IPO application fee charged on the
are capital !
Authori pd ical ! customer.
u orized capital
500,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each. [ 5.000,000,000 | [ 5.000,000,000 i 30.00 CDBL charges
'
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital ' CDBL charges | 19,083,950 || 18,900,000 |
325,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each fully paid. [ 3.250,000,000 ][ 3,250,000,000 ' 19,083,950 18,900,000
Shareholding Position of the Compan . - . .
e pany . The amount comprises of BO opening, maintenance, CDS charge and other expenses
'
Share Holders Number of Share Percentage ! charged by CDBL.
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 324,994,000 99.998% :
Mr. Chowdhury Akhtar Asif 1.000 , 31.00 Office & administrative expenses
Mr. Md. Hashem Chowdhury 1,000 i
Mr. Goutam Prosad Das 1.000 0.002% '
Md. Khalid Mahmood Khan 1,000 . ° ' Salary & Allowances 102,747,530 92,741,437
Mr. Al:id“] Ma"l“a'l“ = ‘~830 H Lease expense 12,288,395 17,352,203
Mr. Md. Nazrul Islam Mazumder 1,000 '
Total 325,000,000 100.00% ' Insura_nc; ex_penses 325,948 159,416
Retained earnings ! Electricity bill 2,626,982 2,446,480
Opening balance 131,573,175 321,894,832 , Postage & telegraph 144,073 215,818
Net profit during the year 147,291,021 37,178,343 ! Mobile & T&T bill 386,400 476,750
Less: Dividend paid during the year (130.000.000) (227.500.000) 1 Table/Petty stationary 1’071’454 739’299
Total 148.864.196 131.573.175 : c " tati 973.362 1.301.236
omputer stationary 5 ,301,
'
Capital reserve ' Advertisement -Company's Own 181,508 189,130
Shares issued by DSE (Note: 15.01) 48,113,290 || 48,113,290 ' Directors' fees 798,600 840,400
General (Note: 15.02) 3.717.834 - ! Audit fee 143,750 126,500
Total 1,831,124 48,113,2 L
ota 51831, 8,113.290 X Depreciation 23,162,914 6,015,583
Capital reserve for investments with DSE ' Repalr & Maintenance 169,532 814,093
' . .
Shares issued by DSE [ 48,113,290 [ 48,113,290 | ' Maintenance of office premises 1,191,974 471,604
'
Total 48,113,290 48,113,290 ' Car expenses 2,517,314 1,154,110
Capital reserve ! Securities service 2,997,630 2,738,515
ggznini})a'ﬁmle N | 2717834 || - | ! Office cleaning 2,656,062 2,110,709
. Additi ing the yez 3 - e o
ition during the year ST 834 = ' Utility bill 3,881,290 2,839,395
Less: Adjusted during the period = - 1 C
onveyance 309,005 301,101
Closing Balance 3717834 - : Entertainment -Refreshment/Party Di 2,235,900 1381218
To compliance with Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Risk Based Capital ! ntertamment -Refreshment/Farty Diner =9, %%
Adecuacy) rules, 2019 the company maintaned a capital reserve by 10% on profit after tax of last h Periodical, Magazine, News paper 26,664 29,630
year ' Bank charge & excise duty 391,658 316,734
Accounts Payable 1 Training expenses 20,000 -
It represents money deposited by client for trading purpose. The details are as follows: : Traveling expenses 227,228 211,515
Payable to clients (Note 16.01) 1,217,248,376 1,058,794,149 ! B
Payable to (DSE) (Note 16.02) 135.350 45,985,794 i SOftWare maintenance 170,000 188,307
Payable to (CSE) (Note 16.02) - - ! Business Development Expenses - 11,313
iayag:e to EE;E; 'gea]l” ((]]:110(“3 Ilg-gg - - ! Foreign trade commission repatriation - 641,391
ayable to 2) -dealer (Note 16. - - i X
lpé Payable (Note 16.03) - 58,670,000 ! Registration charge, fees & renewal 2,854,563 1,535,704
Suppliers/Vendors & Others Payable (Note 16.04) 19,705,284 12,626,434 ' CSE New TREC Registration Fees - 10,000,000
Total 1,237,089,010 1,176.076.377 : PO Apply Charge 24’000 27,000
Payable to clients i Professional fees 191,667 150,000
This balance represents the clients' sale proceed of securities and deposit against securities purchase : 164,715,403 147,526 591
which is currently lying with the Company's bank account. !
' 32.00 Financial expenses
Payable to Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) 1
'
This amount represents payaplc to Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagovg S(ogk : Interest on SOD (G) Business, Mutual Trust Bank
Exchange Limited (CSE) arising from daily transactions in Customer Accounts maintained with : Ltd 27,480,783 20,443,567
MTB Securities Limited & arising from daily transactions in Dealer Account. 1 td.
| N
1PO payable : Interest on Lease Liability - 2,410,317
' 27,480,783 22,853,884
This balance represents payable to IPO issuers. :
Suppliers/Vendors & Others Payable ! This amount comprises of interest expense on Loan from Mutual Trust Bank (MTB) and
! . A ~
This balance represents payable to various suppliers, cheques issued to various client but not yet \ apply of interest on lease liability as per IFRS-16.
cleared. '
Loan from MTB ' 33.00 Provision for margin loan made during the year
'
Short Term Overdraft (SOD-General) facility maintained with Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). . This provision is made as per BSEC guideline against Margin loan in Negative Equity Client
The funds availed from this facility is used for extending margin loan customers, Investment in ' : X
securities and other operating purpose for MTB Securities Limited ! Accounts and as per BSEC (Risk Based Capital Adecuacy) Rules, 2019.
Opening balance 275,189,243 20,708,246 i .. . .
Add: During the year 690.921.692 943.483.567 ! Provision made during the year period | 34,000,000 || 341,700,000 |
Less: Cash paid during the year (543.187.840) (689,002,570) i
'
Total 422,923,095 275,189,243 H 34,000,000 34]’700,000
'
Liabi_ligies for_expeqses :
g’;’ﬁvc‘z‘;’;f‘“ incentive bonus 14’%2;”223 lg*ggg*ggg ! 34.00 Provision for investment in securities made during the year
Electricity bill 399,497 516,107 ! . P . . . . . .
sz)irllec;y-r"gﬂ- bill 36.500 37,500 ! This provision is made as per BSEC guideline against unrealized loss in Dealer Account
Advertisement 129,600 80,892 '
Audit Fee 143,750 69,000 H .. . . e
Repair & Maintenance 113536 05316 ' Provision for investment in securities [ 126,000,000 ] 128,300,000 |
Office Maintenance 50,883 49,697 H 126,000,000 128,300,000
Cleaning of Office Premises 40,746 275,044 ' . L T
Utility bill 461.418 645.885 ! 35.00 Income tax expenses made during the year
Entertainment - 1,186 ' Current tax Anexure | 131,563,415 || 167,815,154
Security Service Bill 43,236 543,455 '
CDBL Charge 990.869 1.814.658 ! Deferred tax Anexsure-B 1,291,013 (46,291)
Software Maintenance 329,200 337,700 ' Total 132,854,428 167,768,863
Marketing & Business Development cost 1,042,455 1,042,455 1
Provision for foreign trade commission repatriation 5,312,744 5.312,744 \ Income Tax Expenses is calculated as per guideline of Income Tax Ordinance and Rules.
Profetional Fees 233,556 173,000 il
Others Expenses 1,567,376 98.732 :
Total 25,519,621 29,521,954 1 36.00 E . Per Sh EPS
Provision for income tax : : arnings rer are ( )
Provicion for C: ol . | ) . Heable tax rat ' Net profit after tax | 147,291,021 || 37,178,343 |
rovision for Corporate Income lax has made on various sources of income as applicable tax rates . .
on those Income as per Tax Laws complied as under : Number of ordmary shares OutStandlng 325,000,000 325,000,000
' .
Opening balance 261,900,110 94,084,956 ' Earnings Per Share (EPS) 0.45 0.11
Addition during the year (Note: 19.01) 131,563,415 167,815,154 :
Adjustment during the year - _ |
Total 393.463.525 261.900.110 : .
Addition during the year ' 37.00 Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)
Current tax expenses (Note: 35) [ 131,563,415 || 167,815,154 | '
131,563,415 167,815,154 1 Net operating cash flows 391,784,811 1,061,104,913
5104, ,0601,104,
- . '
Deffered Tax Liability ! Number of shares 325,000,000 325,000,000
Deffered tax is calculated on the 1
difference between tax base of asset ' 1.21 3.26
Opening Balance 4,750,202 4,796,493 ' 38.00 Related party transactions
Deferred tax (income)/expense during the year 1,291,013 (46.291) '
Total 6.041.215 4,750,202 i
Provision for margin loan: : N £ th " Nature of Tak
Opening balance 655,688,791 313,988,791 ' ame o e party . aka
Add: Provision made during the year period (Note: 33) 34,000,000 341,700,000 : — transactions
Less: Written off during the year _ _ ' Mutual Trust Bank Limited Loan from MTB 422,923,095
Total 689,688,791 655,688,791 1
- '
'
This provision is made as per BSEC guideline against Margin loan in Negative Equity Client 1 39.00 Number of employees
Accounts and as per BSEC (Risk Based Capital Adecuacy) Rules, 2019. . The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part there of, who received a total
on for diminution in value of Investments: . remuneration of Taka 36,000 or above, were 69 persons.
Opening balance | 198,300,000 || 70,000,000 | '
Addition during the year (Note: 34) 126,000,000 128,300,000 1
Total 324,300,000 198,300,000 : MTB SECURITIES LIMITED
This provision is made as per BSEC guideline against unrealized loss in Dealer Account . . Schedule of Property, Plant & Equipment
' For the period ended December 31, 2022
Net Assets Value (NAYV) per share 1
Net Assets (23.01) 3,929,930.917 3,762,619,851 !
Number of ordinary shares outstanding | 325,000,000 | | 325,000,000 | :
12.09 11.58 I Amount in BDT
- = , Cost Depreciation
:et Assets : — - Written down
otal Assets 7.,076,458,616 6,375,719,706 ' . Addition Disposal " .
Less: Liabilities 3,146,527.699 2.,613,099.855 N Particulars Balance as on duringthe | during the Balance as on | Rate | Balanceason | Charge for Disposal  [Balance ason| value as on
Total 3.929.930.917  3,762.619.851 ' 0101.2022 i v | a2 0L012022 | theyear | for theyear | 31122022 | 31122022
'
Brokerage commission Vo [Fumie 1432510 1383499 | 288708 2527301 [ 10% 613921 13948 288708 d64641| 2062660
'
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited 343,478,120 473,830,370 V |Fisture & fitings s0485.668 | 9451723 | 3805074 | 56132317 | 10% 26421093 | 2738941 | 3805074 | 25361160 30771157
Chitagong Stock Exchange Limited 19,571 - '
343,497,691 473,830,370 + |office equipment 30,967,702 5852530 050,634 | 37,869,598 | 20% 25075454 2,120,195 | 950,634 | 26245015 11,624,583
'
'
The amount is charged on daily turnover during the year as per rate decided by the Vo [Premises 46,365,000 46365000 5% 16951364 | 1470682 N 18422046 | 27.542954
'
management of the company. ' Sub Total 131,250,880 | 16,687,752 5,044,416 | 142,894,216 69,068,032 6,469,246 5,044,416 | 70,492,862 72,401,354
'
Interest Income ' f set
. . . P RO Ases || 3109108 145,967,807 704323 | 16,693,668 17,397,991 | 128,569,816
Interest Income Comprises of Interest on margin loan and Interest on bank deposit placed ! fmperFRS-I6
with various bank . : ;‘:3::::’;“ | Mo arovsgus|  sosate| 2sma60ns 072355 2162914 | 5044416 87890853 | 200971170
Interest on margin loan 228,573,588 222,962,727 ' i
Interest on bank deposit with MTB 21,709 8,826,790 1 **Right Of User Assets as per IFRS-16: Depreciation charge calculated monthly
Interest on bank deposit with other Bank 282,668 605,826 '
Total 228,877,965 232,395,343 ' .
! Independent Auditor’s Report
Income From Investment ' MTB Capi
. - ' apital Ltd
Gain/ (loss) on sale of securities -Dealer 63,834,172 102,176,078 ' . p . .
. - '
Gain/ (loss) on sale of Strategic Investment 84,784 3,666,197 ' Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Gain/ (loss) on sale of securities -Special Fund 6,136,472 51,928,662 , Opinion
Gain/ (loss) on sale of securities -ICB Fund 10,275,366 - | We have audited the financial statements of MTB Capital Ltd which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2022, Statements of profit or Loss and
Dividend Income on investment-Dealer 31,679,424 31,890,054 1 other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the ~period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
Dividend Income on Strategic Investment 1,264,676 1,204,952 v summary of ignificant accounting policies.
Dividend I s ial L 9’935’625 7’907’027 : In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects of the statement of financial positionof MTB Capital Ltd as at December 31,
%V% end Income on ; pecial Investment > > > > 12022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) ,the Companies Act
Dividend Income on investment-ICB 2,221,875 - 1 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.
Dividend Income from DSE 2,164,531 1,623,399 1t Basis for Opinion
Total 127.596.925 200.396.369 : We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standa rds are further described in the Auditors’
= 2 2 rR ibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the companyin accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Margin account maintenance : Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
: statements in jurisdictions, and we have fulfilled our other ethical ibilities in d: these i and with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
Margin account maintenance 666,094 | | 684,505 1+ evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
! Key Audit Matters
666,094 684,505 ' v
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Chief Executive Officer
Place: Dhaka
Date: February 12, 2023

Director
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MTB Capital Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Particulars Amount in BOT
2022 [ 202
Net Profit during the year (after Tax) [ 7280369 19,083,977 |
Add : Amount consider as Non Cash items :
Depreciation charged during the year 442,775 510,972
Depreciation charged during the year on ROU 1,232,156 1,232,156
Increase/(decrease) in Provision for diminution in value of Investments 12,000,000 45,000,000
Increase/(decrease) in Provision for Margin Loan 24,000,000 25,000,000
Increase/(decrease) in Provision for Income Tax 12,918,274 3,735,276
Increase/(decrease) in Deferred Tax Liability (14,201) (12,044)
Increase/(decrease) in Other Liabilities 6,939,035 11,342,440
Sub-total of Non Cash items 57,518,039 86,808,799
Changes in Working Capital Components
Increase/(decrease) in Accounts Payable (3,158,789) (3,601,741)
(Increase)/decrease in Accounts Receivable 28,704,205 (4,857,876)
(Increase)/decrease in Advance & Prepayment (13,071,920) 11,661,894
A) Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 77,271,904 109,095,052
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
(Increase)/decrease in Investment in Securities (153,790,154)[[  (26,966,638)
(Increase)/decrease in Investment in Securities under SFCM (17,771,010 (82,170,334)
(Increase)/decrease in purchase of Premises & Fixed Asset - (104,800)
(Increase)/decrease in Right of Use Assets - (12,321,558)
Increase/(decrease) in Lease Liability (793,575) 11,588,799
(Increase)/decrease in Margin Loan to Clients (62,064,300)[|  (88,914,822)
B) Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (234,419,047)  (198,889,353)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Increase/(decrease) in Short term Borrowings [ 155775921 85,093,943 |
C) Net Cash Flow from financing activities 155,775,921 85,093,943
D) Net Cash increase / (decrease) (A+B+C) (1,371,222) (4,700,358)
E) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,858,396 18,558,752
F) Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,487,173 13,858,396
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS)(Note: 36.00) 19.64 21.73

V@EL = WA=~

Chief Executive Officer

.,,f,,..,_.j"

!
Director Chairman

Place: Dhaka
Date: February 12, 2023
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MTB Capital Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Legal Status of the Company

MTB Capital Ltd. (MTBCL), a fully owned subsidiary of Mutual Trust Bank Limited, was
incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company. MTBCL obtained registration
certificate No. MB-55/2010 under the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act,
1993 on December 06, 2010 as a full fledged merchant bank and obtained registration No. C-
80040 from the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC), Dhaka, Bangladesh on
October 08, 2009 under the Companies Act, 1994. The company has commenced its operation on
April 18,2011.

The registered office of the company is situated at Chandrashila Suvastu Tower, 69/1,
Panthapath, Dhaka.

Nature of Business

The main activities of the company are issue management, underwriting, portfolio management
whether discretionary or non-discretionary, corporate advisory services to the clients including
advisory services on merger and amalgamation, capital restructuring, bond services etc.
Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the company are made up to 31 December 2022 and prepared under
the historical cost convention except investment in securities as a going concern and in
accordance with the Companies Act 1994, International Financing Reporting Standards (IFRS),
the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, Dhaka & Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited listing
Regulations, Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and other laws and rules applicable in Bangladesh.
Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting
Standard (IAS) - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement:

Property, plant and equipments are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of asset and bringing to
the location and conditioned necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner.
Depreciation

Depreciation is charged using reducing balance method as per International Accounting Standard
(IAS)-16 “Property plant & equipment”. The rates of depreciation used are as follows:

Category of assets Rate of depreciation
Furniture & Fixture 10%
Office Equipment 20%
Interior Decoration 10%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income.

Leases

The Company follows IFRS 16 which has been effective from 01 January 2019. As IFRS 16
supersedes IAS 17: Leases, the Company has made recognition, measurement and disclosure in the
financial statements as Lessee and Lessor as per [FRS 16.

Revenue Recognition

The accounting policies adopted for the recognition of revenue are as follows:

Interest Income

Interest on margin loan to investors is recognized as revenue on an accrual basis and interest
receivable on such loan is capitalized with original loan on quarterly basis.

Dividend Income

Dividend income on investment in securities has been recognized when the shareholders right to
receive payment is established.

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of Securities

Capital gain/(loss) on sale of securities is accounted for based on difference between average sale
proceeds of securities and cost of securities sold.

Fees and commission Income

Fees and commission income includes portfolio management fees, settlement charges, issue
management fees, underwriting commissions and any other such fees and commissions.

Cash and Bank balance

Cash and bank balance includes cash in hand and cash at bank, which are held and are available

for use by the company without any restriction.

Investment in Securities

Investment in securities is recognized at the end of the period at cost price of investment made by

the company.

Reporting in the period

These financial statements cover one year from 1* January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

General

i)  Comparative information have been disclosed for all numerical information of the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information so as to clarify the current year
position in with that to preceding year.
Changes Format:

Statement of financial position format has been changed, wherever necessary, for ensuring
better comparability in line with TAS-1 without changes facts & figures. Prior period figure
has remained unchanged but rearrangement has been made if required.

ii) The figures in the financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), which is
the company’s functional currency. Figures in these notes and financial statements have
been rounded off to the nearest Taka value.
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Amount in BDT
[ 31122022 || 3122021 |
Property, Plant & Equipment
Cost:
Opening Balance 25,125,247 12,698,889
Addition during the period - 12,426,358
Total Cost 25,125,247 25,125,247
Depreciation:
Opening Balance 10,733,097 8,989,970
Add: Depreciation charged during the period 1,674,930 1,743,127
12,408,027 10,733,097
Written Down Value 12,717,220 14,392,150
(Detail is shown in Annexure - A)
Investment in Securities
Investment in securities represent the cost price of securities which have been invested by the
company
Quoted Shares (Annexure-B) 443,750,904 289,960,749
Ungquoted Shares - -
443,750,904 289,960,749
Investment in Securities under SFCM
Investment under SFCM represent the cost price of securities which have been invested by the
company under Special Fund for Investment in Capital Market (SFCM) (BB DOS Circular-01, Dt.-
12.02.2020)
Quoted Shares (Annexure-B) 99,941,345 82,170,334
Unquoted Shares - -
99,941,345 82,170,334
Margin Loans to Clients
Margin Loan to Investors - Non- Discretionary Account (NDA) 441,088,399 379,322,016
Margin Loan to Investors - Discretionary Account (DA) 1,447,776 1,149,853
442,536,175 380,471,869
Accounts Receivable
Underwriting Commission 1,288,818 1,627,634
Issue Management Fees 4,038,115 4,538,115
Trustee Fees - 900,000
Dividend Receivable 6,879,670 5,736,067
Management Fees 1,283,110 1,283,110
Receivable from MTB Securities Ltd. 211,539 6,224,421
Receivable from SSML 83,034 -
Receivable from CMSL Securities Ltd. - 141,644
IPOs - 22,037,500
13,784,285 42,488,490
Advance and Prepayments
Advance Income Tax 9.01 25,847,647 15,897,798
Advance to Employees 9.02 3,383,382 261,311
29,231,029 16,159,109
Advance Income Tax
Opening Balance 15,897,798 27,126,360
Add: Addition during the period 9,949,849 6,704,719
Less: Adjustment made during the period - 17,933,281
25,847,647 15,897,798
Advance to Employees
Advance to Employee Car [ 3,383,382 | 261,311 |
3,383,382 261,311
Cash & Cash Equivalents
This is made up as under:
Cash in Hand 20,600 [ 11,936 |
Cash at Bank (Mutual Trust Bank)
MTB Tower 0087-0210000208 (Own Portfolio) 27,470 520,366
MTB Tower 0087-0320000045 (SND) 189,165 184,159
MTB Tower 0087-0320000054 (IPO) 14,047 18,183
MTB Tower 0087-02100004464 (SFCM) 8,148 196,655
MTB Tower 0087-0320000214 (NDA) 7,336,847 2,872,266
MTB Tower 0087-0320000205 (DA) 193,331 2,696,016
MTB Tower 0087-0320000223 (GA) 4,697,565 7,358,815
12,466,573 13,846,460
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,487,173 13,858,396
Share Capital
Authorized Capital 500,000,000 500,000,000
50,00,000 Ordinary Shares of BDT 100 each.
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: 393,464,100 374,727,700
3,934,641 Ordinary Shares of BDT 100 each
Shareholding Position:
Particulars No. of Shares Amount Percentage
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 3,934,485 393,448,500 99.996%
Mr. Md. Wakiluddin 156 15,600 0.004%|
Total 3,934,641 393,464,100 100%
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 21,684,915 20,445,138
Add: Net Profit after Tax during the period 7,280,369 19,083,977
Less: Stock Dividend 18,736,400 17,844,200
Closing Balance 10,228,884 21,684,915
Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance 111,079 123,123
Deferred Tax during the period 34.02 (14,201) (12,044)
96,878 111,079
Short Term Loan
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
MTB SOD (G) Business A/C-0087-0173000039 202,506,032 146,692,149
MTB SOD (G) Business under SFCM A/C-2411000001258 96,858,462 72,023,536
MTB SOD (G) Business A/C-2411000006422 75,127,111 -
374,491,605 218,715,684
Accounts Payable
LeadSoft BD Ltd. 214,556 414,556
Audit fees payable 69,000 54,000
Payable to MTB Securities Ltd. 5,266,245 3,714,261
Payable to SSML 1,170,984 4439514
Client Deposits 6,286,912 7,524 474
Source Tax, VAT and Others 1,080,654 1,100,335
14,088,351 17,247,140
Provision for diminution in value of Investments
Opening Balance 67,000,000 22,000,000
Add: Provision made during the period 12,000,000 45,000,000
79,000,000 67,000,000
Provision for Margin Loan
Opening Balance 57,000,000 32,000,000
Add: Provision made during the period 24,000,000 25,000,000
81,000,000 57,000,000
Provision for Current Tax
Opening Balance 40,410,659 36,675,383
Add: Addition during the period 12,918,274 21,668,557
Less: Adjustment made during the period - 17,933,281
53,328,933 40,410,659
Other Liabilities
Provision for Expenses 1,773,650 2,374,655
Interest Suspense 35,005,729 27,820,632
Management fee Suspense 1,174,776 819,833
37,954,156 31,015,121
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Provision for Expenses
Incentive Bonus:

Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the period

Less: Paid during the period
Closing Balance

Interest Suspense Account
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the period

Less: Adjustment made during the period
Closing Balance

Portfolio Management fee Suspense Account
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the period

Less: Adjustment made during the period
Closing Balance

Lease Liability
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the period

Less: Adjustment made during the period
Closing Balance

Net Assets Value (NAV) per share
Net Assets
Number of ordinary shares outstanding

Net Assets

Total Assets

Less: Non-current Liabilities
Less: Current Liabilities

Interest Income

Interest on Margin Loan - Non- Discretionary Account (NDA)
Interest on Margin Loan - Discretionary Account (DA)
Interest on Bank Accounts

Income from Investment
Dividend Income
Capital gain on sale of Securities

Underwriting Commission

Issue Management Fees

Settlement Fees & Documentation Charges
Settlement Fee
Documentation Charge

Portfolio Management Fees
Non-discretionary Account
Discretionary Account

Trustee Fees
Trustee Fees
Registration Fee (Trust Deed)

Other Operating Income
Rental income
Transmission fee

Annual BO account charge
IPO charge
Dematerialization fee

Office & Administrative Expenses

Salary and Allowances
Postage, Telephone, Fax, Stamp
Printing & Stationery
Directors' Fee

Depreciation Expenses

Interest on lease liability
Repairs and Maintenance

Car Expense

CDBL Charge

Entertainment

Cleaning & Security Service Charges
Fees and Registration

Bad debts

Bank Charges and Excise Duty
Conveyance

Internet Expense

Books & Newspaper

Business Promotion Expenses
Professional Fees

Office Transfer Labor Cost
Utility

Office Maintenance

Domain and Hosting Charge
Travelling Expense

IPO Expenses

Other allowances

www.mutualtrustbank.com

Amount in BDT
3122022 [ 31122021
2,374,655 1,463,700
787,488 1,515,455
1,388,493 604,500
1,773,650 2,374,655
27,820,632 17,895,725
7,185,097 9,924,907
35,005,729 27,820,632
819,833 313,255
354,943 506,578
1,174,776 819,833
11,588,799 -
- 12,321,558
793,575 732,759
10,795,225 11,588,799
403692984 [ 396,412,615
3,934,641 347077
102.60 105.79
1,054,448,132 | 839,501,097
96,878 111,079
650,658,270 || 442,977,403
403,692,984 396,412,615
47415226 45312521
10,678 10,558
368 -
471426272 45,323,079
16,519,588 8928471
20,858,993 68,257,262
37,378,581 71,185,733
- 520,066 |
- 520,066
1861389 8,809,783 |
1,861,389 8,809,783
3,521,395 8,032,264
10,000 38,000
3,531,395 8,070,264
5,336,772 3,944,746
101,444 140,704
5,438,216 4,085,450
3,650,000 3,400,000
50,000 50,000
3,700,000 3,450,000
600,000 475,000
337,211 -
20,800
958,011 475,000
12,451,740 13,799,417
84,151 112,359
462,620 537324
568,399 575,000
1,674931 1,743,127
898,425 959,244
248375 203,263
1,179,571 1,006,990
280,498 654,975
483,479 452,448
680432 565,269
983,405 356,274
500,000
208454 128,724
257,030 274411
45,026 44476
16,433 14,253
- 71,500
165,138 153375
- 22,500
395,570 317,505
14,100 10,500
73,625 8,000
18,100 7,010
24,000 38,000
- 46,000
21,733,502 22,101,944
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MTB Capital Ltd.
Calculation of Deferred Tax
For the year ended 31 December, 2022

Amount in BDT
s 3o

MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LTD

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

Annexure - C

31.00 Interest Expense

Interest on SOD (G) Business, Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. [ 2375919 15076942 ] )
Amount in BDT
n3BEIY 15076942 Notes 2022 2021
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) P - : :
32.00 Provision for diminution in value of Investments 12,000,000 45,000,000 Current assets
This provision is made as per BSEC guideline and to reduce the risk of Investment. As on Balance sheet date : : Cash at bank and in hand . 17,170 21,170
we have created total BDT 7,90,00,000 ( 50.06%) out of total requirement of BDT 15,77,99,389.00 Carrying amount of Property, Plant &‘Equlpment 2859974 3,300,748 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 5 (1,809) (L678)
Less: Tax base Property, Plant & Equipment 2,601,631 3,006,537 NET CURRENT ASSETS 15,361 19,492
33.00 Provision for margin loan 24,000,000 25,000,000 Taxable temporary difference 258,342 296,211 Total assets less current liabilities 15,361 19,492
This provision is made as per BSEC guideline and to reduce the risk of Investment. As on Balance sheet date Apphcable Tax Rate 37.50% 37.50% Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (288,308) (288,309)
we have created total BDT 8,10,00,000 ( 45.21%) out of total requirement of BDT 17,91,46,512.00 e - - Net Liabilities (272,947) (268,817)
Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities 96,878 111,079
. . Capital and reserves
34.00 Income Tax Expenses Less: Opening Balance 107 123,123 Called up share capital 7 230,000 230,000
Current Tax 34.01 12918274 21,668,557 Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) (14,201) (12,044) Other Comprehensive income 8 806 806
Profit and loss account 9 (503,753) (499,623)
Deferred Tax 3401 (14201) (12,044) Shareholders funds (272,947) (268,817)

12,904,073 21,656,513
Income Tax Expenses is calculated as per guideline of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 and related Rules.

MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2022

For the year ended 31 December 2022 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 477 of
the companies act 2006 relating to small companies.

The directors present their annual report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

3401 Current Tax | 1918274 21668557 ]
I8 2166855

Directors' Responsibilities:
1 The members have not required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question
in accordance with section 476.
2 The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the companies
act 2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

Principal activities
Principal activity of the company during the financial year was of financial intermediation.

Directors

34.02 Deferred Tax Expense/(lncome) | (1 4,201)” ( | 2’044)| The directors who served the company throughout the year were as follows:
(14,20]) (]2,044) g;e‘g{;l(;?;trl]gj:hi These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the
N ‘ Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury small companies regime of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.
(Detail is shown in Annexure - C) Syed Mahbubur Rahman

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 03 January 2023 and were signed on its
Statement of directors' responsibilities behalf by:

35.00 Earning per share

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
Net Profit after tax 7,280,369 19,083,977 regulation. m}
Number Ofordinary shares Outsmnding 3,934,641 3,934,641 Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected
1.85 4.85 to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Syed Mahbubur Rahman
- - Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they Director
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
. period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to
36.00 Net Operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)
: o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
Net Operatmg cash flows 77’271’904 109’095’052 * make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent MTB EXCHAN G E (U K) LTD
Number of shares 3,934,641 3,934,641 + prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company wi . .
1964 s cortinue it businss Statement of Changes in Equity
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They For the Year Ended 31 December 2022
37.00 Related Party Transaction are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
, detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Name of Party Nature of Transactions Equity share Retained Total
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company's . f
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. SOD Loan | 374,491,605 " 218,715,684 website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from capltal Eammgs
374’491,605 218’715,684 legislation in other jurisdictions. £ £ £
This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by: At 0.1 January 2021 230,000 (491,964) (261,964)
38.00 Number of employees Profit for the year - (7,659) (7,659)
The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part there of, who received a total m EIZ: ;i/rz:tﬁr;i?:';; ;Tdoxt:;:t?:nzetzrowners - (7,659) (7,659)
remuneration of Taka 36,000 or above were 08 persons. P —— At 31 December 2021 230,000 99,623 (269.629)
39.00 Events after the balance sheet date Director
Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board of Directors recommended no dividend. Date approved: 03 January 2023 At 01 January 2022 230,000 _ (499623) _(269,623)
Profit for the year (4,130) (4,130)
MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LTD Total comprehensive income for the year (4,130) (4,130)
MTB Capital Ltd. Accountants' Report Total investments by and distributions to owners - - -
Schedule of Property, Plant & Equipment For the year ended 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2022 230,000 (503,753) _ (273,753)

As at 31 December 2022

In order to assist you to fulfil your duties under Companies Act 2006, we have prepared for your approval

MTB Exch UK) Limited
the accounts of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED for the year ended 31 December 2022 which xchange (UK) Limite

Notes to the Accounts

Annexure-A

comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position and related notes

(Amount in BDT ) \come ) X ) For the year ended 31 December 2022
— from the company's accounting records and from information and explanations you have given us.
Cost Depreciation )
General Information
\ddiion | Disposal Chareed | Disposal Accumulated| Written Down As a practising member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, we are subject to its MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED s a private company, limited by shares , registered in England and Wales, registration number 07282261, registration
Patiulars Opeing A Imon ls.pl)sa Balaceason| Rate | Opeing f!rge isposal Deprecuion| Vauesson ethical and other professional requirements which are detailed at CIMA's website. address C/0 Jahan & Co, 22 Oshorn Street, LONDON, E1 6TD. The company ceased to trade in March 2020
during the |during the during the | forthe |,
Balance v v 31122022 | (%) | Balance v y during the | 31.12.2022 1. Acconting Polces
ar ar ar ar Y This report is made solely to the member of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED, as a body, in . .
ear ” . Significant accounting policies
E, R AR D TRR Rl accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare for The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with FRS 102, the financial reporting standard applicable
umie LT e - - — O/f 2, - - 2 o your approval the accounts of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED and state those matters that we have in the UK and Republic of Ireland (as applied to small entities by Section 1A of the standard)
Office Equipment 8,670,356 - - BOT0356) 20% | 75453%9| A9 - | 770038 899998 agreed to state to the Board of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED, as a body, in this report in accordance
Interor Decoration 1763639 - - 2765039 | 10| 1295865 | 146977 - 1442842 130,197 with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and as detailed at its Going concern basis
Sub Total 12,803,689 - - | g 9500941 4TS - | 9376|2859 website. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other The company has stopped trading in March 2020. Thus it did ot adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
: : N o thi statements.
ﬁ:lslét I)ﬁste Assets as per 13215% ) o] | o] 1z - | asen 9857247 than MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED and its members as a body for our work or for this report.
T er
Dol Decenber 202 [ s - | | sosa| | 7w uemsno[ - | o] wgimw It is your duty to ensure that MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED has kept adequate accounting records v congessthe e vl of s st sople by the oty netof e Added T ade s,
Total December 2021 12,698,889 | 12426358 - B 8989970 14317 - 10733097 14.392,150 and to prepare statutory accounts that give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and Loss of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED. You consider that MTB EXCHANGE (UK) LIMITED Government grants
. is exempt from the statutory audit requirement for the year. Government grants received are credited to deferred income. Grants towards capital expenditure are released to the income statement over the
MTB Capltal Ltd. expected useful life of the assets. Grants received towards revenue expenditure are released to the income statement as the related expenditure
Investment in Quoted Securities ‘We have not been instructed to carry out an audit or a review of the accounts of MTB EXCHANGE (UK) is incurred.
LIMITED. For this reason, we have not verified the accuracy or completeness of the accounting records .
As at 31 December 2022 Tasation
or information and explanations you have given to us and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on Taxation represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of income, except to the extent that it
the statutory accounts. relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in capital and reserves.
Am]exu]‘e- B The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
ANE date.
(Amount in BDT) Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted
Sector Name Cost Value | Market value | Difference A . Q/ CO Tangoe fied assets
. Tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Bank 37212:412 273575500 (5 569 912) Jahan & Co A ' Depreciation s provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
Cement 36’765,025 27,132,600 (9 632 425) 'gzhaw ngmmm expected useful lives on the following basis: - .
: 22 Osborn Street
Ceramics 0397475 | 3613760]  (5.983,714) London 2 DesEncra o
Engineering 28180370 16676209 | (11,504,141) Gy 2023 The et ot wtrow gl durng o
Financial Institutions 35,333,792 23,400,000 (11 933 792) 3. Average number of employees during the year Number ~ Number
. Administration
Food & Allied 060,695 S0]  (38156%) MTB Exchange (UK) Limited o :
Fuel & Power 158130620 ] 109507674] (48,622 946) Income Statement . Toonpotten i i :
G-SEC (T.Bond 111,723 111,723 UK Corporaion ax — 18
( ) : g For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 - (1.499)
Insurance 250372341 19,988,149 (5,049 086) TerminalLos Rlief Ciaim
A claim of Terminal Loss Relief was made to HMRC during 2021, which was accepted and refunded £1499.43 to the company
IT Sector 9488 | 254080 (4334038) s wm
. 5. Creditors: amount falling due within one year
Miscellaneous 17,395,621 13,490,729 (3 904 892) £ £ Accrued Expenses 1,808 -
Other Creditors 1 1,676
Mutual Funds 9] 1,820 640,000 (27 820) Turnover - - T 189 1676
ot 3 j j 6. Creditors: amount falling due after more than one year
Paper & Printing 3,739,716 3,402,000 (337,716) Gross profit PO o s
Pharmaceuticals & Chemicals TATIS8 | 47690461 (24,786,797) B 3B 30
- L . . Share Capital
Services & Real Estate 13,169,020 10,698,187 (2470833)| : Administrative expenses (130)  (3,158) loted,called up and fuly i
; 230,000 Class A shares of £ 1.00 each 230,000 230,000
Tannery Industries 1,702,651 1,572,600 (130,051) Ooeratine Profit TR 20000 230,000
. . peratng Proi 8. Other Comprehensive Income
Telecommunication 64,059,535 | 50,489,281 (13,570,255) . . b o6 o6
. 806 806
Texile 2681,776 17,809,300 (8472,276) Profit/Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (4,130 (9,158) 9. Profit and loss account
1 . \ e Balance at 01 January 2022 (499,623) (491,964)
Travel & Leisure 8,008,627 6,196,350 (1,812,277) Tax on profit on ordinary actvites 4 ] 1,499 o i R
Total 543,692,249 | 386,004,583 (162,402,666) Profit/Loss for the financial year (4,130) (7,659) Balance at 31 December 2022 _(503,753) _ (499,623)
I

www.mutualtrustbank.com




